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Welcome to this Public Meeting of the  

NWRESD Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting 

--- 

February 16, 2021 

Virtual Meeting: Register Here 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Board: Renee Bruce, Karen Cunningham, Tony Erickson, Dave Hollandsworth, DaWayne          

Judd, Marilyn McGlasson, Lisa Poehlitz, Chris Riley, Ross Tomlin 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE​  / ​LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

AGENDA REVIEW/REVISION 

 

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

 

2020-2021 RECOGNITION AND GOOD NEWS  

A. ​Washington County Vaccine Support Team 

B. ​Classified Staff Appreciation Week March 2021 

 

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD/PUBLIC COMMENT 

The Northwest Regional Education Service District Board of Directors appreciates          

community members sharing information during public comments. The Board requests          

comments be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. Speakers will state their name              

and home address for the record. While the Board does not respond to public comment,               

following the meeting, the Chair, Vice Chair, and Superintendent will together determine            

the appropriate level of response. Speakers may offer objective criticism of district            

operations or programs, but the Board will not hear complaints concerning specific            

district personnel. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of ​January Board Meeting Minutes 

B. Approval of ​Personnel Action Report  

 

REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

A. ​Update on Reopening Plans and Vaccine Coordination 

 

B.  ​Regional Educator Network Update 

C. ​Administrative Reports 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

A. ​Approval of Resolution Declaring Classified Appreciation Week 

B. ​Approval of Annual Audit 

C. ​Approval of January Financial Report 

D. ​OAESD Officer’s Council Elections 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chair Poehlitz 

 

 

 

Chair Poehlitz 

 

Chair Poehlitz 

 

Dan Goldman 

 

Kelsey Cardwell 

 

 

 

Chair Poehlitz 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chair Poehlitz 

Secretary O’Driscoll 

Joseph Hernandez 

 

 

Sarah Pope  

& Dan Goldman 

Mariana Zaragoza 

Dan Goldman 

 

Chair Poehlitz 

Tami Montague 

Tami Montague 

Dan Goldman 

https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_Jzn6Ugf7SoaX50erGJgRaw
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DPyao6vHeGHzKMCMKRtWSj2TEDr2DL4s/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1feHNVxpzAS6VKDb8ZJ2yE-iFKtiIx5D1/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1PuDb0K2Fe4d7DY1Ku1lTuQtdZILxb2JVawde_PxIdyQ/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sEtjhbGmn0Zosw9ARDA_uwMqtvGZIkzt/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WkPOsUlUiX7JErOfnSPLVU71ML1XYa-1/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Tc6Pa4Wnythhzj22nCqDORGrnm8E6BWzR290qK00q4M/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1710hBYi7SJBFpRzySsjIyqUJeKru1ZtI/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/18LYMVoT-S35uonDXuamuu7XU8r4pwJtCF0LqXDrn8r0/edit#slide=id.gafab3675db_0_43
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1fw4_Lp82P-PgjvIKEVPRaeWa3jd2bBWwNRMhTbKTISo/edit#slide=id.gb471662070_0_236
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1d4GBRHRfTa2dtkTvryn2p1GD2xzdo8s3
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1A9wi8UHo--Gd7vkNQ0yrvdC8Z_JkimcB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1l1k6tCl9B6-tPYHSsgvPXhEooa-Fkai3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1fhanJWskTPpIK2vDz3m9QDMpAbELSFt8/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xwbx9ITLPbZr-KWYLRsh7GzSMRh-z4Lm/view?usp=sharing


 

 

 

 

 

 

2020-21 NWRESD Board Goals 
1. Attend board meetings consistently and arrive prepared to discuss presented materials. 
2. Ensure board/superintendent working agreements are known, practiced, and monitored. 
3. Improve Board governance. 
4. Learn more about regional programs using the ESD Equity Lens. 
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10. 

 

11. 

 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 

ADJOURN 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Next Meeting: March 9, 2021 

 

Chair Poehlitz 

 

Chair Poehlitz 

 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN BOARD MEETINGS 
1. A visitor wishing to make public comment may contact the Board Secretary by emailing ​lslyh@nwresd.org at least one                  

hour prior to the start of the meeting. Please include your name and address in your message and the topic for which you                       

would like to provide public comment.  

2. Members of the public will be asked to speak under item 6. ​COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD/PUBLIC COMMENT 

3. After being recognized by the Board chair, the speaker will be transitioned into the virtual webinar as a panelist. Please                    

identify yourself:​ full name and address and state your purpose in addressing the Board​. 
4. A group of visitors with a common purpose should designate a speaker for the group. 

5. Comments or statements by members of the public are limited to 3 minutes and should be brief and concise unless                    

otherwise authorized by the Chair. 

6. Speakers may comment on a topic not on the published agenda, however, the Board - at its discretion - may require that                      

the proposal, inquiry, or request be submitted in writing. The Board reserves the right to refer the matter to the                    

administration for action or study and to report at a subsequent meeting.  

7. When meetings are large or controversial, anyone wishing to speak before the Board, either as an individual or as a                    

member of a group, on any agenda or non-agenda item, may do so at the discretion of the Board Chair. The Chair will                       

determine the amount of time that will be allotted for each individual. 

8. Speakers may offer objective criticism of district operations or programs but the Board will not hear complaints                 

concerning specific district personnel. Complaints against individuals must be addressed by following the steps in Policy                

KL (“Public Complaints”) and Procedure KL-AR (“Complaint Form”). 

9. These procedures will be published on the back of every Board meeting agenda. 

 

mailto:lslyh@nwresd.org


PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE



THE LAND UPON
WHICH WE STAND.

INDIGENOUS LAND ACKNOWLEDEMENT

“WE WANT TO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT WE GATHER
AS THE  NORTHWEST REGIONAL ESD ON THE

TRADITIONAL LANDS OF THE  ATFALATI
(TUALATIN/WAPATO LAKE), NEKELIM  (NEHALEM),

SILETZ AND TILLAMOOK  PEOPLES, PAST AND
PRESENT, AND HONOR WITH GRATITUDE THE LAND

ITSELF AND THE PEOPLE WHO HAVE STEWARDED
IT THROUGHOUT THE GENERATIONS.”

-ADAPTED FROM DELILAH FRIEDLER



February 16,, 2021

TO: Board of Directors 

FR: Dan Goldman, Superintendent

RE: February Superintendent Report

EXPLANATION: Please find attached the Superintendent Report. 

PRESENTER(S): Dan Goldman, Superintendent 

SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS: February Superintendent Report 

RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

PROPOSED MOTION: N/A 



Superintendent Office Report 
February 16, 2021 

 
 
Greetings Board Members, 
 
Local Service Plan Approval by Component Districts 
As I look forward to seeing you all at our meeting next week, I’m also preparing to 
visit school boards throughout our component districts this month. As of this report, 
Astoria, Hillsboro, Knappa, and Seaside have requested we attend the meeting as 
they vote on the 2021-22 Local Service Plan. I’m looking forward to hearing from our 
district leaders, while also sharing the ESD’s Annual Report, Strategic Plan, and 
commitment to anti-racism. Additionally, three districts have already held their votes 
to approve the LSP, and the rest are scheduled throughout the month.  
 
Covid-19 Vaccination Coordination  
As the Board knows, in January Governor Brown prioritized access to Covid-19 
vaccines for educators (right after health care workers, first responders, and long 
term care and treatment workers). Since that declaration, the NWRESD has been an 
integral planning, decision-making, and communication partner in all four of our 
counties. In Columbia, Clatsop and Tillamook Counties, nearly all of our staff and 
area educators have had access to the first dose of the vaccine. Our Service Center 
Administrators have been instrumental in coordinating these efforts with the county 
Local Public Health Authorities.  
 
In Washington County, because of the sheer number of people already eligible for the 
vaccine (health care workers, those living and working in long-term care, emergency 
responders) and the complexity of the medical service provider landscape in the 
metro area, the hill to climb is much steeper. Because of this complexity and the 
need to coordinate a vast number of stakeholders, the three metro area ESDs (MESD, 
CESD and NWRESD) have taken a leadership role in support of the metro area 
hospitals in standing up and coordinating a high-volume vaccination program at the 
Oregon Convention Center (OCC) in Portland. Together, we are coordinating the 
systematic roll-out of vaccinations for over 65,000 educators and child service 
providers - birth through grade 12 - in Washington, Multnomah and Clackamas 
counties. Sarah Pope and Kelsey Cardwell, along with their counterparts at the other 
ESDs, have been integral in planning, problem solving, and process improvement 
efforts. Through their excellent work, the scheduling system and rollout has gone 
fairly smoothly considering the size and scope of the effort. 
 
In order to ensure access and supply, schools districts in these counties agreed to 
prioritize those serving our youngest learners (with few exceptions such as staff 
teaching in Limited In-Person Instruction) and operational staff (bus drivers, food 



service workers, and custodians) and expanding access to the older grades through a 
“wave” system. At the time of writing this report, we are currently in Wave 3 of 4 
(middle school educators are currently up).  
 
As previously discussed, the main obstacle has been vaccine supply. In addition, our 
neighbors who are aged 80 and over, as well as the state prison population, have also 
been made eligible, with 75 year olds becoming eligible next week. As a result, we are 
now experiencing a bottle-neck in Wave 3. While our smallest wave in terms of 
numbers of eligible PK-12 educators (about 4,000 compared to 26,000 in Wave 1, and 
over 17,000 in Wave 4), not all those in this wave have been able to schedule. We 
expect that the remainder of Wave 3 employees will be able to schedule 
appointments on Thursday, February 11. However, without increasing the weekly 
supply, it may take a few more weeks for Wave 4 educators to get their first dose. 
Wave 4 includes high school educators, substitutes, coaches, and other school 
system providers. 
 
To date, we estimate that approximately 32,000 early learning providers and PK-8th 
grade educators have had access to the vaccine through the OCC effort. Some of our 
staff living and or working in Washington County have been provided vaccines through 
other, smaller-scale efforts. 
 
 
Reopening Schools Planning 
At this time, Columbia, Clatsop, and Washington Counties are in the yellow under the 
Governor’s advisory re-opening metrics which means they can open for elementary 
school students and then add additional grades if they do not have any outbreaks. 
Tillamook County is our only county in the green, which means they can open K-12. 
With that said, most school districts across our region are still operating in 
comprehensive distance learning, including all districts in Washington County. The 
majority of districts hope to start to open prek-2 in a hybrid model in March or early 
April, but for many that is dependent on successful negotiations with their unions.  
 
At NWRESD we are continuing to carefully and systematically expand the number of 
students offered limited in person instruction (LIPI). To date we have approved 65 
individual students across the four counties for LIPI. This is in addition to the 
following approved services providing one time services to students: PT fittings, 
audiology exams, evaluations, and vision screenings.  
 
We are in the process of drafting MOUs with both associations to define when hybrid 
instruction can start and what it looks like. Assuming the metrics stay where they are 
or continue to go down, and vaccine roll out continues as planned, our goal is that by 
the start of the fourth quarter we can operate in hybrid learning models across our 
schools/sites, programs, and itinerant services.  



 
 
Legislative Update  
As the Board is aware, the COVID-19 pandemic created a budget crisis that triggered 
a number of unfortunate layoffs last summer presenting challenges in maintaining 
our newer, more culturally and linguistically diverse employees. Growing and 
maintaining a highly diverse workforce is a priority in the Board’s Strategic Plan and in 
Board Policy ADA. A challenge in carrying out the Board’s direction when faced with 
layoffs is the long-standing state statutes (ORS 342.845 and 342.934) requiring 
school districts prioritize seniority in layoff determinations without consideration for 
diversity or representation. As a result, schools’ efforts to hire staff that racially and 
linguistically reflect their student bodies is often quickly undone each time Oregon 
goes through a financial downturn (unfortunately quite often). (Here’s an opinion 
piece on the issue from Stand For Children’s Executive Director, Toya Fick: 
https://www.google.com/amp/s/www.oregonlive.com/opinion/2020/05/opinion-last-in
-first-out-isnt-equitable-for-teachers-of-color.html%3foutputType=amp​.) 
 
Your advocacy group, OSBA, reports that ​HB 2001​ addresses maintaining diversity 
during reductions in force (RIF). If enacted, the bill would effectively make it possible 
for districts and unions to negotiate existing “Last In, First Out” language in their 
local contracts. We will track HB 2001 closely.  
 
Other advocacy priorities: 
 

FUNDING 
● State School Fund Appropriation of $9.5 Billion with a 49% - 51% 

distribution of the SSF Appropriation for the biennium. 
● Support the EI/ECSE 2019-21 level of funding plus adequate roll-up 

costs.  
● Support increased funding for grants-in-aid for Regional Inclusive 

Service contracts from $63 Million to $73 Million and support further 
study to identify Adequate and Qualitative Service funding level for 
future beinnia. 

 
STUDENT SUCCESS ACT 

● Full funding of the Student Success Act, protecting erosion of the 
Corporate Activity Revenue, and maintaining the current percentage 
distribution of funds between the Student Investment, Statewide 
Initiatives, and Early Learning accounts. 

● Increase allocation from the Governor’s Recommended Budget of 
$37.9m to $42M. 

 

https://www.google.com/amp/s/www.oregonlive.com/opinion/2020/05/opinion-last-in-first-out-isnt-equitable-for-teachers-of-color.html%3foutputType=amp
https://www.google.com/amp/s/www.oregonlive.com/opinion/2020/05/opinion-last-in-first-out-isnt-equitable-for-teachers-of-color.html%3foutputType=amp
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB2001/Introduced


DUAL CREDIT TRANSFER: Assure that college credit awarded students by an 
Oregon community college or public university in an Accelerated Learning 
Program shall be transferable as core credits for the student’s degree 
requirements without loss of academic credit or the requirement to retake a 
course at any community college or public university in Oregon. 
 
BROADBAND EXPANSION: Support funding for providing internet connectivity to 
the place of residence for all students in Oregon including those students who 
are homeless or displaced. 

 
 
 
Exploring Washington County Preschool For All Possibilities 
In the last election, Multnomah County passed a Preschool For All measure, 
effectively raising the income taxes for high earners to fund universal access to 
quality preschool opportunities. With our school district superintendents’ blessings, 
we have since pulled together a small group from schools and providers and CBOs 
focused on early learning access to begin exploring a similar strategy in Washington 
County. Currently, it is estimated that ​13,303 (i.e. 58%) ​chil​d​ren between the ages of 
three to five do not have adequate access to preschool programming in the county. 
We are currently connecting with various members of the County Commission to 
explore their appetite for this effort before proceeding. This could be an exciting 
effort towards our goal of expanding access to high quality preschools in our region. 
 
 
Clatsop Service Center 
The sale of the Clatsop Service Center is moving forward with no additional updates 
at this time. The current sale agreement will have us totally vacated from the site by 
June 30. Unfortunately, we have hit a snag in discussions with the 
Warrenton-Hammond School District in co-locating administrative functions at their 
grade school. We are exploring other options in Astoria and Seaside this month. 



GOOD NEWS
& RECOGNITION



5825 NE Ray Circle Hillsboro,
OR 97124-6436

February 9, 2021

To the Vaccine Support Team (Abigail Lutskovsky, Carolyn Quinn, Janet Bucio, Katherine
Resch, Kathy Fernandez, Patricia Burros, Paul Thompson, Sabine Eaton, and Vicky
Schroeder):

It is my pleasure to inform you that the Northwest Regional ESD Board of Directors would like to
recognize you and your team during the “Recognition and Good News” segment of our February
board meeting. Sarah Pope, deputy superintendent, has outlined your contributions:

“The educator vaccination effort in Oregon has been a massive undertaking for health
systems and schools. In our role, Northwest Regional ESD has helped mobilize
thousands of educators to receive their first dose, including our own staff. We are
incredibly grateful to our internal vaccine support team members who have helped
NWRESD staff navigate a fast-paced situation. They jumped into action with very little
direction, immediately working so well together as a team to field questions and find
answers to the many unknowns that habitate a crisis response situation. Our staff was in
very good hands, thanks to these nine.”

We respectfully request your attendance at our next board meeting at 6:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, February 16, scheduled to take place virtually. We look forward to having the
opportunity to personally thank you for making this historical moment go more smoothly for our
staff.  Please RSVP to Lauren Slyh O’Driscoll, Board Secretary at 503-614-1401 or
lslyh@nwresd.k12.or.us. She will be happy to answer any questions you have.

Sincerely,

Dan Goldman
Superintendent

https://www.nwresd.org/about-us/board-of-directors/meetings


 
 
 
5825 NE Ray Circle Hillsboro,  
OR 97124-6436  
 
February 9, 2021 

To NWRESD Oregon School Employees Association: 

It is my pleasure to inform you that the Northwest Regional ESD Board of Directors would like to 
recognize you at their upcoming regular meeting. Classified Employee Appreciation Week, 
March 1-5, acknowledges the pivotal role you play in helping our organization pursue our 
mission: In partnership with the communities we serve, Northwest Regional Education Service 
District improves student learning by providing equitable access to high-quality services and 
support. 

“Our support staff consists of passionate instructional assistants, patient technology 
experts, organized administrative assistants, welcoming front desk staff and so many 
more caring individuals who make Northwest Regional ESD an inviting educational system 
for our families and staff. We look forward to spotlighting your very much appreciated 
contributions to our organization during Classified Employee Appreciation Week.”  

Joseph J. Hernandez, Chief Human Resources Officer 

 
We respectfully request the attendance of OSEA representatives at our next board meeting at 
6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, February 16, ​scheduled to take place virtually​. We look forward to 
having the opportunity to celebrate you and your colleagues. Please RSVP to Lauren Slyh 
O’Driscoll, Board Secretary at 503-614-1401 or lslyh@nwresd.k12.or.us. She will be happy to 
answer any questions you have.  

Sincerely,  

 
Dan Goldman  
Superintendent  

 

 

https://www.nwresd.org/about-us/board-of-directors/meetings


CONSENT AGENDA



February 16, 2021

TO: Board of Directors 

FR: Lauren Slyh O’Driscoll, Board Secretary 

RE: January 2021 Meeting Minutes

EXPLANATION: Please find the attached January 2021 Executive and Regular Meeting Minutes. 

PRESENTER(S): Consent Agenda 

SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS:   January 2021 Executive and Regular Meeting Minutes

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Approve as presented in the consent agenda. 

I move to approve the minutes as presented/amended.



 
 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
3. 

 

 

1. 

 

 

 

 

 

2. 

 

 

 

3.  

 

 

 

 

 

4. 

 

 

 

5. 

NWRESD Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

  --- 

January 19, 2021 

Virtual Meeting  

 

The Executive Session was called to order at 5:01 PM.  

Board: Renee Bruce, Karen Cunningham, Tony Erickson, Dave Hollandsworth, Lisa 

Poehlitz, Chris Riley, Ross Tomlin 

 

Staff: Dan Goldman, Joseph Hernandez, Tami Montague, Lauren Slyh O’Driscoll 

Guest: Ivan from Miller Nash 

 

ORS 192.660(2)(h) To consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a              

public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed; 

-AND- 

ORS 192.660(2)(e) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing           

body to negotiate real property transactions; 

  ​-AND- 

ORS 192.660(2)(d) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing           

body to carry on labor negotiations. 

 

The Executive Session was adjourned at 6:05 PM. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Board: Renee Bruce, Karen Cunningham, Tony Erickson, Dave Hollandsworth, DaWayne          

Judd, Lisa Poehlitz, Chris Riley, Ross Tomlin 

 

Chair Poehlitz called the board to order at 6:09 pm. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE​  / ​LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Director Erickson led the board through the pledge. Director Riley read the land             

acknowledgement. 

 

AGENDA REVIEW/REVISION 

Chair Poehlitz entertained a motion by Director Cunningham to approve the addition of 

agenda item 9D. The motion was seconded by Director Riley and approved unanimously.  

 

Director Judd abstained as he was unable to attend the executive session.  

 

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

Superintendent Goldman and Deputy Pope reviewed the report to the board.  

Director Bruce joined the meeting at 6:22pm. 

 

2020-2021 RECOGNITION AND GOOD NEWS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DPyao6vHeGHzKMCMKRtWSj2TEDr2DL4s/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1feHNVxpzAS6VKDb8ZJ2yE-iFKtiIx5D1/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/18x195ywg8PqTzjt9dOdXfTKIO6wgUyQF/view?usp=sharing
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A. ​Board Appreciation Month 

Superintendent Goldman expressed his gratitude to the Board for their support of            

students, families and staff. Secretary O’Driscoll expressed her pleasure working          

alongside board members for another year. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD/PUBLIC COMMENT 

N/A 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. ​December Board Meeting Minutes 

B. ​Personnel Action Report  

Chair Poehlitz entertained a motion by Director Tomlin to approve the consent agenda. 

The motion was seconded by Director Riley and approved unanimously.  

 

REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

A. ​ECSE Remote Learning Success Stories and Program Updates 

EI/ECSE Executive Director Nancy Ford presented ​ECSE Remote Learning Success Stories           

and Program Updates​ to the board.  

 

Director Cunningham asked for clarity about remote services being continued once           

in-person services return. Executive Director Ford shared that many of the remote and             

virtual practices that have been implemented during the pandemic will continue even            

when they can safely return to in-person activities because it works better for families. 

 

B. ​Preliminary Annual Report 

The board expressed their compliments on the look and accessibility of the Annual Report              

being greatly improved compared to past documents. Secretary Slyh O’Driscoll reviewed           

the next steps for distribution to component districts. 

 

C. ​Administrative Reports 

Chair Poehlitz requested Administrators please spell out acronyms in their board reports            

to ensure clarity. 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

A. ​January Financial Report 

Chair Poehlitz entertained a motion by Director Bruce to approve the report as 

presented. The motion was seconded by Director Riley and approved unanimously. 

 

B. ​2021-22 Budget Calendar 

Chair Poehlitz entertained a motion by Director Riley to approve the 2021-22 Budget 

Calendar as presented. The motion was seconded by Director Bruce and approved 

unanimously. 

 

C. ​Classified Memorandum of Agreement 

Chair Poehlitz entertained a motion by Director Riley to approve the classified MOA as 

presented. The motion was seconded by Director McGlasson and approved unanimously. 

 

D. ​Clatsop Service Center 

Chair Poehlitz entertained a motion by Director Bruce to approve.  

Chair Poehlitz entertained a motion by Director Cunningham to first amend the 

motion as follows: 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/11oq82cR11hJUS3FEjdMx25lQuSBE6Z9Z/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1f_t7v00v4m_cm7Rm6Fh2pP1vO1QNF4-irqnuzKjALR4/edit#heading=h.zfih4g7fn8rj
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Y4MRsGd5FyiJDAoXlDilxxRRW6ubNcY-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1SWAe5KBTd17dwFmoEWSl8L838IWXpKF-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1SWAe5KBTd17dwFmoEWSl8L838IWXpKF-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1SWAe5KBTd17dwFmoEWSl8L838IWXpKF-/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1f8ByRx7sT_FsXcPKL5Ublh2m_DBdYP3m/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1t0-Bo2QVKAyXyEJH4necZGImnyxkmUCG
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sdK1SkPm02BNAurMcA21WxuO4xA55TYs/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1U9FL-VOudM4WVG6lUxP8V-RHilqJXqrJ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Dnu7GoR-aR07F5dOvsXthrWkjdxGOBg3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-nOFmGtX6AGfuCT6FGu4sZdcSgNFkGuR/view
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10. 

 

 

11. 

 

 

 

 

 

I move to approve the acceptance of the proposed purchase of the Clatsop 

Service Center to include recommendations proposed by NWRESD real estate 

agents.  

● Reduce the timeline related to financing as recommended by real 

estate agents. 

● NWRESD to have access to the building through June 30, 2021. 

● Clearly indicate the building is offered “As-is” and no credits are offered 

for additional repairs or improvements. 

The motion was seconded by Director Hollandsworth and approved 

unanimously. 

 

The original motion was then seconded by Director Erickson and approved unanimously. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

N/A 

 

ADJOURN 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:17 pm. 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN BOARD MEETINGS 

1. A visitor may complete a ‘Public Comment Card’ and give it to the Board secretary at the Board table prior to the                      

beginning of the meeting. After being recognized by the Board chair, the speaker will sit at the presenter’s table                   

and identify themselves with their full name and address and stating their purpose in addressing the Board. 

2. A group of visitors with a common purpose should designate a speaker for the group. 

3. Comments or statements by members of the public are limited to 3 minutes and should be brief and concise                   

unless otherwise authorized by the Chair. 

4. Speakers may comment on a topic not on the published agenda, however, the Board - at its discretion - may                    

require that the proposal, inquiry, or request be submitted in writing. The Board reserves the right to refer the                   

matter to the administration for action or study and to report at a subsequent meeting.  

5. When meetings are large or controversial, anyone wishing to speak before the Board, either as an individual or                  

as a member of a group, on any agenda or non-agenda item, may do so at the discretion of the Board chair. The                       

Chair will determine the amount of time that will be allotted for each individual. 

6. Speakers may offer objective criticism of district operations or programs but the Board will not hear complaints                 

concerning specific district personnel. Complaints against individuals must be addressed by following the steps              

in Policy KL (“Public Complaints”) and Procedure KL-AR (“Complaint Form”). 

7. These procedures will be published on the back of every Board meeting agenda. 

 



 

 

February 9, 2021 
 
 
 
To: Board of Directors 

 
From: Joseph Hernandez – Chief Human Resources Officer 

Re: Personnel Report 

 
EXPLANATION:   Please see attached personnel report prepared by  

  Kathy Fernandez   
 

Presenter:           Joseph J. Hernandez  

Supplementary 
Materials:  Personnel Report, additional comments provided to the board at 

February 16, 2021 meeting. 
 
Recommendation: N/A 

 
Proposed Motion: Move to accept the personnel report as presented in consent 

agenda. 



 

 
 

NEW HIRES 
NAME POSITION DEPARTMENT BUILDING COMMENTS 
     
Helfer, Carol Assistant Director of 

Human Resources 
(1.0 FTE) 

Human Resources Washington SC Administrator  
Replacement for 
Janine Mobley 

Poor, Nicole Early Education 
Childhood Specialist 
(1.0 FTE) 

EI/ECSE Beaverton Early 
Childhood Center 

Licensed 
Replacement for 
Anne Shoepe 

Lane-White, Valerie Administrative 
Assistant (1.0 FTE) 

EI/ECSE Washington SC Classified 
Replacement for 
Valerie Lane-White 
(resigned 12/18/20, 
rehired 2/12/21) 

Jennett, Gerard Speech Language 
Therapist (1.0 FTE) 

EI/ECSE – Eval 
Team 

Washington SC Licensed 
Replacement for Alla 
Matveyenko  

 
 

RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS 
NAME POSITION DEPARTMENT BUILDING COMMENTS 
Swedo, Jana School Psychologist 

(1.0 FTE) 
Special Student 
Services 

Vernonia, Jewell, 
Scappoose 

Retirement 
As of 01/31/2021; 
rehire 02/01/2021 
as nonPERS 

Matveyenko, Alla Speech Language 
Pathologist 
(1.0 FTE) 

EI/ECSE Washington SC Resignation effective 
01/29/2021 

Griffin, Karah Instructional 
Assistant 
(.85 FTE) 

EI/ECSE Clatsop SC Resignation effective 
02/26/2021 

Gurung-Sato, 
Yangchen 

Instructional 
Assistant 
(1.0 FTE) 

EI/ECSE Beaverton Early 
Childhood Center 

Resignation effective 
03/17/21 

 
 

ADVERTISED VACANCIES (information only) 
OPEN POSITION Category DEPARTMENT BUILDING STATUS COMMENTS 
Professional 
Development 
Specialist  
(1.0 FTE) 

Admin Instructional 
Services 

Washington SC Closing Date 
02/19/2021 

New FTE 

Administrative 
Specialist (0.1 FTE) 

Classified Related Services Knappa School 
District 

Open until 
filled 

New FTE 

BVIS Technology 
Specialist (1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Related 
Services/Vision 
Team 

Washington SC Closing Date 
01/04/2021 

Replacement for 
Jenna Beresheim 

Early Childhood Licensed EI/ECSE Beaverton ECC Closing Date Replacement for 

NW Regional Education Services District 
Human Resources Office 

5825 NE Ray Circle • Hillsboro, Oregon 97124 •(503) 614-1486 •(503) 614-1409 
 

Personnel Report 
January 10, 2021 – February 9, 2021 



Education Specialist 
(1.0 FTE) 

02/10/2021 Anne Shoepe 

 
ADVERTISED VACANCIES continued 

Professional Learning 
Coach/TOSA 
 (1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Instructional 
Services 

Washington SC Closing Date 
02/24/2021 

New FTE 

Registered Nurse  
(.1579 FTE) 

Licensed Related Services Nestucca School 
District 

Open until 
filled 

Ongoing 
recruitment 

Speech Language 
Pathologist (1.0 FTE) 

Licensed EI/ECSE Columbia SC Open until 
filled 

Ongoing 
recruitment 

Registered Nurse  
(1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Related Services Tigard-Tualatin 
School District 

Open until 
filled 

Currently filled by 
contractor 

Physical Therapist 
(1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Related Services Multiple locations Open until 
filled 

Ongoing 
recruitment 

Occupational 
Therapist (1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Related Services Multiple locations Open until 
filled 

Ongoing 
recruitment 

Bilingual (Spanish) 
Instructional 
Assistant (0.85 FTE) 

Classified EI/ECSE Columbia SC Closing Date 
02/19/2021 

Date Available 
03/01/2021 

School Based 
Administrative 
Assistant (1.0 FTE) 

Classified EI/ECSE Columbia 
Academy 

Closing Date 
02/12/2021 

Replacement for 
Valerie Lane-
White 

Speech Language 
Pathologist (1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Special Student 
Services 

Washington SC Open until 
filled 

 

Speech Language 
Pathologist (1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Special Student 
Services 

Beaverton ECC Open until 
filled 

Replacement for 
Kathryn Vsetecka 

Speech Language 
Pathologist (1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Special Student 
Services 

Scappoose SD Open until 
filled 

 

Teacher of Visually 
Impaired (1.0 FTE) 

Licensed Special Student 
Services 

Multiple locations Open until 
filled 

Ongoing 
recruitment 

ASL Interpreter 
(0.8125) 

Classified Related Services Sherwood SD Open until 
filled 

New FTE 

 



REPORTS 
& 

DISCUSSIONS



February 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors  

FR: Johnna N. Timmes, Executive Director Instructional Services

 RE: Northwest Regional Educator Network (NREN)

EXPLANATION: In September of 2019, NWRESD was awarded a $2.6M grant from the 
Educator Advancement Council (EAC) to act as fiscal agent and facilitator of the Northwest 
Regional Educator Network (NREN) Coordinating Body. This group, comprised of 54% 
classroom educators from across our four county region, convene to determine a regional 
focus for allocation of the awarded professional development grant dollars using an 
Improvement Science framework approach.

This presentation will update the NWRESD Board of Directors on where the work is to date 
and plans for implementation in the future.

PRESENTER(S): Dr. Mariana Zaragoza, NREN Coordinator
 

SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS: Attached to this cover sheet: 

NREN Update Slide Deck

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

N/A

N/A



REN Updates



Columbia, Clatsop, Tillamook 
and Washington Counties

NREN Coordinating Body
13 members

54% Teachers
51% Educators of color

Representatives from
● District administrators
● Higher Education
● Federally recognized Tribe
● Community Organizations

Region A: Northwest REN

Region

# Of School 
Districts/Eligible 

Members
Educators 

Served

A 20 5,921



Columbia, Clatsop, Tillamook 
and Washington Counties

NREN Coordinating Body
32 members

100% Educators
97% Educators of color

Representatives from
● Educators
● District administrators

BIPoC Partner Committee
Participating Educators

Culturally Responsive Coordinator
TOSA

ELD specialist
Professional Learning Specialist

8th Grade Humanities teacher and Equity Committee
Band director, building equity coordinator, DELT student 

pillar, Asian Student Union advisor
Teachers

Assistant Principal
Spanish Teacher

Special Education- resource
Principal

Health & Health Sciences CTE Teacher
School Social Worker

First Grade Dual Language Teacher
Student Manager
School Counselor

Kindergarten Teacher
Superintendent

Instructional Assistant/ VP of Classified Union
4th Grade Classroom Teacher

Spanish Lit Kinder Teacher
Speech-Language Pathologist

ECSE Teacher

Participating Districts

Beaverton
Clatskanie

Forest Grove
Hillsboro
NWRESD

Clatsop Community College
Rainier

St. Hellens
Tigard-Tualatin

Tillamook



Across our region the 
number of educators of 
color are very low. In 
order to create change 
in school environments 
that will support and 
honor people of color, 
we will focus our 
effects on retention 
and recruitment.

By June 2022, we will 
increase the retention 
of educators of color in 
our region from __% 
from __%. And 
educators in our district 
from __% to __%.  

Allocated resources, articulated 
roles, and distributed leadership in 
recruiting, retaining, and supporting 
new teachers and admin, specifically 
new teachers and admin of color.

AIM Primary Drivers
Secondary Drivers

HR Practices

Change Ideas

Transforming HR Practices

 Regional mentors of color 
for educators of color

Equity coach for administrators 
who need support 
operationalizing their equity 
goals through actionable 
measured next steps

Regional expansion of affinity groups 
with money to test change ideas

NREN Theory of Change 

Allocated resources, articulated 
roles, and distributed leadership 
in recruiting, retaining, and 
supporting new teachers and 
admin, specifically new teachers 
and admin of color.

Equity learning is actionable, 
multi tiered, results in changes to 
practice, policy and is everyone’s 
responsibility 

Regional Mentors of Color

Culturally Sustain Supports

Culturally sustaining support

Professional Learning for School 
Administrators

Engaging in critical white 
studies rooted in transformative 

and social approach

Educators of color are among 
other educators of color

 Critical white 
Allyship/Group/ Team 

Studies



Common Pitfalls Continuous Improvement 

Start at scale Start small

Reflect at the end of the year Learn fast to implement well 

Solutionitis Change ideas from human experience, 
research, seeing the system 

Top-down decisions User-based decisions 

This is the right answer Possibly wrong, definitely incomplete 

Add to the existing system Change the existing system 

Fidelity of implementation Integrity of implementation 

Not much attention to implementation Attention to implementation 



Seeing the Whole System

Current practice: New system practice:

Overhauling programs CB learned what produced the 
outcomes in the system and “why”

External program evaluators CB members examined data, used 
relevant research, and conducted 
empathy interviews, hosted listening 
sessions to address the problem

Teachers, principals, and education 
leaders are “users” of the research

Fall 2020, educators will regularly 
engage in improvement networks and 
bring their expertise to the table to solve 
specific problems



Findings in 2020



Evidence of the Benefits of a Diverse 
Educator Workforce

Longitudinal Trends in Diverse Educator 
Recruitment and Retention

System Shifts Needed for Systemic Reforms to 
Recruit and Retain Educators of Color



Centering BIPoC Educator Voices

Empathy Interviews

BIPoC Listening Sessions

Empathy Interviews



Regional Plan for Improvement

AIM



Seeing the Whole System

Current practice: New system practice:

Overhauling programs CB learned what produced the 
outcomes in the system and “why”

External program evaluators CB members examined data, used 
relevant research, and conducted 
empathy interviews, hosted listening 
sessions to address the problem

Teachers, principals, and education 
leaders are “users” of the research

Spring 2021 into Fall 2021, educators 
will regularly engage in improvement 
networks and bring their expertise to 
the table to solve specific problems



Elevated Change Ideas  

Implementation Year 1: 2020-2021

Equity coach for administrators who need support operationalizing their 
equity goals through actionable measured next steps

 Regional mentors of color for educators of color

Regional Expansion of affinity groups with money to test change ideas

Transforming HR Practices that might look like
● Forming a diverse task force rooted in Human Resource Equity Practices
● Collect pre and post data related to educators of color and their experience 

going through hiring process and reasons for leaving
● Hiring task force includes people of color in educator and leadership roles

Forming critical White Allyship/anti-racist/group/team studies



REN NWRESD

Change idea name Mentors of Color for Educators of Color 

Goal(s) of change idea 1. BIPoC Mentees and their district BIPoC mentors will build social capital by connecting to a larger 
community of surrounding district BIPoC mentees and mentors.

2. BIPoC mentors will feel empowered to share and guide the mentees’ growth in instruction, 
leading equity, and navigating the systems.

3. BIPoC mentees identify their district as a place where they can grow as an educator
4. Long term relationships- building systems of support within the community

Primary driver connected 1. Equity learning is actionable, multi-tiered, results in changes to practice, policy and is 
everyone’s responsibility 

2. Teachers of color are among colleagues of color from pre-service through first five years of 
employment.  

What? (one sentence) Mentees and mentors together will create an action plan based on supports in the following areas: 

● support for instruction, leading equity, navigating systems, changing systems, emotional 
support, career path support, and instructional support

Who? Total number of educators recruiting: 
40 mentors and 40 mentees 

Signed up so far:
Hillsboro, Beaverton, Sherwood, Tigard-Tualatin,  Forest 
Grove

Recruitment ● Call for recruitment of mentors and mentees will go live January 4th and close January 18th



REN NWRESD

Change idea name Transforming Human Resource Practices # of PDSA cycles 

Goal(s) of change idea  HR directors work to center racial equity in school district HR policies and practices; anti-racist work 
explored through the context of HR

Primary driver connected 1. Equity learning is actionable, multi tiered, results in changes to practice, policy and is 
everyone’s responsibility 

2. Allocated resources, articulated roles, and distributed leadership in recruiting, retaining, and 
supporting new teachers and admin, specifically new teachers and admin of color.

What? (one sentence) Participating HR personnel will engage in professional learning that includes self- reflection and 
interpersonal work on becoming equitable practices

● PDSA Cycles will be designed to test the learning and test the outcomes of make changes to HR 
policies

● Participants will be asked to share a policy and center racial equity

Who? -Total number of educators starting 
with 20 (1 member of HR personnel 
from each district)
-Currently have 17 participants

Districts currently signed up: 
Beaverton, Hillsboro, Forest Grove, Nestucca Valley, 
NWRESD, Scappoose, Sherwood, St. 
Helens,Tigard-Tualatin

Recruitment? 
● Continued recruitment



REN NWRESD 

Change idea name Equity Learning # of PDSA cycles (as of 11.12.20) 

Goal(s) of change idea Bring learning and awareness of racial equity to rural communities. The long term goal is to start equity 
teams and/or affinity spaces in districts new to racial equity work. 

Primary driver connected Equity learning is actionable, multi tiered, results in changes to practice, policy and is everyone’s 
responsibility 

What? (one sentence) Find a equity, coach to support the foundational learning of district staff to help them elevate change 
ideas that will support the systemic redesign of classrooms and schools 

Who? Total number of educators: 8 Which districts are participating?
● St Helens 

Current steps:
● Currently interviewing contractors for equity coaching for 8 facilitators in St. Helens and equity 

learning for staff
● Looking for other district participation
● Please see call for more information

https://docs.google.com/document/d/16zvd6wWlviIRHcR456VAEQPfuyK-I5IAkN7lO9uhNF0/edit?usp=sharing


Questions?



February 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors  

FR: Sarah Pope, Deputy Superintendent

 RE: Reopening Plans and Vaccine Updates

EXPLANATION: At our upcoming board meeting we will review updates to NWRESD 
Reopening Plans, as well as the latest information on region-wide vaccine rollouts.

PRESENTER(S): Sarah Pope and Dan Goldman 

SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS: Attached to this cover sheet: 

DECK: NWRESD Reopening Plans  and Vaccine Updates: Feb 2021

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

N/A

N/A



February 2021 Board Meeting | Deputy Superintendent Pope

1



Agenda
● Vaccination Update
● Ready Schools, Safe Learners Guidance Revisions
● NWRESD’s Reopening Plans

2
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● An overwhelming majority of our staff plan to get the vaccine
● ~10% of staff report not getting enough info about the vaccine effectiveness

○

4



● Tillamook County staff offered first dose on January 29, second dose 
scheduled February 26

● Clatsop County staff offered first dose week of February 1, second dose 
scheduled week of March 1 

● Columbia County staff offered first dose January 30-February 2, second dose 
scheduled last weekend in February 

5



● Three ESDs are leading the coordination effort with districts in Washington, 
Clackamas and Multnomah Counties

● Major hospital organizations leading the effort (OHSU, Kaiser, Legacy & 
Providence)

● Oregon Convention Center 9-6pm, scaling up to 5,000 vaccines/day

6



Wave 1: (first dose week of January 27) 
● Employees providing limited-in-person instruction
● Elementary school teachers for Pre-K to 1st grade and support staff, specialists, administration at 

elementary schools. 
● Bus drivers, custodians, and nutrition service employees
● Emergency Child Care facility operating in person, and approved by the state (home or center)

Wave 2: (first dose week of February 3)
● Teachers and support staff 2nd grade – 5th grade

Wave 3: (first does week of February 17)
● Teachers, support staff, specialists and administration of 6th grade – 8th grade

Wave 4: (TBD)
● Teachers and support staff 9-12, coaches, substitutes, other district staff 

7
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The Oregon Department of Education’s guidance stresses:
● Oregon will be living with the virus until there is widespread immunity, which is 

many, many months off.
● We want to ensure the health of our communities and prevent the virus from 

spreading.
● The best tools to protect individuals are physical distancing, face coverings, 

and hygiene.
● This means ensuring young people and our school staff take necessary steps 

to mitigate risk and protect themselves and their families. 

9



● The Oregon Department of Education’s guidance encourages and creates the 
conditions for staff and students to establish safety routines and cohorts that 
promote a stable learning environment and safeguard against a transition 
back to distance learning. 

● Here’s what that means for NWRESD: Operational Blueprint

● Small cohorts & careful cohort tracking 
● Mask requirement for everyone 2+
● PPE
● Social distancing 
● Robust entry screening & strictly enforcing stay home when sick 
● HVAC meets all OSHA standards hand hygiene 

10

https://www.nwresd.org/training-and-resources/operating-during-the-covid-19-pandemic/reopening-schools-plans


● Metrics are now advisory 
● Testing required if operating outside of the metrics and optional if not 
● Health metrics revised to align with other states, including Washington. 

Revision based on Harvard Global Health Institute.
● Designated lead at each school site (we will notify staff of who this is)
● Process for communicating concerns
● More rigorous screening protocol for students and staff
● Further defining cohorts, including as it relates to staff

11

https://globalhealth.harvard.edu/key-metrics-for-covid-suppression-researchers-and-public-health-experts-unite-to-bring-clarity-to-key-metrics-guiding-coronavirus-response/
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● Limited in person services approved: PT fittings, audiology exams, 
evaluations, & vision screenings

● To date, limited in person instruction approved for 65 students 

● Working on agreements with both unions for return to hybrid

● Goal: 4th quarter start hybrid, with itinerant staff following district’s model

15



Help fight community spread!

1. Wear a face covering
2. Keep 6+ feet of distance from 

others
3. Wash your hands frequently
4. Stay home when you are sick

16



ADMINISTRATIVE 
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COMMUNICATIONS BOARD REPORT 

Prepared by Kelsey Cardwell 

February 2021 

 
Translation and Interpretation Services 

Our ​translation and interpretation team​ grew recently! Adriana Carolina Parente and Carlos Tenorio Hughes 

will be working as a team to expand our region’s capacity to serve Spanish speaking families. Carlos, our 

veteran interpreter, recently hosted two interpreting basics training sessions for our bilingual front office staff, 

community partners, and others who find themselves often in a formal or informal role as an interpreter. The 

duo will be translating more of our mission-critical documents, such as ​our newly translated strategic plan​. 
 

Newsletters and Recent Communications 

● The ​February Monthly Messenger​ featured the ​newly published annual report​, the ​Regional Educator 

Network “change ideas”​, the equity affinity group coordinated by our ​Equity and Family Partnerships 

team​ and more news from NWRESD. 

● In an ongoing partnership with Clackamas/Multnomah ESDs and tri-county health care systems, we 

helped coordinate communications to educators about the vaccine rollout and appointment 

scheduling in the Portland Metro Region. We also published a ​vaccine information page​ for educators 

across our region. 

● A recent Monday Memo​ to NWRESD staff provided more information on limited in-person instruction 

and other important internal news. 

https://www.nwresd.org/services-and-programs/translation-and-interpretation
https://www.nwresd.org/about-us/vision-and-strategic-plan
https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/ORNWRESD/bulletins/2bdd6ba
https://www.nwresd.org/about/annual-report-and-local-service-plan
https://www.nwresd.org/departments/instructional-services/professional-learning/regional-educator-network-ren
https://www.nwresd.org/departments/instructional-services/professional-learning/regional-educator-network-ren
https://www.nwresd.org/departments/office-of-the-superintendent/equity-diversity-and-inclusion
https://www.nwresd.org/departments/office-of-the-superintendent/equity-diversity-and-inclusion
https://www.nwresd.org/training-and-resources/vaccination-resources
https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/ORNWRESD/bulletins/2bfbfd1


 

 

 

SPECIAL STUDENT SERVICES  

Early Intervention/Early Childhood Special Education 

February 2021 

Monthly Board Report 
For more information, please contact Nancy Ford, nancyf@nwresd.k12.or.us 

 

On Thursday, February 11th, the Early Intervention/Early Childhood Special Education program staff received an 

overview of the ECSE Model Redesign. The early childhood special program is moving to a Multi-Tier Systems 

of Support (MTSS) framework. In an early childhood MTSS framework, the needs of every child, regardless of 

ability, eligibility statue, are addressed by integrating assessment and intervention within a multi-level framework 

to maximize outcomes.  

Based on these principles: 

 All children can learn and achieve when they are provided with high quality services and supports to 

match their needs 

 Instruction/intervention focuses on both academic and behavioral goals 

 Children not making sufficient progress are identified early and provided with a level of instructional 

intensity to match their needs 

 Interventions are designed by collaborative teams that include parents, teachers, instructional staff and 

administrators and are guided by student data  

 Children’s responses to interventions are continuously monitored and data-based decision processes are 

used for making adjustments to instruction, supports and placement 

 Interventions are based on evidence-based practices implemented with fidelity 

 

Tier 1:  Anticipate 70% of children will participate at the universal level 

 Universal high quality supports provided by caregivers, childhood practitioners and/or preschool teachers; 

examples: balanced schedule of child-led and adult-led activities, intentional teaching of behavioral 

expectations, planned routines as teaching opportunities, access to high interest activities that allow 

children to develop and refine skills, behavior specific praise, language rich environments that promote 

social communication and higher level thinking 

 

Tier 2:  Anticipates 20% of children will need additional levels of individualize support 

 Practices implemented when data shows children may need additional support after “a quality check” has 

been completed for implementation of Tier 1 strategies and supports 

 Includes continuation (and possibly increased frequency) of Tier 1 strategies and supports 

 Includes additional differentiated supports; examples: adding a specific attending cue, embedded 

instruction, small and large group direct instruction with prompting and individualized reinforcement for 

targeted skills, curriculum for addressing prevention of challenging behaviors by reinforcing replacement 

skills/socially appropriate behavior. 

 

Tier 3:  Anticipates 10% of children will need intensive services 
 Additional highly individualized strategies implemented in addition to Tier 1 and Tier 2 for children who 

need a higher level of support as indicated by data collected on individualized goals 

 Remediates challenges and fosters new skills through a function-based approach 

 Utilizes a variety of evidence-based prompting and reinforcement strategies; examples: response 

prompting procedures, chaining, naturalistic language instruction, discrete trial, pivotal response training, 

reciprocal imitation training, one-to-one direct teaching of specific skills  

 

mailto:nancyf@nwresd.k12.or.us


 

February 2021 

Equity and Family Partnerships 
Administrative Report 

 

Introduction 
The Office of Equity and Family Partnership’s purpose is to deepen NWRESD’s commitment 
to equity and antiracism. 

Strategic Plan 

We are developing and implementing tactics and steps to accomplish the strategies of the 
Strategic Plan goals. Our office is represented on the NWRESD Delivery Team to support 
the embedded equity work of each of the departments.  

Regional Racial Equity Learning and Partnerships 

We are part of the Oregon Equity Directors collaboration. This is a group of equity 
colleagues who support one another in the areas of equity and antiracism.  We meet 
bi-monthly.  Members of the team are supporting each other in support of newly adopted 
All Students Belong implementation, addressing LGBTQ needs of our component districts, 
creating professional development to support equity advancements, and recruitment, 
hiring, onboarding, retention, & promotion of staff of color. 

Professional Development Support 

As interest in antiracism, equity, and allyship (co-conspirators) increases for our component 
districts, we are preparing a menu of resources to support.  Having two Professional 
Development Specialist in Equity and Family Partnerships will allow us to meet these 
demands and position us to lead in this work. 

Equity Learning Teams 

Dates have been set to build the frameworks to establish the Equity Learning Teams at 
NWRESD schools, sites, and departments with our leadership team.  These teams will 
support continuing professional learning for all staff and inform policies, practices, and 
decision-making. 

 
Submitted by: 
Sharif Liwaru, Director, Equity and Family Partnerships 
sliwaru2@nwresd.k12.or.us 

 

 



 

 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES BOARD REPORT 

 

Prepared by Joseph Hernandez 

February 2021 

 

Strategic plan updates: 

With the adoption of the recent strategic plan for the next five years (2020-2025), HR 

has been tasked with many elements that will aid in moving towards equitable practices 

within our agency. Notably, we are tasked with diversifying the recruitment process 

through strategic goal 1.4. This work is critical and will be rolled out in various ways 

through partnerships and collaboration. Examples include: 

  

Collaboration with NREN​: 
 

The Northwest Regional Educator Network launched its first regional pilot change idea 

connected to transforming Human Resources Practices. Serilda Summers-McGee from 

Workplace Change and Joseph J. Hernandez, Chief Human Resources Officer at 

NWRESD, led a session on Wednesday, Jan. 27, for dozens of human resources 

professionals from our region. 

 

Topics included the strategic role and purpose of human resources and understanding 

the role of human resource in culture change. They also discussed how human 

resources can influence culture through levers, such as organizational design, policies, 

procedures and practices. 

  

All of these elements were discussed with diversity and equity integration in mind in 

hopes that we can begin to transform how human resources work can explicitly embed 

equity elements in various practices. The goal of these sessions is to help districts recruit 

and retain Black, Indigenous and People of Color (BIPOC) educators and staff. 
 
Other HR News: 

I wanted to share an update on the Assistant Director of Human Resources role. It is 

hoped that we will have a finalist selected to begin work in March.  



   INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES BOARD REPORT 
    Prepared by Johnna N. Timmes 

         February 2021 
 

Early Learning 

Our CCR&R team kicked off two new cohorts of a total of 29 early care and education professionals 
this month! We have a group of 24 professionals working together to complete their Child 
Development Associates (CDA) and 5 professionals participating in our College cohort. A CDA serves 
as a credential for professional recognition in the field of Early Care and Education. Through the 
process of earning a CDA, an educator will develop competencies nurturing the emotional, physical, 
intellectual, and social development of children. For our college cohort, participants will be enrolled 
at no cost in a three-credit course on College Success through Portland Community College and 
complete a roadmap to apply for a degree program and scholarships in Early Childhood Education. In 
both cohorts, our staff will gather professionals together for supported peer-learning and provide 
one-on-one check-ins as we navigate higher education and professional learning together. To support 
their completion of this work, each participant received a Chromebook, technology training/support, 
and materials to complete their coursework.  

See all the fun 
things we were 
able to distribute 
to 29 of those 
who care for our 
youngest 
learners! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The NW Parenting Hub has moved to NW Regional ESD. NW Parenting is funded by the Oregon 
Community Foundation as part of a multi-year initiative to expand parenting education programs in 
your community. The goal is to support parents in their critical role as children’s first and most 
important teachers by helping communities build stronger, more coordinated parenting education 
services. We will work with community partners and school districts to achieve their goals. 
Organizations will build the region’s parenting education infrastructure for all parenting education 
efforts and expand offerings of best practice parenting education programs for parents of children 



age prenatal to age 18. NW Parenting will develop a regional framework for parenting education over 
the next year, identifying needs and gaps, and short-and longer-term strategies to address them. 
  
To help build the parent education infrastructure, please complete​ this survey​ that will assist us in 
identifying availability as well as strengths and gaps in parenting education programming in our 
community. The survey should only take about 15-20 minutes and you can exit the survey at any 
time. 
 
We look forward to working with you over the next three years to enhance opportunities and access 
to parenting education programs. If you have any questions about the survey or the hub initiative, 
please contact Elena Barreto, ​ebarreto@nwresd.org​. 
 

 

Northwest Promise 

The NW Promise team is continuing to work to serve your district's career and college pathway and 
dual credit needs. Our focus for the next few months will be meeting with principals and district 
leaders to survey your data and programming needs. We are also excited to rollout Oregon 
Employability Skills (OES) training. OES is training and curriculum for teachers to help students build 
the soft skills required to navigate the world of work they will face. T​eachers in participating schools 
are eligible to take OES online training at no charge this year. We have already helped several schools 
to utilize and align this content to meet their unique goals. We look forward to meeting with you and 
your career and college pathways leaders soon! 
 

 

STEM/Career & Technical Education 

The Northwest STEM Hub has several focused areas of programming for the remainder of the 
biennium: early learning STEM professional development, NGSS supports for educators, expanding 
after school out of school STEM  programming for enrichment, and expanding digital literacy and 
computer science programs. If your school district or community partners are interested in any of 
these areas or have ideas about how to implement STEM into your school's programming, please 
reach out to Myronda. 
 

 

Research, Assessment, and Evaluation 

Columbia County Social Emotional Learning Screening 
 

Columbia County districts collaborated last year in a plan to give the ​Devereux 
Student Strengths Assessment (DESSA)​.  COVID-19 quickly disrupted the 
spring implementation.  
 
In December, districts regrouped and learned how to use this ​CASEL​-aligned 
SEL screening tool in a Comprehensive Distance Learning environment. 
Teachers are completing their initial screenings and met in January to review 
their own students’ data and to create a plan for supporting students’ 
social-emotional growth. 

https://oregonstate.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_1X2ORewbl5RYukC
mailto:ebarreto@nwresd.org
https://apertureed.com/products-solutions/dessa-system-2/dessa-overview/
https://apertureed.com/products-solutions/dessa-system-2/dessa-overview/
https://casel.org/sel-framework/


Outdoor School 

Outdoor School staff are very close to finishing our comprehensive distance learning (CDL) resources 
that will be used with students beginning in late February.  We are scheduling schools for 18 and 24 
hour CDL Outdoor School experiences.  Approximately one-third of each student's experience will be 
synchronous time with our staff and volunteers leading activities and introducing lessons that 
students will spend the other two-thirds of the time completing during asynchronous time.  In 
preparation to host students, we have begun a hiring process for Outdoor School @ Home 
Instructors.  We plan to have five teams of instructors, led by our site supervisors, working with 
students this spring.  We are also working to recruit high school student volunteers to assist us during 
synchronous work with students.  In addition to hosting this year's 6th graders, we'll be providing an 
Outdoor School for many of the 7th graders who missed out on their experience last spring due to 
COVID-19.  We're going to be very busy this spring! 
 
With a tremendous amount of help from NWRESD's amazing grant writer, Crystal Greene, we have 
submitted an application for funding from the OSU Extension Service Outdoor School Program.  OSU 
Extension developed an equity, diversity & inclusion grant program for Outdoor School providers in 
Oregon.  Our program has requested approximately $135,000 to accomplish the following goals: 

● Adopt a culturally responsive, equity-driven curriculum and implement it across all Outdoor 
School sites during the 2021-2022 school year. 

● Outdoor School leadership team and site staff have a common grounding in racial equity 
and how they can work to disrupt systems of oppression and privilege.  By winter 2021, 
100% of leadership and site staff have engaged in extensive professionally-led equity 
training tied to our work, vision and objectives. 

● Each Outdoor School site has the capacity to fully implement identified EDI actions with 
fidelity and focus.  By fall 2021, site-specific EDI Leads will be hired to spearhead and track 
the work as part of an EDI staffing pilot project. 

● We continue to make progress on our equity journey as evidenced by program evaluation 
data.  By spring 2022, our program has implemented specific, site-based strategies to 
disrupt inequitable systems, increase access and inclusion, celebrate diversity and center 
equity and the student experience. 

● Students learn and thrive in culturally responsive and relevant learning environments.  By 
spring 2022, systems are set up to track both qualitative and quantitative data on multiple 
measures to assess student learning and experience with a focus on the experiences of 
historically marginalized communities including students of color, students with disabilities 
and emerging bilingual students.  

 

Professional Learning 

Reimagining Schools Series (RISS) 
● The RISS theme for February is Learning From Our Community. In recognition of the 

uncertainty and transitions that define our current education landscape, we will take a deeper 
dive into empathy conversations and listening to student voices. Participants will also use a 
protocol to workshop challenges in their practice, tapping into the experience and insights of 
their peers to generate potential improvements. 
 
 



9th Grade Success 
● The 9GS work continues, with our February network convening on 2.17 from 1-4pm. We will 

focus on helping teams make sense of their quantitative and student qualitative data from the 
first half of the school year. We will then set teams up to test changes to move towards more 
equitable grading practices this spring. The student network - which consists of nearly 50 high 
school students from across the region - will also convene and begin to focus on launching 
small student-led change projects within their school communities. Additionally, we continue 
to support teams via coaching and cross-network sessions strengthen connected and caring 
communities through the second half of the school year.  
 

REN 
● On January 27, the Northwest Regional Educator Network launched a regional change idea 

(pilot) transforming HR practices led by Chief Human Resources Officer Serilda 
Summers-McGee from Workplace Change. In attendance were seventeen human resource 
professionals from ten districts located in Clatsop, Columbia, Tillamook and Washington 
counties. The virtual gathering of HR professionals covered topics related to the strategic role 
of HR, understanding HR's role in culture change, the purpose of HR and HR's levers of 
influence culture and policies, procedures and practices. All these elements were discussed 
with an equity lens in hopes that we can begin to transform how HR work can explicitly 
embed equity elements in various practices. Through these monthly sessions, it is hoped that 
the Northwest REN will move closer to meeting its AIM of increasing retention and 
recruitment representation of BIPOC educators and staff. 

 
School Safety and Prevention 

● The SSPS team continues to work on collaborating with districts in each county to assess 
needs and plan for next year.  We met with SPED Directors from Tillamook, Clatsop, and 
Columbia counties to share the work that can be supported and collaborate around Behavior 
Assessment Teams, Suicide Prevention Plans, and attendance resources.  We are also working 
with Vernonia and Clatskanie school districts as they partner with Trauma Informed Oregon in 
the “TIC in rural schools” project starting this month and ending in August. Future projects 
include supporting SLPs in all counties with Suicide Awareness PD, collaboration with the 
Columbia County Childhood Trauma team, and strategic planning for 2021-2022 school year 
supports. 
 

 

 



SPECIAL STUDENT SERVICES  
Monthly Board Report  

February 2021  
For more information, please contact Cathy Jensen, ​cjensen@nwresd.k12.or.us  

 
Audiology Evaluations Continue. ​The NWRESD Audiology program continues to see children for 
initial or ongoing evaluation needs through the safety protocol that has been established for the 
Washington Service Center. Children are able to be seen for evaluations, for equipment troubleshooting, 
and for purchases of hearing aids and earmolds. 

The Groner D/HH program​ continues to serve its students through comprehensive distance learning 
(CDL). While CDL has been challenging for the youngest of our Deaf students, we continue to provide 
them with direct instruction as well as a variety of signed stories and visual learning games. CDL has 
provided us with opportunities to connect directly with parents as partners in student learning.  

Speech-Language Pathologist (SLP) Team:​ SLP team members are serving approximately 80% of 
students via telepractice and collaborating with educational teams to serve and/or connect with the 
remaining student population. As a program, we have been closely monitoring accessibility and quality 
of telepractice services, as well as student and family needs. 

School Psychology Interns:​ On January 11, Tina Meier-Nowell presented to Lewis & Clark College 
students promoting NWRESD as a location for internship opportunities for the upcoming school year. 
Offers have been made to potential interns interviewed for positions in Washington and Tillamook 
counties. 

Professional Learning:  

● During the last week of January, team members attended an Assessment Center Health and 
Safety Protocol training with Debbie Gillis, RN in preparation to offer in-person evaluations for 
special education eligibility. Although specialists have been able to complete many 
assessments virtually, as students begin to return to in-person instruction in our region  the 
need for in-person evaluations has increased. Our providers will now be able to conduct 
assessments safely and effectively in any setting. 

● School Psychology Team member Damon Lorenz is beginning his administrative program's 
practicum and has been getting involved in leadership projects at both NWRESD and 
Tigard-Tualatin School District, where he is assigned. 

● On January 11-14, 2021, NWRESD hosted a virtual Autism Diagnostic Observation Schedule 
(ADOS-2)  training in collaboration with the University of Washington. The event was full with 
participants from our region and throughout Oregon in attendance. The ADOS-2 is considered 
the "gold standard" of autism assessments. 

Pacific and Cascade Academy Graduations:​ Three Cascade students graduated this semester and 
there was a virtual celebration for them on January 28. Pacific and Cascade Academies have submitted 
12 students for Limited In Person Instruction, and staff are getting ready to start providing those services 
later this month.  
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TECHNOLOGY BOARD REPORT 

Prepared by Stuart Long 

Internet Connectivity 

This past month saw a significant amount of activity around efforts on Internet Connectivity. 

Most significantly we are partnering with the Technology leaders at InterMountain ESD, High 

Desert ESD, Portland Public, and Gresham Barlow School Districts to organize our survey efforts 

for student Internet connectivity.  The goal is to have a shared survey question that can be used 

by districts large and small and provide consistent and comparable information across much of 

the state.  The survey was developed in conjunction with Brian Bain and the NWRESD data 

team as well as the CTA Synergy support team to ensure the effectiveness and ease of data 

collection.  The data will be used to support our strategic plan to increase student internet 

connectivity in the region and we will begin connecting with districts to facilitate rollout in the 

coming weeks. 

 

In addition we are also supporting a pivot by schools as they prepare for the return of students 

and an expected increase in usage of the Internet driven mostly by online meetings via Zoom, 

Google Meet, or other software while in school buildings.  We have fielded several requests for 

increased bandwidth and are working with both traditional providers like Comcast and newer 

providers like Starlink to improve school connections. 

 

Operation Efficiency 

 

Superintendent Goldman signs hundreds of contracts each year to allow districts and other 

agencies to purchase technology services from NWRESD.  As part of our strategic goals for this 

year Technology was asked to work with the Fiscal department to increase the efficiency of this 

process and reduce this from hundreds of contracts to a few dozen.  Thanks to the efforts of 

our Departmental Support Staff: Jessa Reinhardt  & Polly Grant  and in a strong partnership 

with the team in Fiscal Services, we have been able to consolidate our contracting paperwork 

down to a single process for most of our agreements.  This new process will summarize multiple 

contracted services and span multiple years in a single document.  The new agreement heads 



 
next for final edits and approval with our whole Operations Team and we expect it to be in use 

by the spring. 
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February 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors  

FR:  Lauren Slyh O'Driscoll, Board Secretary

 RE: Classified Employee Appreciation Week 2021

EXPLANATION: Classified Employee Appreciation Week is celebrated every year during the 
first full week of March. Approval of Board Resolution 20-003 formally recognizes the 
week of March 1-5, 2021 as Classified Appreciation Week.

PRESENTER(S): Dan Goldman 

SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS: Attached to this cover sheet: 

Board Resolution 20-003: Classified Appreciation Week 2021

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Motion to approve resolution

I move we approve Resolution 20-003 as presented/amended.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-003 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION 

SERVICE DISTRICT IN CLATSOP, COLUMBIA, TILLAMOOK, AND WASHINGTON COUNTIES, 
OREGON PROCLAIMS MARCH 1-5, 2021​ ​CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION WEEK 

WHEREAS ​, the education of youth is essential to the future of our community, state, country and 
world; and 

WHEREAS ​, classified employees are the backbone of our public education system; and 

WHEREAS ​, classified employees work directly with students, educators, parents, volunteers, 
business partners and community members; and 

WHEREAS ​, classified employees support the smooth operation of offices, the safety and 
maintenance of buildings and property, and the safe transportation, healthy nutrition and direct 
instruction of students; and 

WHEREAS ​, our community depends upon and trusts classified employees to serve students; and 

WHEREAS ​, classified employees, with their diverse talents and true dedication, nurture students 
throughout their school years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED ​ that the NWRESD Board of Directors proclaims March 1-5, 
2021, to be ​CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION WEEK​; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED ​ that the NWRESD Board of Directors strongly encourages all members 
of our community and partners to join in this observance, recognizing the dedication and hard work 
of these individuals. 

This Resolution is effective immediately upon adoption this 16th day of February, 2021. 

By: __________________________________ 
Chair 

ATTEST​: 

By: __________________________________ 
Superintendent 



February 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors  

FR: Tami Montague, CFO 

RE: Annual Audit Report 

EXPLANATION: A representative from Pauly Rogers & Company, NWRESD’s auditor of record, will 
present a summary the 2019-20 Comprehensive Annual Financial Statement (CAFR) and any 
audit findings and comments.    

PRESENTER(S): Tami Montague and a Pauly Rogers’ representative 

SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS: Attached to this cover sheet: 
NWRESD Board Communication Letter 
Northwest Regional ESD CAFR 2019-20 

RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to accept the audit as preented. 



PAULY, ROGERS AND Co., P.C. 
12700 SW 72nd Ave. ♦ Tigard, OR 97223 
(503) 620-2632 ♦ (503) 684-7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

October 08, 2020 
To the Board of Directors 
Northwest Regional Education Service District 
Washington County, Oregon 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the remaining fund information of Northwest Regional Education Service District (the District) 
for the year ended June 30, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards and Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as well as ce1tain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Purpose of the Audit 

Our audit was conducted using sampling, inquiries and analytical work to opine on the fair presentation of the 
basic financial statements and compliance with: 

• generally accepted accounting principles and auditing standards 
• the Oregon Municipal Audit Law and the related administrative rules 
• federal, state and other agency rules and regulations related to expenditures of federal awards 

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance 

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express 
opinions about whether the basic financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of 
the basic financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our engagement letter 
details our nonaudit services we provide; these services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered internal control over financial repmting in order to 
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial statements 
and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial repmting. 

As pa1t of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with ce1tain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of the basic 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions is not an 
objective of our audit. Also in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, we examined, on a test basis, evidence 
about compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB's Compliance Supplement 
applicable to each of the major federal programs for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance with 
those requirements. While our audit provided a reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal 
determination on compliance with those requirements. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic 
financial statements; therefore, our audit involved judgment about the number of transactions examined and the 
areas to be tested. 

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the District and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements and to design the nature, 
timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent 
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or ( 4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are 
attributable to the District or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the District. We also 
communicated any internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under professional 
standards. 

Results of Audit 

I. Audit opinion letter - an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements has been issued. This means 
we have given a "clean" opinion with no reservations. 

2. State minimum standards- We found no exceptions or issues requiring comment. 

3. Management letter - No separate management letter was issued. 

4. Federal Awards - We found no issues of non-compliance and no questioned costs. We have responsibility to 
review these programs and give our opinion on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and tests of 
the internal control system, compliance with laws and regulations, and general and specific requirements 
mandated by the various awards. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used are described in Note I to the basic financial statements. No new accounting policies 
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 
We noted no transactions entered into during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the basic financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of.the basic financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the basic financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the basic financial statements were Management's estimate of 
Receivables, PERS Pension Liability & Deferrals, OPEB asset/liability and deferrals for health insurance and 
RHIA, and Capital Asset depreciation which are based on estimated collectability of receivables, actuarial 
assumptions and useful lives of assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these 
estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The disclosures in the basic financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no difficulties in performing and completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements or determined that their effects are immaterial. In addition, 
none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, 
either individually or in the aggregate, taken as a whole. There were immaterial uncorrected misstatements noted 
during the audit which were discussed with management. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the basic financial statements or the 
auditors' report. We are pleased to rep01t that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested ce1tain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on ce1tain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the basic financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors' opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards with management each year prior to our retention as the auditors. However, these discussions occurred 
in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Required Supplementary Information 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the required supplementary information and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on it. 

Page 3 of5 



Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. 

Supplementary Information 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the basic financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine 
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in 
relation to our audit of the basic financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information 
to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 

Other Information 

We were not engaged to report on the other financial schedules, introductory or statistical sections, which 
accompany the basic financial statements but are not required supplementary information. Such information has 
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Matters - Future Accounting and Auditing Issues 

In order to keep you aware of new auditing standards issued by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants and accounting statements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), we 
have prepared the following summary of the more significant upcoming issues: 

GASB 87 -LEASES 

This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021, as extended by GASB 95. The 
primary objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the 
usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of ce1iain lease assets and liabilities 
for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or 
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease 
accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying 
asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use 
lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby 
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. 

GASB 89 - ACCOUNTING FOR INTEREST COST INCURRED BEFORE THE END OF A 
CONSTRUCTION PERIOD 

This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December I 5, 2020, as extended by GASB 95. The 
objectives of this Statement are to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets 
and the cost of borrowing for a repotiing period and to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before 
the end of a construction period. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted 
for in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Repo1iing Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 2989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, 
which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a 
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial 
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in 
a business-type activity or enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared 
using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a 

Page 4 of5 



Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C. 

construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund 
accounting principles. 

GASB 91 - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, as extended by GASB 95. The 
primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of repo1ting conduit debt obligations by 
issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) 
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement 
achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a 
conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial 
reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. 

Best Practices - Not Significant Deficiencies 

1. Fidelity Insurance Coverage 

Cash balances exceed fidelity (employee honesty) insurance coverage of $1,000,000. While this may be 
an appropriate level of coverage, we recommend each year that the elected officials (Board) determine if 
this is an acceptable level of risk based on the potential liability. 

2. Management Communications 

During our review of management communication, we found some employees are unaware of a 
confidential method of informing management of suspicious activity without fear of retribution or 
negative consequences. We recommend a confidential avenue of communication be maintained if not 
already in place and that employees be trained on its existence and use. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management and is not intended 
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified paities. 

~'Z 72 7216lri 
Roy R Rogers, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL  
EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
 
 5825 NE Ray Circle 
 Hillsboro OR 97124 
Phone: 503-614-1428 Fax: 503-614-1440 

 
October 8, 2020  
 
To the Board of Directors of 
Northwest Regional Education Service District 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

Oregon Municipal Audit Law requires that an independent audit be made of all District funds within six 
months following the close of the fiscal year.  Pursuant to this requirement, the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report of the Northwest Regional Education Service District (the District) for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2020 is hereby submitted. 

The District’s Fiscal Services Department prepared this report. The responsibility for the completeness, 
fairness, and accuracy of the data presented and all accompanying disclosures rests with the District.  To 
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the District’s management has established a 
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to both protect assets from loss, theft, or misuse 
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the District’s financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP).  Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the District’s 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.  As management, we assert 
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material 
respects. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

Designed to meet the needs of a broad spectrum of financial statement readers, this Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) is divided into five major sections: 

The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s organizational chart, the Certificate 
of Achievement awarded for the District’s 2019 CAFR and the District’s Board of Directors.  

The Financial Section includes the Independent Auditor’s Report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A), the basic financial statements including notes to the basic financial statements, required 
supplementary information, and other supplementary information including the combining and individual 
fund financial statements as well as other financial schedules. 

The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a 
multi-year basis. 

The Single Audit Section includes reports from the independent auditor regarding compliance requirements 
of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement for 
major federal programs. 
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The Compliance Section contains the independent auditor’s report required by the Minimum Standards for 
Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter 
of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The District’s 
MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors, beginning on page 7. 

PROFILE OF THE DISTRICT 

The Northwest Regional ESD is the largest and most diverse education service district in the state. Two of 
Oregon’s largest school districts - Beaverton and Hillsboro - reside in the urban parts of Washington County 
while many smaller, more rural districts reside along the Columbia River, Coast Range Mountains and 
Pacific Ocean. The District’s service area includes 20 component school districts and more than 180 public 
schools in Clatsop, Columbia, Tillamook, and Washington counties - spanning approximately 3,500 square 
miles across the northwest corner of Oregon. The Regional Office is located in Hillsboro, with additional 
service centers located in Astoria, St. Helens, and Tillamook. 

Education service districts (ESDs) originated in Oregon's first laws establishing a system of public schools, 
and throughout the history of the state, governance and statutes concerning the mission of ESDs has 
remained constant:  "Education Service Districts assist school districts and the State of Oregon achieving 
Oregon's education goals by providing excellent and equitable educational opportunities for all Oregon 
public school students." Today, there are 19 ESDs serving Oregon’s 36 counties. 

The ESD is governed by a nine-member board consisting of five elected directors, each representing a 
specific geographic zone in the region, and four appointed directors from each of the following regional 
groups: higher education, social services, the business community, and one at-large member. Together, 
these volunteer community members work closely with the ESD’s superintendent to determine district 
policies and ensure the highest quality programs and services are being delivered to schools in the region. 

The Board of Directors has legal authority transacting all business coming within the jurisdiction of the 
education service district within the framework set by the State Legislature and State Board of Education. 
The Board also acts to provide a Local Service Plan of programs and services that are identified to meet the 
needs of the component school districts.  The daily functioning of the ESD is under the supervision of the 
Superintendent.  The Board is responsible for employing the Superintendent to administer the ESD. 

LOCAL SERVICE PLAN 

Every Oregon ESD, working with their component school districts, must annually develop a Local Service 
Plan (LSP) which determines how the State School Funds (SSF) will be used. Ninety percent of the SSF 
revenue received by an ESD is subject to this process. The Local Service Plan determines programs and 
services that the ESD will offer its component districts for the following fiscal year. 

The LSP must include services from at least the following categories: special education, technology, school 
improvement and administration. The LSP must also include any "entrepreneurial services" that the ESD 
intends to offer to any entity either outside of the ESD boundary or inside the ESD boundary but not a 
component school district. 

Under the Resolution Process, at least two-thirds of the school districts in an ESD, representing more than 
one-half of the student population, must approve the Local Service Plan. 
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Northwest Regional ESD uses the following methodology to distribute SSF revenues to component school 
districts (other Oregon ESDs use different models): 

10% of the ESD’s state support goes to operating the agency, and the remaining 90% is reserved for 
programs and services provided to our component school districts. 

25% of the 90% goes to Core Services - those services agreed upon by the districts that are offered by the 
ESD. In 2019-20 Core Services included: 

 Professional Development  
 Specific Technology Services 
 Home School Registration 
 Emergency Closure Network 
 Service Center Administration 

The remaining 75% of the 90% is allocated in Service Credits based on each component school district’s 
enrollment. The ESD offers a menu of services that districts may purchase using their Service Credits. In 
2019-20 the Local Service Plan Menu included: 

Instruction and School Services 

 Cascade Education Corps  
 Diverse Educator Pathway Program  
 Equity Professional Development 
 Fire Science  
 GED Services  
 NW Promise  
 Outdoor School  
 Truancy/Attendance 
 Willamette Promise 

Special Student Services 

 Deaf and Hard of Hearing Classroom 
 Social and Emotional Learning Schools  
 EI/ECSE Evaluations 
 Translators 
 Youth Transition Program (Clatsop County) 
 School Age ASD Evaluations 

Staffing Services 

 Contracts for Classified Personnel 
o ASL 
o Certified Occupational Therapists 
o Educational Assistants 
o Licensed Physical Therapy Assistants 
o Nursing Services 
o Speech Language Pathologist Assistant 
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 Contracts for Licensed Personnel 
o Audiologist 
o Braillist 
o Occupational Therapist 
o Physical Therapist 
o Registered Nurse 
o Aug Comm/Assistive Technology Specialist 
o Autism Spectrum Disorder Teacher 
o Special Education Teacher 
o School Psychologist 
o Speech Language Pathologist 
o Vision Teacher 

Technology Support Services (not Core) 

 Application Development Services 
 District Level Technology Support 
 Infinite Visions  
 Learn 360 
 TEC Membership 

Miscellaneous Services 

 Business/Payroll Services  
 Human Resources Consultation 
 Medicaid Reimbursement Support 
 Spanish Language Interpretation & Translation 
 Substitute Services 

 
STATE, FEDERAL, PRIVATE CONTRACTS AND GRANTS 

While the majority of funding for the services we offer comes through the State School Fund via the Local 
Service Plan, the ESD also procures funding from other sources to support the mission of the agency.  

State, federal, and private contracts and grants for the following services were a major source of funding in 
2019-20. 

EARLY INTERVENTION/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION SERVICES (EI/ECSE) - STATE CONTRACT 

Our Early Intervention/Early Childhood Special Education program (EI/ECSE) offers special services and 
support to families with children who have developmental delays or disabilities. All children from ages 
birth to 5 can be referred for a free screening or evaluation. Once a child is referred, our EI/ECSE evaluation 
team conducts an evaluation to determine whether the child qualifies for services. 

Every year, the Oregon Department of Education determines eligibility requirements. Our EI/ECSE 
evaluation team includes early childhood education specialists, speech-language pathologists, occupational 
therapists, physical therapists and school psychologists. The team reviews the child’s medical history and 
assesses development, speech, language and behavior. They also conduct a psychological assessment if 
needed. Three types of evaluations are conducted. The first is a review of existing records only (File 
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Review), the second assesses one developmental area (Partial Review) and the third assessed two or more 
developmental areas (Full Review). We provide interpreters for families who are not fluent in English. 

During 2019-20 the EI/ECSE team provided the following services: 

 2,205 children received evaluations 
 Average number of children served each month: 

o Astoria: 63 
o Banks: 17 
o Beaverton: 922 
o Clatskanie: 28 
o Forest Grove: 169 
o Gaston: 13 
o Hillsboro: 613 
o Jewell: 6 
o Knappa: 21 
o Neah-Kah-Nie: 14 
o Nestucca Valley: 8 
o Rainier: 33 
o Scappoose: 54 
o Seaside: 53 
o Sherwood: 78 
o St. Helens: 116 
o Tigard-Tualatin: 293 
o Tillamook: 61 
o Vernonia: 16 
o Warrenton-Hammond: 40 

 
LOW INCIDENCE REGIONAL PROGRAMS (LIRP) - STATE CONTRACT   

Regional services are provided as part of Oregon’s Low-Incidence Regional Programs (LIRP). Low-
Incidence Disabilities represent less than 1% of the population. Regionally eligible disabilities include: 

 Autism Spectrum Disorders (ASD) 
 Blind / Vision Impairment (BVI) 
 Deaf / Hard of Hearing (D/HH) 
 Deaf-Blind 
 Orthopedic Impairment (OI) 
 Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI) 

Because schools encounter these students infrequently, it may be challenging to offer the highly specialized 
training and support needed. The LIRP model offers high quality services to every part of the state, no 
matter how big, small, or remote the district. NWRESD is the regional contractor for Region 8, which 
includes Washington, Columbia, Clatsop, and Tillamook Counties. We partner with our 20 component 
districts to provide specialists, training, and resources to students, educators, and families. 

In 2019-20 LIRP services reached the following number of students: 

 2,138 students received autism services 
 253 students received hearing services 
 143 students received services for severe orthopedic impairment 
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 104 students received vision services 
 10 students received deafblind services 
 26 students received traumatic brain injury services 
 8 students were served through the Groner Deaf and Hard of Hearing Program 

 
MIGRANT EDUCATION & ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL) - FEDERAL TITLE GRANTS  
 
Our Migrant and ELL team supports and collaborates with school districts to develop and implement ELL 
and migrant education plans that are compliant with state and federal guidelines. Our team also makes sure 
every student has equitable access to education. 
 
Our English Language Learner program is the hub for a network of districts that work collaboratively in 
order to strengthen core instructional programs for English Learners. With a heavy emphasis on training 
teachers in research-based teaching strategies, the consortium also supports efforts aimed at parent 
engagement. 
Major areas of focus for the Migrant Education program include parent engagement, student 
empowerment and graduation, and partnering with families to prepare children for kindergarten.  We 
are proud to collaborate with partner districts in serving children and families throughout our region.  
 
Children whose parents work in agriculture, fishing and timber industries may be eligible for the 
Migrant Education program. Recruiters work directly with families to determine eligibility and to 
explain program benefits such as parent training, youth leadership development, access to no cost 
meals and free accident insurance. 
 
NORTHWEST EARLY LEARNING HUB - STATE CONTRACT 

Our Northwest Early Learning Hub collaborates with community-based partners to support child care that 
is child-centered, family-friendly and culturally and linguistically appropriate. This program supports child 
care providers, families and children in Clatsop, Columbia and Tillamook counties.  
 
NORTHWEST REGIONAL CHILD CARE RESOURCE AND REFERRAL - STATE GRANT  

Our Northwest Regional Child Care Resource and Referral program exists to support child care and 
education providers in Clatsop, Columbia and Tillamook counties. We help child care providers access 
training opportunities and advance their careers. We also assist with licensing and help providers who want 
to improve the quality of their services through the Spark program.  
 
NORTHWEST STEM HUB - STATE AND PRIVATE GRANTS 

Our Northwest STEM Hub works in Clatsop, Columbia and Tillamook counties to create and elevate 
science, technology, engineering and math (STEM) opportunities throughout the region. The hub partners 
with K-12 and higher educators, staff from community-based organizations, families and industry 
collaborators to promote authentic in-school and out-of-school STEM experiences. 
 
PROFESSIONAL LEARNING NETWORK - LSP AND PRIVATE GRANTS 

Using the strengths of our team and educators in our region, we facilitate deep and culturally sustaining 
learning through a collective process that supports transformative teaching in the service of equitable 



NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT                                                                             HILLSBORO, OREGON   
 

vii 
 

outcomes for each student. This year, we are supporting cohorts of educators on three topics. These include 
9th grade success, early learning, and school culture and climate.  
 
REGIONAL EDUCATOR NETWORK - STATE GRANT 

The Oregon legislature created the Educator Advancement Council in 2017 to provide support to Oregon's 
educator workforce. In 2019, NWRESD received funding to bring together a coordinating body that will 
determine how to best spend $2.5 million per year for the 2019-21 biennium. The group will focus on every 
stage of an educator's career trajectory, including recruitment, preparation, early career support, 
professional growth and development and career advancement. There are nearly 6,000 educators working 
within the region the network will support.  
 
KEY ACCOMPLISHMENTS FROM 2019-20 
 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE STUDENT SUCCESS ACT 

During 2019-20, NWRESD worked side-by-side with all 20 of our component districts to ensure the 
Student Success Act implementation would be a success. Our staff organized, trained, led and evaluated 
the community engagement efforts for 14 school districts, including the largest in our region, Beaverton, 
and the smallest, Nestucca Valley. These efforts sought to ensure districts were including the voices of 
everyone in their communities while developing plans for implementing additional funding from the 
historic Student Success Act legislation that passed in 2019.  
 
All 20 districts leaned on us for Student Investment Account planning and coaching, which seeks to address 
mental and behavioral health needs and reduce academic disparities for student groups that have been 
historically disadvantaged. We led workshops with educators and school boards that centered equity, 
community, staff and student voice. We also designed initiatives and spending plans that were research-
based and relied on best practices. 
 
The director of research, assessment and evaluation provided data analysis and longitudinal growth target 
setting for all school districts. He will continue to monitor the data as districts implement their plans. The 
director of communications has provided real-time communications support and tool development for most 
districts. We also provided grant writing services to half of the districts as they seek additional preschool 
promise funding from the Early Learning Division.  
 
NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATOR NETWORK PLAN FACILITATION AND DEVELOPMENT 

Led by Mariana Zaragoza, Ph.D., the Northwest Regional ESD Regional Educator Network met 12 times 
during 2019-20. The Educator Advancement Council (EAC) tasked the body with creating a plan that 
centers educator voices to spark meaningful systemic changes for our region’s public educators. 
 
The 13-member coordinating body identified retention and recruitment as the plan’s focus areas. To arrive 
at the plan, members conducted nearly 50 empathy interviews with regional educators who are black, 
indigenous, people of color (BIPOC), hosted two listening sessions for educational leaders, and reviewed 
available data specific to our region. 
 
The network identified seven change ideas that will be planned, implemented and tested by educators at all 
levels. The work will support the expansion of ideas that have been designed by and for the communities 
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they intend to serve. The change ideas that show promising results for systemic change will be scaled up 
across school districts to form Network Improvement Communities.  
 
Between 2020-23, the plan will fund $2.5 million in community-driven ideas to retain and recruit diverse 
educators.  
  
SUPPORT THROUGH THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

NWRESD sprang to action as a regional coordinator when COVID-19 started spreading in our 
communities. Starting in March, NWRESD Superintendent Dan Goldman and Deputy Superintendent 
Sarah Pope convened regional meetings with the 20 superintendents in our region. They facilitated support 
to help districts react to the rapidly shifting landscape, including communications assistance, government 
affairs, legal advising, and more. NWRESD also served on a task force with state leadership in order to 
plan a coordinated response for Oregon’s students.   
 
Our technology team distributed WiFi hotspots and chromebooks so that students could attend virtual 
classes. The team also developed distance learning infrastructure to enable online education for students.  
 
Our professional learning team and technology team designed a pedagogical and technical training program 
to help regional educators engage students in a virtual learning environment.  Training was then delivered 
in the 2020-21 fiscal year. 
 
SPOTLIGHT ON THE MIGRANT EDUCATION PROGRAM’S RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

When COVID-19 arrived in the Pacific Northwest in March, it hit the migrant community particularly hard. 
Families turned to the NWRESD migrant education program team for help accessing rental assistance, 
food, personal protective equipment such as masks, cleaning products and health supplies such as 
thermometers. 
 
They also leaned on our team for emotional support. Like everyone else, they were grieving the lost 
expectations of a summer that would not be fully realized. They were worried about money and work and 
their family’s safety. 
 
When a mother tested positive for COVID-19, Rosa Gilbert, bilingual migrant education program manager 
and title III consortium manager, talked her through what the quarantine period would look like. Not being 
able to provide home-cooked meals for her children for 14 days was unthinkable to this mother. Being the 
provider of food and nourishment for her children was part of her identity. Rosa assured her that her eldest 
son would be able to prepare meals for his younger siblings. Then she drove to her house with masks, hand 
sanitizer and a bag of easy-to-prepare meals and snacks. This mother is now fully recovered.  
 
In all, the team distributed 500 cloth masks, close to 1,000 N95 masks and 100 bottles of hand sanitizer. 
They’ve also distributed 175 food bags. 
 
Fortunately, none of the families they work with lost their lives to COVID-19. But several have lost loved 
ones and in some cases, have been unable to travel home to grieve. 
 
In addition to all of this pandemic-related work, the team also ran four different summer programs like they 
do most summers—partnering with NWRESD's Early Learning Hub, Northwest STEM Hub, Diverse 
Educator Pathways and the Professional Learning team. 
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Summer 2020 was a summer unlike any other and we congratulate our migrant team for rising to the 
occasion and making a difference in the lives of hundreds of our region’s most vulnerable families. They 
have demonstrated leadership, inspired action and encouraged others in our region to deepen their 
partnerships with families during these challenging times. 
 
NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT RECEIVES PRESTIGIOUS HONOR FROM CARNEGIE 

FOUNDATION 

In October 2019, Northwest Regional Education Service District’s Ninth Grade Success Network was 
recognized for the work it is doing to improve educational outcomes in northwest Oregon.  
 
The Carnegie Foundation for the Advancement of Teaching selected the network—which focuses on 
improving the numbers of students on track to graduate by the end of their first year of high school—to 
participate in its 2019 Spotlight on Quality in Continuous Improvement Program. In its invitation letter, the 
foundation wrote that it has received many applicants but could only select three recipients for this honor.  
 
“We are thrilled to honor the exemplary efforts of the Northwest Regional Education Service District and 
share out into the education field practical lessons from their efforts,” says Anthony Bryk, President of the 
Carnegie Foundation.  
 
“NWRESD’s ability to use improvement science methods to make measurable improvement on ninth grade 
on-track rates at a large scale, especially within the context of supporting deeper learning to advance 
equitable outcomes for every student, can serve as a model for the many other districts working to do the 
same.” 
 
As part of the recognition, two leaders of the Ninth Grade Success Team at NWRESD traveled to 
Washington, D.C. for the Carnegie Foundation’s Spotlight on Quality Symposium. The event was held 
Nov. 21 at the National Press Club.  
 
Ninth Grade Success Team members include Professional Learning Specialists Kimberley Ednie, Daniel 
Ramirez (took a position with the Educator Advancement Council in 2020) and Laura Kanter Fellows and 
Education Research and Data Specialist Wylie Wan.  
 
“Our team spent the past two years working side-by-side with educators in our region to develop systems 
and adult practices to ensure ninth graders experience school as a place focused on culturally sustaining 
work and deeper learning,” said Erin Lolich, Director of Professional Learning (took a position with the 
Children’s Institute in 2020). “I'm so proud of their work and its impact on our region's students.” 
 
NWRESD’s Professional Learning Networks began in 2016 to support educators across the 20-district 
region through sustained, team-based professional learning. It now includes nine staff members who focus 
on improving early learning outcomes, school climate and culture, and college and career readiness.  
 
The network follows a continuous improvement model, which takes a user-centered and problem-centered 
approach to improving teaching and learning. Educators and student participants are encouraged to identify 
a problem and then deploy rapid tests of change to develop, revise and fine tune tools, processes, roles and 
relationships to solve that problem. There are currently 56 school teams participating in the networks. Nine 
are focused on early learning, 16 are focused on school climate and culture and 31 are focused on ninth 
grade success.   
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Since 2015-16, ninth grade on track rates in the region have risen across the board. For example, in 2017-
18 75% of Latinx ninth graders were on track to graduate, meaning they had completed at least six credits 
before the start of sophomore year. The 2018-19 rate for Latinx students was 82%, an increase of 7%.  
 
“Our region is making a difference in educational outcomes by using a multi-year approach in which school 
teams learn with and from one another and centering student experiences, especially historically 
underserved students,” Lolich said. 
 
VISION FOR THE FUTURE: THE 2020-25 STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
After hundreds of conversations with community members, staff, school district partners and our students, 
our agency has developed a 2020-25 strategic plan. A 28-member strategic plan work group outlined a 
vision and the six collective commitments for our staff to collaborate on to achieve that vision. These 
include:   

1. Cultivate anti-racism, multiculturalism, and diverse racial perspectives in program design, 
continuous improvement, and decision-making; 

2. Create culturally sustaining learning environments that ensure each student is safe, known, and 
connected; 

3. Establish high expectations for achievement and personal growth for each student; 
4. Utilize culturally sustaining, research-based practices for designing and delivering instruction; 
5. Develop authentic, reciprocal, and inclusive partnerships with our diverse students, families, and 

community partners; 
6. Seek, organize, and allocate resources towards achieving these commitments. 

 
The plan also defines the strategies and metrics that we believe will help us track our progress and 
accomplish success. In the months and years ahead, we will define specific activities and projects, create a 
metrics dashboard and communicate about our agency’s strategic plan work.  
 
MISSION, VISION AND VALUES 

MISSION: 
In partnership with the communities we serve, Northwest Regional Education Service District improves 
student learning by providing equitable access to high-quality services and support. 
 
VISION: 
Every student educated, equipped, and inspired to achieve their full potential and enrich their communities. 
 
VALUES: 
Student Success | Partnership | Equity | Innovative Service 
 
COLLECTIVE COMMITMENTS 

Every student will be educated, equipped, and inspired to achieve their full potential and enrich their 
communities, when all NWRESD staff work in collaborative teams to: 
 

1. Cultivate anti-racism, multiculturalism, and diverse racial perspectives in program design, 
continuous improvement, and decision-making; 
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2. Create culturally sustaining learning environments that ensure each student is safe, known, and 
connected; 

3. Establish high expectations for achievement and personal growth for each student; 
4. Use culturally sustaining, research-based practices for designing and delivering instruction; 
5. Develop authentic, reciprocal, and inclusive partnerships with our diverse students, families, and 

community partners; 
6. Seek, organize, and allocate resources toward achieving these commitments. 

 
 
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

The headquarters of Northwest Regional ESD is located in Washington County on the western edge of the 
City of Portland. Washington County is the second largest and fastest growing urban county in Oregon, 
with approximately 610,000 citizens. The community is Oregon’s most ethnically diverse, drawing 
immigrants from Europe, Central and South America, Asia, Indo-China, the Pacific nations and Africa. The 
result of that diversity is that residents and institutions alike reflect a global perspective. 

The County is 727 square miles and includes a portion of the City of Portland and fifteen other incorporated 
cities including Hillsboro, Beaverton, Tigard and Tualatin. 

The County is part of the Portland-Vancouver Metropolitan Statistical Area (Portland PMSA), which 
includes Clackamas, Columbia, Multnomah, Washington and Yamhill Counties in Oregon and Clark and 
Skamania Counties in Washington. The economy of the Portland metropolitan area is broad and widely 
diversified. The Portland PMSA includes the State’s largest employers, including Intel, Providence Health 
System, Oregon Health & Sciences University, Legacy Health System, Fred Meyer, Kaiser Foundation 
Health Plan, and Nike. 

The area’s current economic base includes electronics, manufacturing, construction, food processing, 
agriculture and timber.  Washington County accounts for approximately 75 percent of the high-tech industry 
jobs in Oregon.  These employers include Intel, Tektronix and Genentech.  Intel is currently the largest 
employer in the Portland PMSA with 20,600 employees.   

Two decades of explosive population and employment growth prompted various sectors to focus much of 
their energy and resources on meeting physical infrastructure needs. New and expanded roads, bridges, 
rails, schools, churches, high-tech manufacturing facilities, hospitals and other "brick-and-mortar" projects 
have helped define this increasingly urban community.  

During the last quarter of fiscal year 2019-20, with the Covid-19 pandemic outbreak, we faced 
unprecedented public health, economic, and educational challenges at the local, national and global levels. 
The economic impacts of the pandemic are only just beginning to be seen; the short- and long-term effects 
remain a mystery. According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, at the end of June 2020, the Portland-
Vancouver-Hillsboro unemployment rate was 11.8%, as compared to the Oregon unemployment rate of 
11.8% and the nation’s rate of 11.2%. By comparison, the June 2019 Portland-Vancouver-Hillsboro 
unemployment rate was 3.8%. Clearly, with the sudden uptick in unemployment rates and a public 
education system funded primarily through income tax revenue, economic factors are more uncertain and 
likely more complex than ever before. 
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LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

The Northwest Regional Education Service District is funded primarily through local property taxes and 
by the State of Oregon based on the State School Fund formula.  State funding is heavily dependent on 
personal income tax collections, and is subject to fluctuation based on the overall economic status of the 
state.  To help the District weather these fluctuations, Board policy requires an unrestricted ending fund 
balance in the General Fund that is equal to at least 8 percent of total adopted revenues, less the amount 
allocated for transfer to component school districts. 

The ESD will continue to communicate with its districts and other state agencies in preparation for the 2021 
Legislative Session.  The budget process for the 2021-22 fiscal year will begin in January 2021. 

 
AWARDS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Northwest Regional Education Service 
District for its comprehensive annual financial report for the year ended June 30, 2019.  This was the 
thirteenth consecutive year that the ESD has received this prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, the ESD must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report.  This report must satisfy both accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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To the Board of Directors 

PAULY, ROGERS, AND Co., P.C. 

12700 SW 72nd Ave. Tigard, OR 97223 

(503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX

www. pa u lyrogersandcocpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Northwest Regional Education Service District 
Washington County, Oregon 

Report on the Financial Statements 

October 8, 2020 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the remaining fund inf01mation of Northwest Regional Education Service District (the District), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2020 and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or en-or. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or e!1'or. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the basic financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements refe11'ed to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the remaining fund infonnation ofN01thwest Regional 
Education Service District, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and budgetmy compmisons for the 
general fund, and special revenue fund, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary information, as listed 
in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
ce1tain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the infonnation for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the Schedules of 
funding progress or employer contributions for post-employment health benefits and RHlA or the Schedules of net pension liability or 
contributions for PERS or management's discussion and analysis because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Supplementary !,?formation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements. The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required pmt of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CRF) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 

The introductory, statistical sections, and other financial schedules as listed in the table of contents, have not been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated October 8, 2020 on our consideration 
of the internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of the reports are to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. The reports are an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report dated October 

8, 2020, on our consideration of compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon 

Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 

of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance. 

� 7< 2;4/5 
ROY R. ROGERS, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT   
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
    
As management of Northwest Regional ESD (the District), we offer readers of the District's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020.  
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 In the government-wide statements, the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the 
District exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2020 by $29.64 
million. Of this amount, $7.75 million represents the District’s investment in capital 
assets net of related debt, $2.72 million is restricted for grants, contracts, capital projects, 
component district activities and OPEB Asset (RHIA), and the deficit of $40.11 million 
is unrestricted. 

 The District’s total net position decreased by $6.98 million for the fiscal year, a 30.8 
percent decline in the District’s financial position as compared to the prior year, mainly 
due to the increase in PERS net pension liability. 

 The District’s governmental funds report combined ending fund balance of $6.72 million, 
an increase of $0.48 million in comparison with the prior year.  Approximately 67.5 
percent of the $6.72 million, $4.53 million, constitutes unassigned ending fund balance, 
which is available for spending at the District’s discretion.  

 At the end of the current fiscal year, the unrestricted fund balance for the General Fund 
was $4.53 million, or about 9 percent of total General Fund expenditures. 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the 
District’s basic financial statements. The basic financial statements consist of three components: 
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic 
financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements 
include: 
 
The Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the 
assets and liabilities of the District with the difference between the two reported as net position.  
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the 
net position of the District changed over the year by tracking revenues, expenses and other 
transactions that increase or reduce net position. All changes in net position are reported as soon 
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused 
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT   
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
    
vacation leave).  In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are shown 
in two categories, governmental and business-type. 
 
Governmental Activities. Most of the District’s basic functions are shown here, such as regular 
and special education, administration, and facilities acquisition and construction. These activities 
are primarily financed through property taxes, Oregon’s State School Fund and other 
intergovernmental revenues.   
 
Business-type Activities.  These are functions that intend to recover all or a significant portion 
of their costs through user fees and charges.  The primary business-type activity is technology 
services. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19 and 20 of this report. 
  
Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed information 
about the District’s funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds – not the District as a 
whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Northwest Regional ESD, like 
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three 
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds. The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.  The minimum number of 
funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances are reconciled to the government-wide Statements 
of Net Position and Activities. 
 
The District maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately 
in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances for the General, Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds, all of 
which are considered to be major funds.  
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 and 23. 
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT   
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
    
Proprietary Funds. The District maintains one proprietary fund type (enterprise fund). This 
fund is an accounting device used to allow entrepreneurial activities to be tracked separately 
from other functions.   
 
Entrepreneurial functions primarily consist of contracted technology services.  These funds are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the basic financial statements. 
  
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 - 29. 
 
Fiduciary Fund.  The fiduciary fund is used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside of the District. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is the same as that used 
for proprietary funds.  These funds are mostly held for the District’s component school districts. 
 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 30. 
  
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements.  
 
The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 31 - 63. 
  
Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information (RSI) including the PERS and 
Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) schedules detailing ten years of (assets)/liabilities and 
contributions.   
 
Required Supplementary information can be found on pages 67 - 69.   
 
Other supplementary information includes budgetary comparison for nonmajor and other funds 
can be found on pages 73-76. 
 
Other financial schedules concerning the District’s operations can be found on pages 77-86. 
 
 
Statistical Section.  The statistical section presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information about the overall financial health.  
  
The Statistical Section can be found on pages 87 – 104. 
 
 
 
GOVERNMENT – WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT   
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
    
As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position.  In the case of the District, liabilities and deferred inflows or resources 
exceeded assets and deferred outflows or resources by $29.64 million at June 30, 2020. 
 
 
 

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Activities Activities

Current and other assets 11,779,431$      1,604,614$      11,421,339$     3,069,416$      

Capital assets 10,230,932        -                   10,953,900       -                   

Total Assets 22,010,363        1,604,614        22,375,239       3,069,416        

Deferred outflows of resources 21,815,844        1,640,321        23,139,586       1,182,853        

Total assets and deferred 
outflows of resources 43,826,207        3,244,935        45,514,825       4,252,269        

Other liabilities 5,062,441          313,130           5,376,830         165,998           

Long-term liabilities 61,545,677        4,245,135        55,646,844       3,275,836        

Total Liabilities 66,608,118        4,558,265        61,023,674       3,441,834        

Deferred inflows of resources 5,196,709          344,781           7,492,097         465,575           

Total liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources 71,804,827        4,903,046        68,515,771       3,907,409        

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 7,752,637          -                   7,852,485         -                   

Restricted 2,722,696          -                   2,600,986         -                   

Unrestricted (38,453,953)       (1,658,111)       (33,454,417)      344,860           

Total Net Position (27,978,620)$     (1,658,111)$     (23,000,946)$    344,860$         

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019June 30, 2020

 
 

 
Capital assets, which consist of the District’s land, buildings, and building improvements, 
construction in progress, vehicles, and equipment, represent about 43 percent of total assets. The 
remaining assets consist mainly of cash and grants and accounts receivable.   
 
The District’s long-term liability for the repayment of full faith and credit obligations due in 
more than one year, other post-employment pension obligation and PERS net pension obligation 
represents 92 percent of total liabilities.  Current liabilities, representing the remaining 8 percent 
of the District’s total liabilities, consist almost entirely of payables on accounts, salaries and 
benefits and debt obligations due within one year.   
 
The District’s overall financial position including both governmental and business activities 
changed as indicated by a decrease of $6.98 million in net position.  Unrestricted net position 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
    
decreased by $7.0 million due mainly to the change in the PERS net pension liability.  At the 
same time, the District’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt, decreased by $99 
thousand due principally to payment of related debt during the year.   
 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES. The District’s net position decreased about $6.98 million as a 
result of governmental activities.  
 
Program revenues increased by $5.52 million, mainly due to increased services provided to our 
component districts and an increase in federal grant awards and state contracts. 
 
Instruction, support services and enterprise and community services increased by $4.40 million 
due to contractual services provided and the increase in the PERS net pension liability. 
 
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES.  The District’s net position decreased by $2.00 million as a result of 
business-type activities, largely due to the change in the PERS net pension liability.  
 
The key elements of the change in the District’s net position for the year ended June 30, 2020 are 
as follows: 
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Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Activities Activities

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services 29,282,674$      6,776,210$      30,826,570$     7,189,483$      

Operating grants and operations 36,411,778        -                       32,390,440       -                       

General revenue:

Property taxes 12,559,594        -                       11,944,629       -                       

Timber revenue 444,751             -                       546,449            -                       

State school fund - general support 36,252,194        -                       33,505,792       -                       

Earnings on investments 426,026             -                       638,908            -                       

Total Revenues 115,377,017$    6,776,210$      109,852,788$   7,189,483$      

Expenses:

Instruction 45,333,537        -                       41,873,604       -                       

Support services 72,659,636        -                       71,375,987       -                       

Enterprise and community services 2,204,578          -                       2,518,433         -                       

Interest on long-term debt 156,940             -                       182,877            -                       

Fiscal services -                         656,974           -                        446,306           

Staff services -                         383,544           -                        380,980           

Technology services -                         7,738,663        -                        6,541,801        

Total Expenses 120,354,691      8,779,181        115,950,901     7,369,087        

Change in net position (4,977,674)         (2,002,971)       (6,098,113)        (179,604)          

Net Position, Beginning (23,000,946)       344,860           (16,902,833)      524,464           

Net Position, Ending (27,978,620)$     (1,658,111)$     (23,000,946)$    344,860$         

Statement of Activities
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information 
on relatively short-term cash flow and funding for future basic services. Such information is 
useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance 
may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end 
of a fiscal year. 
 
At June 30, 2020, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$6.72 million, an increase of $482 thousand in comparison with the prior year.  Of this amount, 
$2.18 million (about 32.5 percent) of the ending fund balances constitutes restricted ending fund 
balance, amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose (such as 
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grants).  The remaining 67.5 percent of the ending fund balances, $4.54 million, is unassigned 
and available for spending at the District’s discretion. 
 
General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. As of June 30, 
2020, unassigned fund balance was $4.54 million. As a measure of the fund’s liquidity, it may be 
useful to compare total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance 
represents 9 percent of total General Fund expenditures.  The total fund balance increased by 
$607 thousand from the prior year, primarily due to decrease in transfer to enterprise fund 
activities. 
 
Special Revenue Fund.  The Special Revenue Fund has a total fund balance of $2.04 million.  
This is a decrease of $149 thousand over the prior year, primarily the result of spend down of 
grant carryover balances. 
 
Capital Projects.  The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $147 thousand, an 
increase of $25 thousand from the prior year, due to a general fund transfer for capital project 
repairs at the Washington Service Center. 
  
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

  

Original budget compared to final budget.  During the year, there was no amendments to the 
original adopted expenditure appropriations for 2019-20.   
 
Final budget compared to actual results.  Actual revenues were less than budget by about $231 
thousand, primarily due to decreased charges for services and decrease in the district’s indirect 
rate.  Actual expenditures were about $2.59 million less than estimated, largely due to receipt of 
additional grant revenue, reduction in transfers and conservative spending. 
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets. The District’s investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and 
improvements, and vehicles and equipment.  As of June 30, 2020, the District had over $722 
thousand invested in capital assets net of depreciation and debt. As shown in the following table, 
total capital assets net of depreciation increased, primarily due to depreciation expense.  
 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Land 467,500$                 467,500$                 

Buildings and improvements 8,461,112                8,879,204                

Leasehold improvements 196,901                   216,940                   

Vehicles and equipment 1,105,419                1,390,256                

10,230,932$            10,953,900$            

Governmental  Activities

Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation)
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Additional information about the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on page 41. 
 
Long-Term Obligations. At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total debt 
outstanding of $2.56 million, consisting of full faith and credit obligations net of unamortized 
discount.  This is a decrease of about $635 thousand, as the District continues to pay down its 
debt. 
 
Additional information on the District’s long-term obligations can be found in Note 6 on page 
43. 
 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET  
 
The most significant economic factor for the District is the financial condition of Oregon’s State 
School Fund (SSF). For the year ended June 30, 2020, the State School Fund – General Support 
provided about 94 percent of the District’s General Fund resources. The Oregon Legislature 
passed a statewide education budget of $9.0 billion for the 2019-21 biennium. SSF support 
payments are made to districts based on that budget. However, the budget is contingent upon a 
forecast of Oregon’s continued economic recovery and the projected tax receipts based 
associated with that forecast. In March of 2020 Oregon declared a state of emergency due to 
the Covid-19 global pandemic. Many businesses were shut down and forecasted income 
tax revenue declined sharply. The District immediately put into place cost saving 
measures including furlough days, lay-offs and spending and hiring freezes to mitigate 
anticipated reductions to the SSF and other education grants and contracts. In August of 
2020, the Oregon legislature voted to largely hold the SSF harmless for the 2019-21 biennium 
by drawing down emergency funds and reducing other education grants and contracts. This 
decision mitigated most of the negative financial impact to the District for fiscal year 2020-21. 
Because many of the state level emergency and reserve funds were drawn down, there remains 
concern about the 2021-23 biennium and the long-term impact of income loss related to the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  
 
Employer rates for the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) will remain the same FY 
2020-21 (32.03% for Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees and 26.58% for OPSRP employees) and then 
decrease in the 2021-2023 biennium. Market performance through the end of 2019 was used to 
set the 2021-2022 rates and therefore does not include the financial impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic. The next rate setting action for the PERS system will be based on market performance 
through December of 2021 for the 2023-25 biennium. The projected contribution rate for the 
2021-23 biennium is 22.29% of salary covered under the plan for Tiers 1 and 2 employees and 
19.18% for employees covered under the Oregon Public Services Retirement Plan (OPSRP).  
 
While the primary focus of budget development for the 2020-21 fiscal year was financial 
sustainability during unprecedented state, federal, and global uncertainty during the pandemic, 
the District also engaged in the development of a new collaboratively developed five-year 
Strategic Plan. This visioning process, formally adopted by the Board of Directors on August 12, 
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT   
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
    
2020, resulted in the following Mission, Vision, Values, and Collective Commitments to which 
budget requests and resource allocations were aligned. 

 
The District’s Budget Committee and Board of Directors have considered all these factors while 
preparing the 2020-21 budget. 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to present the user (citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors) 
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s 
accountability.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests 
for additional information should be addressed to the District’s Chief Financial Officer at 5825 
NE Ray Circle, Hillsboro, Oregon 97124. 
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Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 392,374$              1,423,818$           1,816,192$           
Receivables 10,848,910           180,796                11,029,706           
Total OPEB  asset (RHIA) 538,147                -                            538,147                
Capital assets:

Not being depreciated 467,500                -                            467,500                
Being depreciated, net of accumulated depreciation 9,763,432             -                            9,763,432             

TOTAL ASSETS 22,010,363           1,604,614             23,614,977           

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension Related Deferred Outflows (PERS) 21,603,884         1,640,321             23,244,205         
OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (PHIS) 105,075              -                            105,075              
OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (RHIA) 25,346                -                            25,346                
Deferred amount on refunding 81,539                -                            81,539                

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 21,815,844           1,640,321             23,456,165           

   TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 43,826,207         3,244,935             47,071,142         

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 839,799                313,130                1,152,929             
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 3,451,143             -                            3,451,143             
Accrued interest payable 5,157                    -                            5,157                    
Accrued compensated absences payable 104,356              -                            104,356              
Unearned revenue 4,402                  -                            4,402                  
Long-term debt obligations:

Within one year 657,584              -                            657,584              
In more than one year 1,902,250           -                            1,902,250           

    Total OPEB liability (PHIS) 1,221,132             -                            1,221,132             
    Net pension liability (PERS) 58,422,295           4,245,135             62,667,430           

TOTAL LIABILITIES 66,608,118           4,558,265             71,166,383           

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Related Deferred Inflows (PERS) 4,744,940           344,781                5,089,721           
OPEB Related Deferred Inflows (PHIS) 337,238              -                            337,238              
OPEB Related Deferred Inflows (RHIA) 114,531              -                            114,531              

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 5,196,709             344,781                5,541,490             

   TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 71,804,827           4,903,046             76,707,873           

NET POSITION 
Net investment in Capital Assets 7,752,637             -                            7,752,637             
Restricted 

Grants, contracts and projects 2,036,936             -                            2,036,936             
Capital projects 147,613                -                            147,613                
OPEB Asset - RHIA 538,147                -                            538,147                

Unrestricted (38,453,953)         (1,658,111)           (40,112,064)         

TOTAL NET POSITION (27,978,620)$       (1,658,111)$         (29,636,731)$       

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020

See notes to basic financial statements
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Operating Business-
Charges for Grants and Governmental type 

Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total 
Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Instruction:

Regular programs 3,258,133$          1,827,877$          529,023$             (901,233)$            -$                         (901,233)$            
Special programs 42,075,404          21,762,194          34,406,468          14,093,258          -                           14,093,258          

Support services:
Students services 16,319,180          -                           649,501               (15,669,679)         -                           (15,669,679)         
Instructional staff services 43,630,297          -                           719,968               (42,910,329)         -                           (42,910,329)         
General administration 1,894,098            -                           -                           (1,894,098)           -                           (1,894,098)           
School administration 170,732               -                           -                           (170,732)              -                           (170,732)              
Business services 5,656,285            5,692,603            -                           36,318                 -                           36,318                 
Central activities 4,989,044            -                           -                           (4,989,044)           -                           (4,989,044)           

Enterprise and community services 2,204,578            -                         106,818             (2,097,760)         -                          (2,097,760)         
Interest on long-term debt 156,940               -                         -                         (156,940)            -                          (156,940)            

Total governmental activities 120,354,691        29,282,674        36,411,778        (54,660,239)       -                          (54,660,239)       

Business-type activities:
Fiscal services 656,974               556,118               -                           -                           (100,856)              (100,856)              
Staff services 383,544               360,383               -                           -                           (23,161)                (23,161)                
Technology services 7,738,663            5,859,709            -                           -                           (1,878,954)           (1,878,954)           

Total business-type activities 8,779,181            6,776,210          -                         -                          (2,002,971)           (2,002,971)         

Total governmental and business-
type activities 129,133,872$      36,058,884$        36,411,778$        (54,660,239)         (2,002,971)           (56,663,210)         

GENERAL REVENUES:
Property taxes levied for general purposes 12,559,594          -                           12,559,594          
Timber revenue 444,751               -                           444,751               
State school fund - general support 36,252,194          -                           36,252,194          
Earning on investments 426,026               -                           426,026               

Total general revenues 49,682,565          -                           49,682,565          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (4,977,674)           (2,002,971)           (6,980,645)           

NET POSITION - Beginning (23,000,946)         344,860               (22,656,086)         

NET POSITION - Ending (27,978,620)$       (1,658,111)$         (29,636,731)$       

Program Revenues
Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Change in Net Position

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

See notes to basic financial statements
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Special Capital 
General Revenue Projects

ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Total 

Cash and investments 230,349$             114$                    161,911$             392,374$             

Receivables:  
Taxes 302,879               -                           -                           302,879               
Accounts 794,402               -                           -                           794,402               

Grants -                           9,751,629            -                           9,751,629            

Due from other funds 6,934,422            -                           -                           6,934,422            

TOTAL ASSETS 8,262,052$          9,751,743$          161,911$             18,175,706$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 49,518$               775,983$             14,298$               839,799$             
Due to other funds -                           6,934,422            -                           6,934,422            
Payroll liabilities 3,451,143            -                           -                           3,451,143            
Unearned revenue -                           4,402                   -                           4,402                   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,500,661            7,714,807            14,298                 11,229,766          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 225,882               -                           -                           225,882               

FUND BALANCES
Restricted:

Special Revenue Fund 
Grants, contracts and projects -                           2,036,936            -                           2,036,936            

Capital Projects -                           -                           147,613               147,613               
Unassigned:

General Fund 4,535,509            -                           -                           4,535,509            

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 4,535,509            2,036,936            147,613               6,720,058            

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES  AND FUND BALANCES 8,262,052$          9,751,743$          161,911$             18,175,706$        

 

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020

BALANCE SHEET 

See notes to basic financial statements
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TOTAL FUND BALANCES 6,720,058$          

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Cost 19,478,799$       
Accumulated depreciation (9,247,867)        10,230,932         

A portion of the District's property taxes are collected after year-end but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current year's operations, and therefore are not
reported as revenue in the governmental funds.

Unavailable revenue - property taxes 225,882               

Short term and long-term liabilities applicable to the District's governmental
activities are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not
reported as fund liabilites. All liabilities, both current and long term, are reported
in the Statement of Net Position.

Short term and long term obligations
Accrued interest payable (5,157)$               
Compensated absences (104,356)             
Other post employment pension liability (PHIS) (1,221,132)          
Other post employment pension asset (RHIA) 538,147               
Bonds payable (2,643,426)          
Bond discount/premiums, net of amortization 83,592                 (3,352,332)          

In 2016-17 bond refunding, a larger amount paid to the escrow agent than the
premiums of the bonds being refunded that was recorded as interest expenses. This
deferred outflow of resources is recognized based on the schedule of maturities of
the refunded bonds. 81,539                 

The Net Pension Asset (Liability) is the difference between the total PERS pension
liability and the assets set aside to pay benefits earned to past and current
employees and beneficiaries. (58,422,295)        

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of resources related to the pension plan and OPEB
include differences between expected and actual experience, changes of
assumptions, differences between projects and actual earnings, and contributions
subsequent to the measurement date.

Deferred Outflows - Pension (PERS) 21,603,884          
Deferred Outflows - OPEB (PHIS) 105,075               
Deferred Outflows - OPEB (RHIA) 25,346                 
Deferred Inflows - Pension (PERS) (4,744,940)          
Deferred Inflows - OPEB (PHIS) (337,238)             
Deferred Inflows - OPEB (RHIA) (114,531)             16,537,596          

NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (27,978,620)$      

June 30, 2020

BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

See notes to basic financial statements
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Special Capital 
General Revenue Projects

REVENUES Fund Fund Fund Total 
Local sources:

Property taxes 12,558,282$        -$                         -$                         12,558,282$        
Charges for services 2,728,737            27,904,080          -                           30,632,817          
Earnings on investments 426,026               -                           -                           426,026               

Intermediate sources 5,160                   -                           -                           5,160                   
State sources 36,689,589          27,691,760          -                           64,381,349          
Federal sources -                           7,372,071            -                           7,372,071            

Total revenues 52,407,794          62,967,911          -                           115,375,705        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction -                           40,806,278          -                           40,806,278          
Support services 49,012,814          18,264,538          -                           67,277,352          
Enterprises and community services -                           2,119,105            -                           2,119,105            
Apportionment of funds -                           3,883,450            -                           3,883,450            

Facilities acquisition and construction -                           -                           25,275                 25,275                 

Debt service:

Principal 656,218               -                           -                           656,218               

Interest 125,161               -                           -                           125,161               

Total expenditures 49,794,193          65,073,371          25,275                 114,892,839        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 2,613,601            (2,105,460)          (25,275)               482,866               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in 236,176               2,267,363            50,000                 2,553,539            

Transfers out (2,242,441)          (311,098)             -                           (2,553,539)          

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,006,265)          1,956,265            50,000                 -                           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 607,336               (149,195)             24,725                 482,866               

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,928,173            2,186,131            122,888               6,237,192            

ENDING FUND BALANCE 4,535,509$          2,036,936$          147,613$             6,720,058$          

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

See notes to basic financial statements
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NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 482,866$              

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while government-wide
statements report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of
the assets.  The difference between these two amounts is:

Capitalized expenditures 41,314$              
Depreciation (764,282)             (722,968)               

Repayment of long term & short term obligations is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces debt obligations in the governmment-
wide statements.

Debt principal repaid 656,218                
Premium amortization (21,181)                 

In refunding bonds, the amount of new bonds in excess of the refunded bonds is a
deferred outflow of resources for the Statement of Activities, whereas it is recorded as
an interest expense in the year of refunding. (11,917)                 

In the Statement of Activities interest is accrued on long-term debt whereas in the
governmental funds it is recorded as an expenditure when paid. 1,319                    

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds as follows:

Property taxes 1,312                    

Some expenses reported in the statements do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Change in the accumulated unpaid vacation (36,649)                 

In the Statement of Activities, other postemployment benefits expense is adjusted 
based on the acturarially determined contribution changes:

Net change in total OPEB liability / asset 470,080$            
Net change in deferred outflows of resources (115,998)             
Net change in deferred inflows of resources (299,234)             54,848                  

The Pension Expense represents the changes in Net Pension Asset (Liability) from year
to year due to changes in total pension liability and the fair value of pension plan net
position available to pay pension benefits. (5,381,522)            

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (4,977,674)$          

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF 
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

See notes to basic financial statements
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Variance to 
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Local sources:

Property taxes 12,470,400$        12,470,400$        12,558,282$        87,882$               
Charges for services 3,078,000            3,078,000            2,728,737            (349,263)             
Earnings on investments 450,000               450,000               426,026               (23,974)               

Intermediate sources -                          -                          5,160                   5,160                   
State sources 36,640,794          36,640,794          36,689,589          48,795                 

Total revenues 52,639,194          52,639,194          52,407,794          (231,400)             

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Support services 9,080,560            9,080,560            (1) 7,849,318            1,231,242            
Debt service * 781,718               781,718               (1) 781,379               339                     
Contingency 500,000               500,000               (1) -                          500,000               
Transfers to enterprise funds * 2,074,785            2,074,785            (1) 1,212,793            861,992               
Transfers to fiduciary funds * 39,950,703          39,950,703          (1) 39,950,703          -                          

Total expenditures 52,387,766          52,387,766          49,794,193          2,593,573            

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 251,428             251,428             2,613,601            2,362,173          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 265,000               265,000               236,176               (28,824)               
Transfers out * (2,553,928)          (2,553,928)          (1) (2,242,441)          311,487               
Transits to other agencies * (12,500)             (12,500)             (1) -                          12,500                 

Total other financing uses (2,301,428)          (2,301,428)          (2,006,265)          295,163               

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,050,000)          (2,050,000)          607,336               2,657,336            

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,550,000            4,550,000            3,928,173            (621,827)             

ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,500,000$          2,500,000$          4,535,509$          2,035,509$          

 * Appropriated as other uses.
 (1) Appropriation level 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budget

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

See notes to basic financial statements
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Variance to 
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Local sources:

Charges for services 30,998,787$         30,998,787$         27,054,656$   (3,944,131)$        
State sources 29,623,784           29,623,784           27,691,760     (1,932,024)          
Federal sources 8,511,661             8,511,661             7,372,071       (1,139,590)          

Total revenues 69,134,232           69,134,232           62,118,487     (7,015,745)          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction 45,757,424           45,757,424           (1) 40,806,278     4,951,146           
Support services 19,500,626           19,500,626           (1) 17,963,943     1,536,683           
Enterprise and community services 3,759,690             3,759,690             (1) 2,119,105       1,640,585           

Total expenditures 69,017,740           69,017,740           60,889,326     8,128,414           

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 116,492                116,492                1,229,161       1,112,669           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 3,623,844             3,623,844             3,116,787       (507,057)             
Transfers out * (965,592)               (965,592)               (1) (611,693)         353,899              
Transits to other agencies * (7,032,657)          (7,032,657)          (1) (3,883,450)      3,149,207         

Total other financing sources (uses) (4,374,405)            (4,374,405)            (1,378,356)      2,996,049           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,257,913)            (4,257,913)            (149,195)         4,108,718           

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,257,913             4,257,913             2,186,131       (2,071,782)          

ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                     -$                     2,036,936$     2,036,936$         

* Appropriated as other uses.
     (1) Appropriation level

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budget

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

See notes to basic financial statements
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ASSETS
Current:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,423,818$       
Receivables 180,796            

TOTAL ASSETS 1,604,614         

Deferred outflows of resources
Net pension related deferred outflows 1,640,321         

LIABILITIES
Current:

Accounts payable 313,130            
Non-current:

Net pension liability 4,245,135         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,558,265         

Deferred inflows of resources
Net pension related deferred inflows 344,781            

NET POSITION
Unrestricted (1,658,111)$     

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020

ENTERPRISE FUND

See notes to basic financial statements
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REVENUE:
Charges for services 5,462,822$       
Charges from interfund services 1,313,388         

TOTAL  REVENUES 6,776,210         

EXPENSES :
Salaries 2,409,338         
Employee benefits 1,359,168         
Pension expense (see pension footnote) 391,037            

Purchases 791,079            
Supplies 3,526,553         
Capital outlay 21,936              
Miscellaneous 53,526              
Apportionment of funds 226,544            

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,779,181         

OPERATING INCOME (2,002,971)       

NET POSITION - Beginning 344,860            

NET POSITION - Ending (1,658,111)$     

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

ENTERPRISE FUND

See notes to basic financial statements
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received for services 5,426,944$         
Cash received from interfund services provided 1,313,388           
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (4,245,962)          

Cash paid to employees for services (3,768,506)          
Cash paid to other agencies (226,544)             

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,500,680)          

 NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,500,680)          

BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,924,498           

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,423,818$         

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (2,002,971)$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by 
operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (35,878)               
Accounts payable 147,132              
Net pension related items 391,037              

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,500,680)$        

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

ENTERPRISE FUND

See notes to basic financial statements
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ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 12,363,088$                      

12,363,088$                      

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 65,958$                             
Due to school districts 12,297,130                        

12,363,088$                      

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

June 30, 2020

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUND

See notes to basic financial statements
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

   YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Reporting Entity  
 
In 1996, Clatsop, Columbia, Tillamook and Washington ESDs officially consolidated to become the 
Northwest Regional Education Service District (the District). The District was formed in 
accordance with ORS 334.020 and Section 25, Chapter 784 Oregon Laws 1993.  It provides 
educational services to school districts in Clatsop, Columbia, Tillamook, and Washington Counties. 
The District is a municipal corporation governed by a nine-member Board of Directors consisting of 
five elected and four appointed members.  Administrative officials are approved by the Board.  The 
daily functioning of the District is under the supervision of the Superintendent-Clerk.  As required 
by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, all activities of the 
District have been included in these basic financial statements. 
 
The District qualifies as a primary government since it has a separately elected governing body, is a 
legally separate entity, and is fiscally independent.  There are various governmental agencies, school 
districts, and special service districts, which provide services within the District’s boundaries.  
However, the District is not financially accountable for any of these entities, and therefore, none of 
them are considered component units or included in these basic financial statements. 
 
 
Basis of Presentation   
 
Government-wide Financial Statements  
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the 
District. These statements include the governmental financial activities of the overall District, 
except fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of 
internal activities, except that interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the 
process of consolidation. Governmental activities are financed through property taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.      

 
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 
for each of its functions or programs. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated 
with a function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to that function. Indirect expenses are not 
allocated.  Program revenues include charges to students or others for tuition, fees, rentals, 
materials, supplies or services provided and operating grants and contributions. Revenues that 
are not classified as program revenues, including property taxes, are presented as general 
revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds, 
even though the latter is excluded from the government-wide financial statements. 
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Fund Financial Statements 
 

The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds including those of a 
fiduciary nature. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, business-type and 
fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental 
funds, each displayed in a separate column. The minimum numbers of funds are maintained 
consistent with legal and managerial requirements. 
  
The District reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund – The General Fund provides for those programs and services authorized by 
local school districts through the resolution process or by service agreements.  Major 
sources of revenue are property taxes, state reimbursements and charges to other agencies. 

 
Special Revenue Fund – The Special Revenue Fund provides instructional and support 
services to local school districts through contracts and reimbursements. Major revenue 
sources are charges to other education districts and federal and state grants. 
 
Capital Projects Fund – This fund accounts for resources to replace or acquire new facilities 
and capital equipment.  The principal resources are transfers from the General Fund and 
interest earnings. 

 
Additionally, the District reports the following fund types: 
 

Proprietary Fund – The proprietary fund accounts for services provided (mainly technology 
services) to other governmental agencies.  The principal revenue sources are charges for 
services and supplies.   

 
Fiduciary Fund – The agency fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does 
not involve the measurement of results of operations.  This fund accounts for pass through 
money received from local and county sources and distributed to school districts.  The 
agency funds are accounted for using the full accrual basis of accounting. 

 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The fiduciary fund financial statements are reported 
using the accrual basis of accounting but do not have a measurement focus.  Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of 
when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives 
value without giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and 
donations. On the accrual basis of accounting, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the 
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.   Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Under 
terms of grant agreements, certain programs are funded by a combination of specific cost-
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reimbursement grants and general revenues.  It is the District’s policy to first apply cost-
reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues.   
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are 
recognized when measurable and available. 
 
All revenues reported in the governmental funds are considered to be available if they are 
collected within sixty days after year-end. Property taxes and interest are considered to be 
susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except for principal and interest on long-term debt and claims and judgments, which are 
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds and proceeds from long-term debt and 
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.   
 
The proprietary fund type (Enterprise fund) revenues and expenses generally result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with ongoing operations.  
The principal revenues are charges to customers for sales and services.  Expenses include the 
costs of sales and services, and administrative expenses.  All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses/expenditures during the reporting period.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Short-term investments are stated at 
cost, which approximates fair value.  Investments in the State of Oregon Treasurer’s Local 
Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Fair value 
in the LGIP is the same as the value of its pool shares.  
 
Fair Value Inputs and Methodologies and Hierarchy 
 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  
Observable inputs are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the 
reporting entity.  Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available 
about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset.  The classification of 
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securities within the fair value hierarchy is based up on the activity level in the market for the 
security type and the inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows: 
 
Level 1 – unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or 
liabilities that each Fund has the ability to access 
Level 2 – other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets 
or liabilities in markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in 
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or 
liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, loss severities, credit risks and default 
rates) or other market–corroborated inputs) 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to 
the extent observable inputs are not available (including each Fund’s own assumptions used in 
determining the fair value of investments) 
 
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (Level 3 measurements). Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised in determining 
fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. The inputs used to measure fair 
value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure 
purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. 
 
Property Taxes 
 
Property taxes are levied and become a lien on all taxable property as of July 1.  Property taxes are 
payable on November 15, February 15, and May 15.  Discounts are allowed if the amount due is 
received by November 15 or February 15.  Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered 
delinquent.  Uncollected taxes are deemed to be substantially collectible by management decision; 
therefore, no allowance for uncollectible taxes has been established.  All property taxes receivable 
are due from property owners within the District. 
 
Receivables 
 
Receivables represent amounts due from the sale of services or materials to local education agencies 
and un-reimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies. Grant revenues are recorded at the time 
eligible expenditures are incurred. Grant revenues received prior to the occurrence of qualifying 
expenditures are recorded as unavailable revenue. 
 
Grants 
 
Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial 
statements as receivables and revenues. Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible 
expenditures are incurred. Grant monies received prior to the occurrence of qualifying 
expenditures are recorded as unearned revenue. 
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Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed, or estimated historical cost 
when original cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated acquisition 
value at the date of donation. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial cost of more than 
$5,000 and an estimated life in excess of three years.  Upon disposal of capital assets, the accounts 
are relieved of the related amounts, and any proceeds accounted for as revenue.  The cost of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives 
are not capitalized.  Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
useful lives: 
 
   Buildings and improvements  40-50 years 
   Leasehold improvements    5-15 years  
   Vehicles and equipment    5-15 years 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the basic financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time.  The District 
has three items that arise only under a full accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting 
in this category.  The statement of net position reports one type of related to the net PERS 
pension liability, deferred charge on refunding bonds and the District’s Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEBs).  These amounts are deferred and recognized as an outflow of resources in the 
period that the amounts become available. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the basic financial statements will report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so 
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The government has 
two items that arise for reporting in this category.  The balance sheet reports unavailable 
revenues from one source:  property taxes.  The statement of net position reports two type related 
to the net PERS pension liability and the District’s OPEB plans.  These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.   
 
 
Risk Management 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to or destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District 
purchases commercial insurance for all claims in excess of self-insured retention limits. Limits 
are $25,000 for property per occurrence and $50,000 for general liability. There have been no 
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. Losses have not exceeded 
insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years. 
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Retirement Plans 
 
Substantially all of the District's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS).  For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about fiduciary net position of PERS and additions to/deductions from 
PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
PERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at 
fair value.  
 
Compensated Absences 
 
It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick 
pay benefits.  There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since there is no policy to pay 
any amounts when employees separate from service with the District.  All unused vacation pay and 
related payroll taxes is accrued when earned in the government-wide financial statements.  Accrued 
vacation balances must be used by the end of the calendar year for those employees who have a 
carryover balance at the end of the fiscal year.  A liability for these amounts is reported in the 
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignation and 
retirements.   
 
Long-term Debt 
 
In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt is reported as a liability in the 
Statement of Net Position.  Bond discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
certificates of participation using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective 
interest method.  Savings realized from advance refunding of debt are recorded as deferred 
outflows of resources and amortized over the remaining life of the related defeased debt. 
 
In the fund financial statements, discounts as well as issuance costs are recognized when incurred 
and not deferred.  The face amount of the debt issued and discounts on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing sources and uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position is comprised of the various net earnings from operations, nonoperating revenues, 
expenses and contributions of capital.  Net position is classified in the following three categories: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets – consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
 Restricted – consists of external constraints placed on asset use by creditors, grantors, 

contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law 
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through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  The District has net positions 
restricted for debt service. 

 
 Unrestricted net position – consists of all other assets that are not included in the other 

categories previously mentioned. 
 

Fund Balances 
 
In March 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.54, 
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type Definitions. The objective of this 
Statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund 
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing 
governmental fund-type definitions. This Statement establishes fund balance classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe 
constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Under this 
Standard, the prior fund balance classifications of reserved, designated and 
unreserved/undesignated were replaced with five new classifications – nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned, and unassigned. 
 

 Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are not in a spendable form. The 
nonspendable fund balance represents inventories and prepaid items. 

 Restricted fund balance represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties 
for a specific purpose (such as debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, 
or other governments) or are restricted by law (constitutionally or by enabling 
legislation). 

 Committed fund balance represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a 
particular purpose. The Board may commit fund balance by resolution. The Board may 
also modify or rescind commitments by resolution. 

 Assigned fund balance represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to 
use resources for specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as 
restricted or committed. Intent can be stipulated by the governing body or by an official 
to whom that authority has been given by the governing body. Both the Superintendent 
and the Chief Financial Officer have been given this authority by the Board. 

 Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the General Fund. Only the 
General Fund may report a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds 
would report any negative residual fund balance as unassigned. 
 

There were no nonspendable, committed or assigned fund balances at June 30, 2020.   
 
The Board of Directors has approved the following order of spending regarding fund balance 
categories: Restricted resources are spent first when both restricted and unrestricted (committed, 
assigned or unassigned) resources are available for expenditures. When unrestricted resources 
are spent, the order of spending is committed (if applicable), assigned (if applicable) and lastly, 
unassigned fund balance. 
 

37



NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

   YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 

To preserve a sound financial system and to provide a stable financial base, the governing body 
has adopted a minimum ending fund balance policy to be an unrestricted ending fund balance of 
at least 8 percent of total general fund adopted revenues, less the amount allocated for transfer to 
component school districts. 
 
Budget 
 
In accordance with Oregon Local Budget Law, a budget is prepared and legally adopted for all 
funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The budgetary basis of accounting for the 
governmental fund types is the same basis as accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America except capital outlay expenditures are budgeted by function.  For the 
proprietary fund type the budgetary basis is the same as the accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America basis except that service charges to other funds are 
budgeted as operating transfers in. 
 
The budgeting process begins by appointing budget committee members in early fall of each 
year.  Budget recommendations are developed through early spring and the Budget Committee 
and the Board of Directors approves the budget in late spring.  Public notices of the budget 
hearing are generally published in early June and the public hearing is held in late June.  The 
budget is adopted, appropriations are made, and the tax levy is declared not later than June 30.  
 
Expenditure budgets are appropriated at the major function level (instruction, supporting 
services, enterprise and community services, building acquisition, construction and 
improvement, contingency, and other uses) for each fund. 
 
Appropriations may not be legally over expended, except in the case of grant receipts, which could 
not be reasonably estimated at the time the budget was adopted. Management must obtain Board of 
Directors authorization for all appropriation transfers and supplemental budgets.  Supplemental 
budgets less than 10% of the fund's original budget may be adopted by the Board of Directors at a 
regular Board meeting. A supplemental budget greater than 10% of the fund's original budget 
requires hearings before the public, publication in newspapers and approval by the Board of 
Directors.   

 
Appropriation transfers were made during the year.  Expenditures of the various funds were within 
authorized appropriations.   Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 
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2. Deposits and Investments  
 
 
The District maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds.  Each fund 
type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the balance sheet as “Cash and cash equivalents.”   
 
Cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2020: 
 

Cash and Investments consisted of:

Petty Cash 314$                       
Demand Deposits 228,400                

State of Oregon Treasurer's Local Government 

Investment Pool 13,950,566             

14,179,280$           

 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are shown on the basic financial statements as: 
 

Cash and cash equivalents are reported as follows:

Governmental funds 392,374$                

Proprietary funds 1,423,818               

Fiduciary funds 12,363,088             

14,179,280$           
 

 
Deposits with Financial Institutions 
 
Deposits with financial institutions consist of bank demand deposits and time deposits. The 
District’s deposits with financial institutions are fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal 
Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  
 
To provide additional security required and authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 295, 
deposits above insurance limits are covered by collateral held in a multiple financial institution 
collateral pool administered by the State of Oregon Treasury Collateral Pool. The District has no 
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions.  
 
Public funds are collateralized in the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP).  
Oregon Revised Statutes and District policy require depository institutions to maintain on 
deposit, with the collateral pool manager, securities having a value not less than 10% of their 
quarter-end public fund deposits if they are well capitalized, 25% of their quarter-end public 
fund deposits if they are adequately capitalized, or 110% of their quarter-end public fund 
deposits if they are undercapitalized or assigned to pledge 110% by the Office of the State 
Treasurer.  
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Investments 
 
Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short-
Term Fund, which is an external investment pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool, 
and is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment 
company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same value as the number of pool shares 
owned.  The unit of account is each share held, and the value of the position would be the fair 
value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the number of shares held.  Investments in the 
Short-Term Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio 
guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, which establish diversification 
percentages and specify the types and maturities of investments. The portfolio guidelines permit 
securities lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase agreements and reverse 
repurchase agreements. The fund appears to be in compliance with all portfolio guidelines at 
June 30, 2020.   
 
The LGIP seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP is neither 
insured nor guaranteed by the FDIC or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks 
to maintain the value of share investments at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by 
investing in the pool.  We intend to measure these investments at book value since it 
approximates fair value. The pool is comprised of a variety of investments.  These investments 
are characterized as a level 2 fair value measurement in the Oregon Short Term Fund’s audited 
financial report. As of June 30, 2020, the fair value of the position in the LGIP is 100.6% of the 
value of the pool shares as reported in the Oregon Short Term Fund audited financial statements. 
Amounts in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool are not required to be 
collateralized.  
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
The District has a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities to 18 months or less 
as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of counterparty, the District will not be able 
to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party. At June 30, 
2020, the District does not have investments exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
At June 30, 2020, 100% was invested in the Local Government Investment Pool.  State statutes do 
not limit the percentage of investments in this instrument.   
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3.  Receivables 
 
Accounts and other receivables consist primarily of claims for reimbursements of costs under 
various federal and state grant programs and services provided to local component school districts.  
All the receivables are considered current and deemed collectable by management.   
 

Receivable are comprised as follows:

Property taxes 302,879$                    

Grants 9,751,629                   

Trade and other 975,198                      

11,029,706$               

Receivables are reported as follows:

Governmental funds 10,848,910$               

Proprietary funds 180,796                      

Fiduciary funds -                              

11,029,706$               

 
 

4.  Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets activity for the year was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2019 Increase Decrease June 30, 2020

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 467,500$        -$                   -$                   467,500$         

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 14,854,775     21,936           -                     14,876,711      
Leasehold improvements 355,251        -                   -                    355,251          
Vehicles and equipment 3,759,959       19,378           -                     3,779,337        

Total capital assets being depreciated 18,969,985   41,314         -                    19,011,299     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements (5,975,571)      (440,028)        -                     (6,415,599)      
Leasehold improvements (138,311)         (20,039)          -                     (158,350)         

Vehicles and equipment (2,369,703)      (304,215)        -                     (2,673,918)      
Total accumulated depreciation (8,483,585)    (764,282)      -                    (9,247,867)     

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 10,486,400     (722,968)        -                     9,763,432        

Total capital assets, net 10,953,900$   (722,968)$      -$                   10,230,932$    
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Depreciation expense for the year was charged to the following functions/programs: 
 
 

Instruction:
Regular programs 23,539$          
Special programs 423,718          

Support services:
Student Services 143,838          
Instructional staff services 31,336            
General administration 17,578            
Business services 29,043            
Central activities 85,065            

Enterprise and community services:
Community services 10,165            

764,282$       

 
 

5. Compensated Absences 
 
The District does not liquidate liability for compensated absences until leave is actually taken by 
the employee in the governmental funds.  Accrued vacation leave is considered a compensated 
absence.  The fund used to liquidate the liability is the fund where the employee’s salary was 
charged.  The liability is considered a current liability as vacation is given at the beginning of the 
fiscal year and must either be taken within the fiscal year or up to 80 hours can be used by the 
end of the calendar year.  The liability balance reflects the maximum carryover up to the 80 
hours limitation.  Of the balance, 38 percent reflects vacation salary charged to the General Fund, 
12 percent to Special Revenue Funds and 50 percent to the Enterprise Funds.    
 
Activity for compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2020, all of which are considered 
due within one year, as follows:   
 

Compensated Absences $ 67,707            $ 104,356 $ (67,707)  $ 104,356       

Balance
June 30, 2019 Additions Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2020
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6. Long-Term Obligations 
 
Bonds payable 
 
Full Faith and Credit Obligation Bonds 
 
On June 27, 2005 the District issued $4,175,000 full faith and credit refunding obligation bonds, 
Series 2005B to refund the Series 1999 and obtain a savings in total debt service requirement.   
Interest rates on the bonds range from 3.5% to 4.15% and the final maturity date is June 15, 
2024. 
 
On October 13, 2016, the District issued $2,354,000 full faith and credit obligation bonds, Series 
2016 to refund the Series 2005 and partially fund the Washington Service Center roofing project 
and obtain a savings of $122,642 in total debt service requirement.   Interest rates on the bonds 
range from 2.1% to 2.43% and the final maturity date is June 15, 2025.  In the Event of Default 
occurring for the Determination of Taxability, interest on this financing agreement shall accrue at 
the rate of 3.66%, effective as of the effective date of the applicable Determination of Taxability.  
Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default other than Determination of 
Taxability, the Lender may, in addition to pursuing other remedies, at its election increase the 
Interest Rate by 3.00 percentage points.  All rights, powers and remedies of the Lender may be 
exercised at any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, are cumulative and shall not be 
exclusive, and shall be in addition to any other rights powers or remedies provided by law or 
equity.  The Lender may waive any Event of Default, but no such waiver shall extend to a 
subsequent Event of Default.   
 
 
Debt Activity 
 
Debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
  Full Faith & Credit 
       obligation bonds 3,299,644$    -$                656,218$    2,643,426$    678,765$    

  Unamortized discount (104,773)       -                  (21,181)       (83,592)          (21,181)       

Total bonds payable, net 3,194,871$    -$               635,037$   2,559,834$   
 

 
 
Payments on the full faith and credit obligation bonds are made by the General Fund. 
 
The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of governmental activities for the 
year ended June 30, 2020: 
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Principal
Outstanding Outstanding

Original at June 30, at June 30, Interest
Issue Date Issue 2019 Additions Reductions 2020 Rates

Full Faith and Credit Obligation Bonds:
June 27, 2005 4,175,000   1,855,000$ -$            340,000$   1,515,000$ 3.50 - 4.15%

October 13, 2016 2,354,000   1,444,644   -              316,218    1,128,426   2.10 - 2.43%

3,299,644   -              656,218    2,643,426   

Unamortized Discount (104,773) -              (21,181) (83,592)       

3,194,871$ -$           635,037$  2,559,834$ Total

Total Full Faith and Credit Obligation Bonds

 
The pension and other postemployment liabilities for governmental activities are incurred and 
paid by each of the governmental type funds.  Also, for the governmental activities full faith and 
credit obligation bonds are liquidated by the general fund. 

 
 
Debt Maturities 
 
Future bond maturities are as follows: 

Fiscal Year
 Ending
June 30,

2021 $ 678,765 $ 100,614 $ 779,379
2022 564,105 75,947 640,052
2023 583,737 52,814 636,551
2024 608,481 28,821 637,302
2025 208,338 3,715 212,053

$ 2,643,426 $ 261,911 $ 2,905,337

Principal Interest Total
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7. Interfund Balances and Transfers 
 
The following is a reconciliation of interfund balances and transfers:   

Transfers Transfers Due to Due from
In Out Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund 236,176$         2,242,441$      -$                     6,934,422$  
Special Revenue Fund 2,267,363        311,098           6,934,422        -                   
Capital Projects Fund 50,000             -                       -                       -                   

2,553,539$      2,553,539$      6,934,422$      6,934,422$  

General Fund 
Transfers In - Support to programs.
Transfers Out - Support to programs, distribution of county allocations.  

Transfers In  - Support to programs, distribution of county allocations.  
Transfers Out - Support to programs.

Capital Projects Fund
Transfers In - General and special revenue funds support for capital projects.
Transfer Out - No activity during the fiscal year.

There is a $6,934,422 interfund balance in the General Fund to fund reimburseable expenditures 
in the Special Revenue Fund.

Special Revenue Fund 

 

Interfund transfers between funds of the primary government are presented in the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenditure and Changes in Fund Balance – comparison schedules for General Fund, 
Special Revenue Fund, Enterprise Fund and Fiduciary Governmental Funds.  The budgetary 
comparison schedules for General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Enterprise Fund and Fiduciary 
Fund include transfers between fiduciary activities and the primary government, which have 
been treated as revenues and expenditures in the combining fund financial statements, in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The 
net effect of this treatment on all fund balances is zero. 
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8. Operating Lease Agreements 
 
Building space is leased at various locations.  Approximate future minimum rental commitments 
under these agreements are as follows:  
 

Year Ending 

June 30, Amount 

2021 1,294,535$             

2022 1,269,297               

2023 669,652                  

2024 670,576                  

2025 686,967                  

2026-2029 1,941,904               

6,532,931$             
 

The total rental expense under these or similar leases were approximately $1,390,449 for the year 
ended June 30, 2020. 
 
 
9. Pension Plan 

 
Plan Description – The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a 
single cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan.  All benefits of the system are 
established by the legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A.  
Oregon PERS produces an independently audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
which can be found at:   
 

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2019-CAFR.pdf 
 

If the link is expired please contact Oregon PERS for this information. 
 

a. PERS Pension (Chapter 238).  The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed 
to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 
 
i. Pension Benefits.  The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life.  It 

may be selected from 13 retirement benefit options.  These options include 
survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds.  The basic benefit is based on years 
of service and final average salary.  A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire 
employees, and 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the 
number of years of service and the final average salary.  Benefits may also be 
calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who were 
contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater 
benefits results. 
A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age 
for a service retirement allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of 
five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing 
employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire members). 
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General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire 
members are eligible after reaching age 50. Tier 1 general service employee 
benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years 
of service. Police and fire member benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior 
to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier 2 members are eligible for full 
benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed 
to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 

 
ii. Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives 

a lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions 
and interest).  In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from 
employer funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the 
following contributions are met: 
 member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death, 
 member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment, 
 member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-

covered job, or 
 member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the 

time of death. 
 

iii. Disability Benefits.  A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who 
becomes disabled from other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty 
disability benefit.  A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness 
qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits 
regardless of the length of PERS-covered service.  Upon qualifying for either a 
non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and 
fire members) when determining the monthly benefit. 
 

iv. Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Members may choose to continue 
participation in their variable account after retiring and may experience annual 
benefit fluctuations due to changes in the fair value of the underlying global 
equity investments of that account.  Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are 
adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes (COLA).  The cap on the COLA 
is capped at 2.0 percent. 

 
b) OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB).  The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit 

Pension Program provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 
 

i. Pension Benefits.  This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by 
employer contributions.  Benefits are calculated with the following formula for 
members who attain normal retirement age:   
Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the 
final average salary.  Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 
or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit.  To be classified as a police and fire 
member, the individual must have been employed continuously as a police and 
fire member for at least five years immediately preceding retirement.   
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General service:  1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and 
the final average salary.  Normal retirement age for general service members is 
age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit. 
A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following 
dates:  the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five 
calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, if the 
pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective. 
 

ii. Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other 
person who is constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the 
spouse, receives for  life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have 
been paid to the deceased member.  The surviving spouse may elect to delay 
payment of the death benefit, but payment must commence no later than 
December 31 of the calendar year in which the member would have reached 70 ½ 
years. 
 

iii. Disability Benefits.  A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement 
credits before the member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled 
due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the 
member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the 
disability occurred. 
 

 
Contributions – PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially 
determined rates.  These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are 
intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.  The funding policy applies to 
the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans.  Employer 
contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation, 
which became effective July 1, 2019.  The state of Oregon and certain schools, community 
colleges, and political subdivisions have made unfunded actuarial liability payments and their 
rates have been reduced.  Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2020 were 
approximately $8,934,533, excluding amounts to fund employer specific liabilities.  The District 
recognized $5,381,522 in governmental funds and $391,037 in enterprise funds as employer 
pension expense during the reporting period. 
 
Pension Asset or Liability    

 
At June 30, 2020, the District reported a net pension liability of $62,667,430 for its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability.  The pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017, rolled forward to a measurement date of June 30, 
2019.  The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  As of the measurement date 
of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District’s proportion was .3623 percent and .3625 percent 
respectively. 
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The PERS rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2020 were (1) Tier 1/Tier 2 – 32.03% and 
(2) OPSRP general services – 26.58%. 
 
At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pension from the following sources: 
 

Net

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 3,455,924        $ -               

Changes in assumptions 8,501,552        -               

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments -                  1,776,558    
Changes in proportionate share -                  3,286,766    

Differences between employer contributions and 
employer's proportionate share of system contributions 2,352,196        26,397         

Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (below) 14,309,672      5,089,721    $ 9,219,951  

District contributions subsequent to measurement date 8,934,533        

Net deferred outflow (inflow) of resources $ 23,244,205    $ 5,089,721  $ 18,154,484

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources

 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $8,934,533 resulting from District 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.  Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Year ending 
June 30, Amount

2021 4,899,764$         

2022 293,467              
2023 2,142,773           
2024 1,736,616           
2025 147,331              

Thereafter -                          

Total 9,219,951$         
 

 
All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the 
Oregon PERS system-wide GASB 68 reporting summary dated March 4, 2020 which can be 
found at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx. 
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Oregon PERS produces an independently audited CAFR which can be found at:   
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2019-CAFR.pdf 
 
Actuarial Valuations – The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 
2021, were set using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.  For the Tier One/Tier Two 
component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution 
rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (estimated amount necessary to finance benefits 
earned by employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization 
unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new 
unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized over 20 years.   
 
For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method 
produced an employer rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount 
necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an 
actuarially determined amount for funding a disability benefit component, and (c) an amount for 
the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed 
period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years.  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

 
Valuation date December 31, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 
Experience Study 
Report 

2016, Published July 26, 2017 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 
Amortization method Amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered amortization 

bases over a closed period; Tier One/Tier Two UAL is amortized over 
20 years and OPSRP pension UAL is amortized over 16 years 

Asset valuation method Market value of assets 
Discount rate 7.2 percent 
Inflation rate 2.5 percent  
Investment rate of 
return 

7.2 percent, previously 7.2 percent. 

Projected salary 
increase 

3.5 percent overall payroll growth 

Cost of Living 
Adjustment 

Blend of 2.0 percent COLA and graded COLA (1.25/0.15 percent) in 
accordance with Moro decision, blend based on service. 

Mortality Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 
RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, 
Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as 
described in the valuation.   
Active members:   
RP-2014 Employees, sex-distinct generational Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the 
valuation.   
Disabled retirees:  
RP-2014 Disabled retirees, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, 
Social Security Data Scale. 
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Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts 
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future.  Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of 
even numbered years.  The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2016 Experience 
Study which is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2016. 
 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of the 
measurement date June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 7.20 and 7.20 percent respectively, for the 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from the plan members and those of the contributing employers are 
made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined.  Based on those assumptions, 
the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.   
 
Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate – The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the District’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) 
than the current rate. 

 

 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase 
(6.20%) (7.20%) (8.20%)

District's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 100,356,328$    62,667,430$   31,127,014$    

 
Assumed Asset Allocation: 
 

 
Asset Class/Strategy Low Range High Range OIC Target

Debt Securities 15.0% 25.0% 20.0%

Public Equity 32.5% 42.5% 37.5%

Real Estate 9.5% 15.5% 12.5%

Private Equity 14.0% 21.5% 17.5%

Alternative Equity 0.0% 12.5% 12.5%

Opportunity Portfolio 0.0% 3.0% 0.0%

Total 100%

Source: June 30, 2019 PERS CAFR; p. 100  
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 
 
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return 
assumption, in July 2017 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both 
Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) 
investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions for each of the asset classes 
in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. 
The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset 
classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying 
assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not 
based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic 
model. 
 

Asset Class Target

Compound 
Annual Return 

(Geometric)

Core Fixed Income 8.00% 3.49%

Short-term Bonds 8.00% 3.38%

Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.00% 5.09%

High Yield Bonds 1.00% 6.45%

Large/Mid Cap US Equities 15.75% 6.30%

Small Cap US Equities 1.31% 6.69%

Micro Cap US Equities 1.31% 6.80%

Developed Foreign Equities 13.13% 6.71%

Emerging Market Equities 4.13% 7.45%

Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.88% 7.01%

Private Equity 17.50% 7.82%

Real Estate (Property) 10.00% 5.51%

Real Estate (REITS) 2.50% 6.37%

Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 2.50% 4.09%

Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.63% 5.86%

Timber 1.88% 5.62%

Farmland 1.88% 6.15%

Infrastructure 3.75% 6.60%

Commodities 1.88% 3.84%

Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.50%

Source: June 30, 2019 PERS CAFR; p. 74  
 

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date  
 
As described above, GASB 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be 
determined based on the benefit terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit 
terms that occurs after that date are reflected in amounts reported for the subsequent 
Measurement Date. However, Paragraph 80f of GASB 68 requires employers to briefly describe 
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any changes between the Measurement Date and the employer’s reporting date that are expected 
to have a significant effect on the employer’s share of the collective Net Pension Liability, along 
with an estimate of the resulting change, if available.  
 
There are no changes subsequent to the June 30, 2019 Measurement Date. 
 
OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP) 
 
Plan Description.  Employees of the District are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the 
benefits of OPERS are established by the Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute 
(ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new 
members hired on or after August 29, 2003. Chapter 238A created the Oregon Public Service 
Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists of the Defined Benefit Pension Program and the 
Individual Account Program (IAP). Membership includes public employees hired on or after 
August 29, 2003. PERS members retain their existing defined benefit plan accounts, but member 
contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP account. OPSRP is part of OPERS, and is 
administered by the OPERS Board. 
 
Pension Benefits.  Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their 
defined contribution plan. An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is 
established or on the date the rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional 
employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the 
following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar 
years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the 
date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies. Upon retirement, a 
member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee account, rollover 
account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-, 
10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 
minimum distribution limit. 
 
Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum 
the member’s account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional 
contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the installment payments are 
completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-
sum payment. 
 
Contributions.  Employees of the District pay six (6) percent of their covered payroll. The 
District did not make any optional contributions to member IAP accounts for the year ended June 
30, 2020. 
 
Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available 
online, or by contacting PERS at the following address: PO BOX 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-
3700.  
 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx 
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10. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)s 
 
The District offers a postemployment health insurance subsidy and tax shelter annuity, and 
contributes to a retirement health insurance account through Oregon Public Employees Retirement 
System. The breakdown of the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense are:  

Postemployment 
Health Insurance 
Subsidy (PHIS)

Retirement Health 
Insurance Account 

(RHIA) Net
Total OPEB Liablity 1,221,132$            -$                     1,221,132$        
Total OPEB Asset -                            538,147               538,147             
OPEB Deferred Outflows of Resources 105,075                 25,346                 130,421             
OPEB Deferred Inflows of Resources 337,238                 114,531               451,769             
OPEB Expense/(Income) 44,589                   (99,437)                (54,848)              

 
Postemployment Health Insurance Subsidy (PHIS) 

Plan description – The District operates a single-employer defined benefit plan that provides 
postemployment health, dental, vision and life insurance benefits to eligible employees and their 
spouses.  Benefits and eligibility for members are established through the collective bargaining 
agreements and Oregon State law.  No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in 
paragraph 4 of GASB 75.  The District’s post-retirement healthcare plan was established in 
accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303.  ORS stipulate that for the purpose of 
establishing healthcare premiums, the rate must be based on all plan members, including both active 
employees and retirees.   

Benefits Provided – Eligible retirees and their dependents under age 65 are allowed to continue to 
enroll in the same health care coverage as offered to active employees.  The retiree’s coverage 
selection is available only upon retirement although coverage can continue until the retiree’s age 65.  
The spouse’s coverage is available until the spouse’s age 65 but also must be selected at the time of 
retirement.  Following the retiree’s death or attainment of age 65, the retiree’s spouse can continue 
full coverage until the spouse’s age 65.  The retiree or surviving spouse is responsible for paying the 
full premium at the applicable tier. The difference between retiree claims costs, which because of 
the effect of age is generally higher in comparison to all plan members, and the amount of retiree 
healthcare premiums represents the District’s implicit employer subsidy.  Eligibility is determined 
by: 

 Employees of the District are covered under medical benefits at the time of retirement. 
 
 Employees must retire with an active service while eligible for a pension benefit payable 

immediately under the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). 
 

Employees covered by benefit terms – As of June 30, 2020, there are 584 active and 12 retired 
members in the plan.   
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Total OPEB Liability 

The District’s total OPEB liability of $1,221,132 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
July 1, 2019, adjusted to a measurement date of June 30, 2020. 

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs  

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement 
unless otherwise specified: 

 

Valuation date July 1, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 
Measurement date June 30, 2019 
Inflation 2.50% 
Projected salary growth 3.50% 
Discount rate 3.50%  
Withdrawal, retirement, and mortality 
rates 

December 31, 2018 Oregon PERS valuation 

Election and lapse rates 30% of eligible employees 
60% of male members and 35% of female members will 
elect spouse coverage 
5% annual lapse rate 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 
Level Percent of Pay 

Demographic Assumptions:  
Mortality Pub-2010 Teacher Employee and Healthy Retiree tables, sex 

distinct for members and dependents.  Future mortality 
improvement is not projected, as it would be immaterial to 
the valuation. 
 

Disability Percentage of the 1985 Class 1 Rates: 35% with a 0.18% 
cap; Ordinary Disability only; no duty disability assumed 

Retirement Based on Oregon PERS assumptions.  Annual rates are 
based on age, Tier / ORSRP, and duration of service 

 

Discount Rate – Under GASB 75, unfunded plans must use a discount rate that reflects a 20-year 
tax-exempt municipal bond yield or index rate.  The discount rate in effect for the June 30, 2019 
reporting date is 3.50%, reflecting the Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Bond Index. 

Health Care Cost Trend – The actuarial calculations used an assumption that medical costs will 
increase 3.00% in the first year, 5.25% in the second 5.50% in the third year, and varying from 
5.75% to 4.25% over the remainder of the projection period.  These trends are based on a model 
circulated by the Society of Actuaries that considers current trends in health care costs, the potential 
impacts of certain well-defined aspects of the Affordable Care Act, and long-term constraints on 
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trend such as growth in per capita income.  It also assumes that dental costs will increase by 4.0% in 
each year.  Medical and dental trends were based on actual changes to July 1, 2019 premiums 
compared with July 1, 2018 premiums. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance as of June 30, 2019 $ 1,445,032                          

Changes for the year:
Service cost 146,850                             
Interest on total OPEB liability 59,545                               
Effect of changes to benefit terms -                                     

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (158,360)                            

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (164,399)                            

Benefit payments (107,536)                            

Balance as of June 30, 2020 $ 1,221,132                          

Increase(Decrease)
Total OPEB Liability

 

The effects of assumptions changes or inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.87% in 
2019 to 3.5% in 2020. 

Sensitivity 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the 
total OPEB liability of the District for the Postemployment Health Insurance Subsidy, as well as 
what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (2.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50%) than the current discount rate: 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase 

2.50% Rate 4.50%

Total OPEB liability 1,301,667$         1,221,132$     1,145,737$      

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates.  The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the District for the Postemployment Health Insurance Subsidy, 
as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a health care cost trend 
rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.25%) than the 
current discount rates: 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase 

Total OPEB liability 1,106,686$         1,221,132$     1,355,762$      
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized an OPEB expense of $44,589 related to 
the PHIS OPEB.  At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Net

Difference between expected and actual experience $ (137,523)          $ -                    

Changes of assumptions or inputs (199,715)          -                    

Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (337,238)          -                    $ (337,238)   

Benefit Payments -                   105,075             105,075    

Total as of June 30, 2020 $ (337,238)        $ 105,075           $ (232,163)   

Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows
of Resources of Resources

 

Subtotal amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the PHIS OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year ending 
June 30, Amount

2021 (56,731)$             

2022 (56,731)               
2023 (56,731)               
2024 (53,704)               
2025 (45,390)               

Thereafter (67,951)               

Total (337,238)$           

 

Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) 

Plan description - As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), the 
District contributes to the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible 
employees.  RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment 
benefit plan administered by OPERS. Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420 established this trust 
fund.  Authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of RHIA resides with the Oregon 
Legislature.  The plan is closed to new entrants hired on or after August 29, 2003.  OPERS issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information. That report may be obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement 
System, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700. 

Benefits - RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health 
insurance premiums of eligible retirees. 
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Contributions - Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution 
requirements of the plan members and the participating employers were established and may be 
amended only by the Oregon Legislature.  ORS require that an amount equal to $60 or the total 
monthly cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums coverage, whichever is less, shall 
be paid from the Retirement Health Insurance Account established by the employer, and any 
monthly cost in excess of $60 shall be paid by the eligible retired member in the manner provided in 
ORS 238.410.  To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium cost the member 
must: (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or receive 
a disability allowance as if the member had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS, (2) 
receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan.  A 
surviving spouse or dependent of a deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is 
eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from 
PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the member retired before May 1, 1991. 

Participating employers are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year 
by OPERS, currently 0.06% of annual covered OPERF payroll and 0.00% of OPSRP payroll under 
a contractual requirement in effect until June 30, 2021.  Consistent with GASB Statement 75, the 
OPERS Board of Trustees sets the employer contribution rates as a measure of the proportionate 
relationship of the employer to all employers consistent with the manner in which contributions to 
the OPEB plan are determined.  The basis for the employer’s portion is determined by comparing 
the employer’s actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal year to the plan with the 
total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers.  The District's contributions to 
RHIA for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018, were approximately $24,994, $138,026, 
and $126,646 respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to OPEB 

At June 30, 2020, the District reported an asset of $538,147 for its proportionate share of the net 
OPEB asset.  The net OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB asset used 
to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017, 
rolled forward to the measurement date.  The District’s proportion of the net OPEB asset was based 
on the District’s actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal year being measured 
compared to the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers.  The District’s 
proportionate share as of the measurement date is 0.27849195% changed from 0.26155545% for 
the prior measurement date. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense reduction of ($99,437) 
related to the RHIA OPEB.  At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to the RHIA OPEB from the following sources: 
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Net

Difference between expected and actual experience $ -                   $ (70,965)         

Changes of assumptions -                   (558)              

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
investment -                   (33,217)         

Changes in proportionate share 352                   (9,791)           

Differences between employer contribution and employer's 
proportunate share of system contributions -                   -                
Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals 352                   (114,531)       $ (114,179)   

District contributions subsequent to measurement date 24,994              -                24,994      

Total deferred outflow (inflow) of resources $ 25,346            $ (114,531)     $ (89,185)    

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources

 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $24,994 resulting from District contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension asset in the 
year ending June 30, 2021.  Subtotal amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to the RHIA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as 
follows: 

Year ending 
June 30, Amount

2021 (58,300)$             

2022 (52,712)               
2023 (6,588)                 
2024 3,421                   
2025 -                          

Thereafter -                          

Total (114,179)$           

 

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs  

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement 
unless otherwise specified: 

Valuation date December 31, 2017 
Measurement date June 30, 2019 
Experience Study 2016, published July 26, 2017 
Actuarial assumptions:  

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 
Inflation rate 2.50% 
Long-term expected rate of return 7.20% 
Discount rate 7.20% 
Projected salary increases 3.50%  
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Retiree healthcare participation Healthy retirees: 35% 
Disabled retirees: 20% 

Healthcare cost trend rate Not applicable 
Mortality Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social Security Data 
Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as 
described in the valuation. 
Active members: 
RP-2014 Employees, sex-distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with 
collar adjustments and set-backs as described in 
the valuation. 
Disabled retirees: 
RP-2014 Disabled retirees, sex-distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social Security Data 
Scale. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future.  Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered 
years.  The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2016 Experience Study which is 
reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2016. 

All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon 
PERS Retirement Health Insurance Account Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Other 
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plan Schedules of Employer Allocations and OPEB Amounts by 
Employer report, as of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2019. This independently audited report 
was dated March 3, 2020 and can be found at: 

https://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Documents/GASB/2019/PERS-GASB-75-RHIA-Report-FY-6.30.19.pdf 
 
Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 7.20 for 
both years.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as 
actuarially determined.  Based on those assumptions, the RHIA plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for the RHIA plan was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, 
in July 2017 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s 
capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. 
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Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes 
adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but 
instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model.  For more information on 
the long-term expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated using both the arithmetic 
and geometric means, see the breakdown in Footnote 9. 

(Source: June 30, 2019 Oregon PERS CAFR; page 74) 

Sensitivity Analysis 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the 
total OPEB liability of the District for the Retirement Health Insurance Account, as well as what the 
total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point 
lower (7.20%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20%) than the current discount rate: 

 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase 

6.20% Rate 8.20%

Total OPEB liability (417,203)$          (538,147)$       (641,200)$        

Changes Subsequent to Measurement Date 

There are no changes subsequent to the June 30, 2019 Measurement Date that meet this requirement 
and thus would require a brief descrition under the GASB standard. 
 
 
11. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
these agencies, principally the federal government. The amount, if any, of costs that may be 
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although management expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
The District is involved in certain legal actions currently pending.  Although their outcome 
cannot be determined, it is the opinion of management that settlement of these matters will not 
have a material effect on the financial position and results of operations. 
 
A substantial portion of operating funding is received from the State of Oregon.  State funding is 
determined through state wide revenue projections that are paid to individual school districts 
based on pupil counts and other factors in the state school fund revenue formula.  Since these 
projections and pupil counts fluctuate they can cause either increases or decreases in revenue.  
Due to these future uncertainties at the state level, the future effect on the operations cannot be 
determined.  
 
As public employees retire, the PERS system reviews their complete employment history to 
verify that all of their previous public employers have contributed the correct amount to their 
pensions. When PERS becomes aware of unpaid pension amounts by an employer from previous 
years, the amount owed becomes due immediately and the total liability (plus interest) is added 
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to the next invoice. The District is not currently aware of any material unpaid pension 
contributions from previous years. 
 
12. Tax Abatements 
 
As of June 30, 2020, Northwest Regional Education Service District had tax abatements through 
five programs entered into by other governments that impacted their levied taxes and require 
disclosure under GASB 77. 
 
Vertical Housing (ORS 307.864): 

The partial property tax exemption for vertical housing development projects exempts the 
property from a portion of ad valorem property taxes imposed by local districts, other 
than districts electing not to participate in the vertical housing development zone.   
 
The exemption percentage is equal to 20% of the taxes for one equalized floor allocated 
to residential housing, 40% for two equalized floors, 60% for three equalized floors, and 
80% for four or more equalized floors.  The exemption begins in the first tax year the 
project is occupied or ready for occupancy following certification under the program and 
for the next nine consecutive tax years.   
 

Enterprise Zone (ORS 285C.175): 
The Oregon Enterprise Zone program is a State of Oregon economic development 
program established, that allows for property tax exemptions for up to five years.  In 
exchange for receiving property tax exemption, participating firms are required to meet 
the program requirements set by state statute and the local sponsor.   
 
The Enterprise Zone program allows industrial firms that will be making a substantial 
new capital investment a waiver of 100% of the amount of real property taxes attributable 
to the new investment for a 5-year period after completion. Land or existing machinery or 
equipment is not tax exempt; therefore, there is no loss of current property tax levies to 
local taxing jurisdiction.  
 

Construction in Process in Enterprise Zone (ORS 285C.170): 
The Oregon Enterprise Zone program is a State of Oregon economic development 
program established, that allows for property tax exemptions.  A Construction-in-Process 
exemption is available for qualifying properties currently under construction in an 
Enterprise Zone.   
 
To qualify, the property must be owned or leased by an authorized business that is 
contractually obligated to own or lease the property until placed in service, it may not be 
previously subject to exemption as a commercial facility (ORS 307.330), and may not be 
operated, in all or part, as a hotel, motel, or destination resort.   
 
Property may be exempt for no more than two tax years, which must be consecutive, and 
is not dependent on the property already receiving or being qualified to receive the 
Enterprise Zone exemption. 
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Strategic Key Investment Zone (ORS 307.123): 

Real or personal property that the Oregon Business Development Commission, acting 
pursuant to ORS 285C.606, has determined is an eligible project under ORS 285C.600 to 
285C.635 shall be subject to assessment and taxation up to that portion of the real market 
value of the eligible project that equals the minimum cost of the project under ORS 
285C.606 (1)(c), increased annually for growth at the rate of three percent, shall be 
taxable at the taxable portion’s assessed value under ORS 308.146. The taxable portion 
of real market value, as adjusted, shall be allocated as follows until the entire amount is 
assigned: first to land, second to buildings, third to real property machinery and 
equipment and last to personal property. The remainder of the real market value shall be 
exempt from taxation for a period of 15 years from the beginning of the tax year after the  
date the property is certified for occupancy.   
 

Strategic Investment (ORS 285C.600): 
The purpose of the Strategic Investment program is to improve employment in areas 
where eligible projects are to be located and urges business firms that will benefit from 
an eligible project to hire employees from the region in which the eligible project is to be 
located whenever practicable.  
 
In order to be eligible for the SIP exemption: 

1) The project must be an eligible project 
2) Benefit a traded sector industry as defined in ORS 285B.280, and 
3) The total cost of the project equals or exceeds: 

a. $100 million; or 
b. $25 million, for rural areas 

 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District abated property taxes as follows under these 
programs: 
 

Columbia County Enterprise Zone $ 14,321        
Columbia County Strategic Investment Program 36,851        
Clatsop County Strategic Investment Program 38,412        
Tillamook County String of Pearls Enterprise Zone 606             
Washington County Construction in Process Enterprise Zone 5,000          
Washington County Enterprise Zone 97,000        
Washington County Housing for Low Income Rental 420             
Washington County Nonprofit Corporation Low Income Housing 25,000        
Washington County Strategic Investment Program 1,466,000   
Washington County Vertical Housing 13,000        

$ 1,696,610   
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SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN (PERS)

2020 0.36 % $ 62,667,430            $ 34,070,383    183.9             % 80.2 %

2019 0.36 54,917,814            30,866,789    177.9             82.1

2018 0.36 48,934,385            28,759,150    170.2             83.1

2017 0.41 61,372,959            26,086,298    235.3             80.5

2016 0.50 28,887,403            24,976,750    115.7             91.9

2015 0.53 (11,973,053)          25,079,363    (47.7)              103.6

2014 0.53 26,955,419            25,060,193    107.6             92.0

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurement date.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend

has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN (PERS)

Year
Ended

June 30,

2020 $ 8,934,533       $ 8,934,533              $ -                 $ 34,752,100    25.7          %
2019 7,096,234       7,096,234              -                 34,070,383    20.8          
2018 6,328,967       6,328,967              -                 30,866,789    20.5          
2017 5,053,661       5,053,661              28,759,150    17.6          
2016 4,762,074       4,762,074              -                 26,086,298    18.3          
2015 4,982,087       4,982,087              -                 24,976,750    19.9          
2014 5,111,176       5,111,176              -                 25,079,363    20.4          

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurement date.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend

has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

1 Amounts for covered payroll use the prior year's data to match the measurement date used by the pension 
plan for each fiscal year.

required statutorily required deficiency covered of covered
contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

Contributions in Contributions
Statutorily relation to the Contribution Employer's as a percent

June 30, liability (NPL) liability (NPL) payroll1 payroll liability

a percentage of 

Ended  the net pension  of the net pension covered of covered the total pension

Employer's Employer's (c) NPL as a net position as

Year proportion of proportionate share Employer's percentage 

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
Hillsboro, Oregon

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
At June 30, 2020

(a) (b) (b/c) Plan fiduciary
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGE IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY - PHIS
JUNE 30, 2020
(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Difference Changes of Net change
Year Change of between assumptions in total

Ended Service Benefit expected and or other Benefit OPEB
June 30, Cost Interest Terms actual results inputs payments liablity

2020 147$       59$         -$           (158)$           (164)$          (108)$    (224)$           
2019 145         53           -             -                   (27)              (108)      63                 
2018 151         41           -             -                   (66)              (94)        32                 

SCHEDULE OF TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS- PHIS
JUNE 30, 2020
(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Total OPEB 
Total Net change Total liability as 

Year OPEB in total OPEB percentage of
Ended liability OPEB liability Covered covered Discount

June 30, beginning liability ending payroll 2 payroll Rate

2020 1,445$    (224)$     1,221$   34,070$       3.6% 3.50%
2019 1,382      63           1,445     30,867         4.7% 3.87%
2018 1,350      32           1,382     28,759         4.8% 3.58%
2017 -             -             1,350     26,086         5.2% 2.85%

Notes:

1 The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at July 1 of odd years and rolled forward to the measurement date.

2 Amounts for covered payroll use the prior year's data to match the measurement date used by the pension plan for each fiscal year.

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
Hillsboro, Oregon

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
At June 30, 2020

These schedules are required to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is 
presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

Changes of assumptions.  Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes to the discount rate each period.
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SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY FOR RHIA
JUNE 30, 2020

NOL as a Plan fiduciary
District's District's District's percentage net position as

Year proportion of proportionate share covered- of covered- a percentage of 
Ended  the net OPEB  of the net OPEB employee employee the total OPEB

June 30, liability liability (NOL) 1 payroll 2 payroll liability

2020 0.28% (538,147)$            34,070,383$     -1.6% 146.7%
2019 0.26% (291,967)              30,866,789       -0.9% 124.0%
2018 0.26% (106,738)              28,759,150       -0.4% 108.9%
2017 0.25% 67,587                 26,086,298       0.3% 94.1%

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FOR RHIA
JUNE 30, 2020

Contributions in Contributions
Year Statutorily relation to the Contribution as a percent

Ended required statutorily required deficiency Covered of covered
June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2020 24,994$            24,994$               -$                  34,752,100$       0.1%
2019 138,026            138,026               -                    34,070,383         0.4%
2018 126,646            126,646               -                    30,866,789         0.4%
2017 127,181            127,181               -                    28,759,150         0.4%

Notes:

At June 30, 2020

These schedules are required to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is 
presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

1 The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at December 31 and rolled forward to the measurment date.

2 Amounts for covered payroll use the prior year's data to match the measurement date used by the pension plan for each fiscal year.

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
Hillsboro, Oregon

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Variance to 
Final Budget

Positive
REVENUES: Original Final Actual (Negative)

Other sources -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                           

  Total revenues -                     -                     -                     -                             

EXPENDITURES:
Facilities acquisiton and construction 122,000         122,000         (1) 25,275           96,725                   

  Total expenditures 122,000         122,000         25,275           96,725                   

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (122,000)        (122,000)        (25,275)          96,725                   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 
Transfers in 50,000           50,000           50,000           -                             

Total other financing  sources (uses) 50,000           50,000           50,000           -                             

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (72,000)          (72,000)          24,725           96,725                   

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 72,000           72,000           122,888         (50,888)                  

ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                   -$                   147,613$       147,613$               

    (1) Appropriation level

Budget

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

73



Variance to 
Final Budget

Positive
REVENUES: Original Final Actual (Negative)

Local sources:
Services provided to local districts 3,145,667$      3,145,667$      3,303,073$          157,406$         
Recouping current expenses 15,000             15,000             - (15,000)            
Services provided to other agencies 1,664,501        1,664,501        2,159,749            495,248           

          Total revenues 4,825,168        4,825,168        5,462,822            637,654           

EXPENDITURES:
Support services 

Fiscal services 620,185           620,185           596,806               23,379             
Staff services 433,700           433,700           360,383               73,317             
Technology services 7,481,111        7,481,111        7,430,955            50,156             

          Total expenditures 8,534,996        8,534,996        (1) 8,388,144            146,852           

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES (3,709,828)       (3,709,828)       (2,925,322)          784,506           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 2,754,885        2,754,885        1,313,388            (1,441,497)       

Total other financing  sources (uses) 2,754,885        2,754,885        1,313,388            (1,441,497)       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (954,943)          (954,943)          (1,611,934)          (656,991)          

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 954,943           954,943           2,903,418            1,948,475        

ENDING FUND BALANCE -$  -$  1,291,484$          1,291,484$      

    (1) Appropriation level

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS:
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2020 1,291,484$          

Net pension asset -

Net pension liability (4,245,135)          
Net pension related deferrals (net) 1,295,540            

NET POSITION, June 30, 2020 (1,658,111)$        

(1,611,934)$        
RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS: 
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (above) 
Pension income(expense) (page 28) (391,037)             

NET CHANGE IN NET POSITION (2,002,971)$        

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

Budget

ENTERPRISE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Balance Balance 
June 30, 2019 Additions Deductions June 30, 2020

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 11,337,112$           45,188,820$           44,162,844$           12,363,088$           
Accounts receivable 189,967                  -                              189,967                  -                           

11,527,079$           45,188,820$           44,352,811$           12,363,088$           

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable 1,304,142$             18,001,093$           19,239,277$           65,958$                  

Due to school districts 10,222,937             40,954,557             38,880,364             12,297,130          

11,527,079$           58,955,650$           58,119,641$           12,363,088$           

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

AGENCY FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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Variance to 
Final Budget

Positive
REVENUES: Original Final Actual (Negative)

Local sources:
Charges for services 185,000$           185,000$         88,000$            (97,000)$            

Intermediate sources: 
General ESD funds -                        -                       715,354            715,354             

State sources:
Other restricted grants-in-aid -                        -                       500                   500                    

         Total revenues 185,000             185,000           803,854            618,854             

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 13,097,871        13,097,871      (1) 12,739,949       357,922             
Support services 8,620,046          8,920,046        (1) 8,612,707         307,339             
Community services 200,000             300,000           (1) 139,078            160,922             

         Total expenditures 21,917,917        22,317,917      21,491,734       826,183             

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (21,732,917)      (22,132,917)     (20,687,880)     1,445,037          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 
Transfers in 39,700,703        39,700,703      40,150,703       450,000             
Transfers out * (849,424)           (849,424)          (1) (849,424)          -                         
Transits to other agencies * (26,260,362)      (25,860,362)     (1) (16,539,206)     9,321,156          

       Total other financing sources (uses) 12,590,917        12,990,917      22,762,073       9,771,156          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (9,142,000)        (9,142,000)       2,074,193         11,216,193        

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9,142,000          9,142,000        10,222,937       1,080,937          

ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                      -$                     12,297,130$     12,297,130$      

 * Appropriated as other uses.
 (1) Appropriation level 

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

Budget

Hillsboro, Oregon 

AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
 AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Fund 100 Fund 200 Fund 400 Fund 500 Fund 700 TOTAL 
1111 Taxes - current year's levy 12,393,316$      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      12,393,316$            
1112 Taxes - prior year's levies 146,546             -                        -                        -                        -                        146,546                   
1114 Tax offsets 7,053                 -                        -                        -                        -                        7,053                       
1190 Penalties and interest on taxes 11,367               -                        -                        -                        -                        11,367                     
1311 Tuition from individuals -                        2,520                 -                        -                        -                        2,520                       
1312 Tuition from regional districts -                        1,149,864          -                        -                        -                        1,149,864                
1314 Tuition from IN/ST Out/Regional -                        660,686             -                        -                        -                        660,686                   
1510 Earnings on investments 426,026             -                        -                        -                        -                        426,026                   
1700 Extracurricular activities -                        736                    -                        -                        -                        736                          
1811 GED fees -                        2,893                 -                        -                        -                        2,893                       
1910 Rentals 11,914               -                        -                        -                        -                        11,914                     
1920 Contributions and donations from private sources -                        500,719             -                        -                        88,000               588,719                   
1940 Services provided other local education agencies 79,694               21,681,764        -                        2,982,980          -                        24,744,438              
1960 Recovery of prior year expenditures 144,064             67,987               -                        203,495             -                        415,546                   
1970 Services provided other funds 686,655             -                        -                        -                        -                        686,655                   
1980 Fees charged to grants 1,751,703          -                        -                        -                        -                        1,751,703                
1990 Miscellaneous 28,259               23,419               -                        116,598             -                        168,276                   
1993 Services to other agencies -                        25,318               -                        2,159,749          -                        2,185,067                
1994 NWRESD third-party billing -                        135,681             -                        -                        -                        135,681                   
1996 MAC revenue 26,448               2,803,069          -                        -                        -                        2,829,517                

15,713,045        27,054,656        -                        5,462,822          88,000               48,318,523              

2102 General ESD Funds -                        -                        -                        -                        715,354             715,354                   
2105 Natural gas, oil and mineral receipts 5,160                 -                        -                        -                        -                        5,160                       

5,160                 -                        -                        -                        715,354             720,514                   

3101 State school support fund - general support 36,249,998        -                        -                        -                        -                        36,249,998              
3102 SSF - school lunch match -                        2,196                 -                        -                        -                        2,196                       
3104 State timber revenue 439,591             -                        -                        -                        -                        439,591                   
3202 Special ed reimbursement -                        3,177,707          -                        -                        -                        3,177,707                
3223 Early intervention -                        18,733,171        -                        -                        -                        18,733,171              
3250 Oregon youth conservation corp. -                        20,000               -                        -                        -                        20,000                     
3299 Other restricted grants-in-aid -                        5,643,269          -                        -                        500                    5,643,769                
3990 Other state sources -                        115,417             -                        -                        -                        115,417                   

36,689,589        27,691,760        -                        -                        500                    64,381,849              

4500 Restricted rev fed gov through state -                        673,417             -                        -                        -                        673,417                   
4504 National School Breakfast Program  -                        7,963                 -                        -                        -                        7,963                       
4505 National School Lunch Program -                        17,595               -                        -                        -                        17,595                     
4506 National School Snack Program -                        2,746                 -                        -                        -                        2,746                       
4508 IDEA -                        5,754,880          -                        -                        -                        5,754,880                
4512 Title I Neglected / Delinquent -                        112,600             -                        -                        -                        112,600                   
4514 Title III NCLB Grant -                        32,995               -                        -                        -                        32,995                     
4515 Title IC Migrant Project -                        649,501             -                        -                        -                        649,501                   
4517 Youth Transition -                        106,818             -                        -                        -                        106,818                   
4525 State Imp ESD Assess Supp -                        269                    -                        -                        -                        269                          
4910 USDA donated commodities -                        13,287               -                        -                        -                        13,287                     

-                        7,372,071          -                        -                        -                        7,372,071                

5200 Interfund transfers 236,176            3,116,787        50,000             1,313,388        40,150,703        44,867,054            
5400 Resources - beginning fund balance 3,928,173          2,186,131          122,888             2,903,418          10,222,937        19,363,547              

4,164,349          5,302,918          172,888             4,216,806          50,373,640        64,230,601              

Total 56,572,143$      67,421,405$     172,888$          9,679,628$       51,177,494$      185,023,558$         

Revenue from Other Sources

Revenue from State Sources

Revenue from Federal Sources

Total Revenue from State Sources

Total Revenue from Federal Sources

Total Revenue from Other Sources

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

REVENUE SUMMARY - ALL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenue from Intermediate Sources

Total Revenue from Intermediate Sources

Total Revenue from Local Sources

Revenue from Local Sources
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Fund: 100 General Funds

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 
2110 Attendance and social work services 127,649$         44,312$           1,023$             5,986$           -$               315$                         -$                       179,285$           
2130 Health service -                       -                       5,300               685                -                 -                                -                         5,985                 
2210 Improvement of instruction services 299,494           163,439           131,998           8,884             -                 8,226                        -                         612,041             
2240 Instructional staff development -                       -                       26,524             -                     -                 -                                -                         26,524               
2310 Board of education services -                       -                       136,477           3,202             -                 28,723                      -                         168,402             
2320 Executive administration services 752,787           500,960           265,158           31,964           -                 29,317                      -                         1,580,186          
2510 Direction of business support services 803,108           537,862           34,203             9,871             -                 212,158                    -                         1,597,202          
2520 Fiscal services -                       7,387               -                       -                     -                 28,012                      -                         35,399               
2540 Operation and maintenance of plant services 81,687             54,289             418,729           38,742           -                 1,814                        -                         595,261             
2570 Internal services 75,914             52,879             213,790           12,903           -                 2,646                        -                         358,132             
2630 Information services 97,672             50,663             37,096             4,459             -                 1,427                        -                         191,317             
2640 Staff services 545,825           522,826           14,660             24,970           -                 62,917                      -                         1,171,198          
2660 Technology services 514,576           324,415           16,697             461,966         -                 10,732                      -                         1,328,386          

Total Support Services Expenditures 3,298,712        2,259,032        1,301,655        603,632         -                 386,287                    -                         7,849,318          

5110 Debt Service -                       -                       -                       -                     -                 781,379                    -                         781,379             
5200 Transfers of Funds -                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                                43,405,937        43,405,937        

Total Other Uses Expenditures -                       -                       -                       -                    -                 781,379                    43,405,937        44,187,316        

Total 100 General Funds 3,298,712$      2,259,032$      1,301,655$      603,632$       -$               1,167,666$               43,405,937$      52,036,634$      

Support Services Expenditures

Other Uses Expenditures

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

GENERAL FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
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Fund: 200 Special Revenue Funds

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 
1121 Middle / Junior high programs 973,694$          309,376$         726,497$        215,341$      -$                 7,109$          -$                  2,232,017$        
1131 High school programs 86,475              33,628             20,965            2,478            -                   -                    -                    143,546            

1220 Restrictive programs for students with disabilities 2,379,143         1,587,767        2,021,805       51,500          -                   151,590        -                    6,191,805         
1250 Less restrictive programs for students with 

disabilities
4,998,556         3,214,012        1,463,811       169,138        -                   177,428        -                    10,022,945        

1260 Treatment and habilitation 11,639,163        7,501,417        2,618,448       80,524          -                   289,928        -                    22,129,480        
1281 Alternative education 47,404              32,362             982                2,359            -                   3,378            -                    86,485              
1294 Youth corrections education -                        -                      -                     -                   -                   -                    -                    -                        
1299 Other programs -                        -                      -                     -                   -                   -                    -                    -                        

Total Instruction Expenditures 20,124,435        12,678,562      6,852,508       521,340        -                   629,433        -                    40,806,278        

2110 Attendance and social work services 302,013            180,751           170,092          41,652          -                   42,799          -                    737,307            
2130 Health service 1,267,406         720,694           507,827          4,548            -                   24,643          -                    2,525,118         
2140 Psychological services 1,280,144         723,903           97,748            37,461          -                   21,042          -                    2,160,298         
2150 Speech pathology and audiology services 1,417,303         823,333           397,468          11,016          -                   31,615          -                    2,680,735         
2160 Other student treatment services 497,459            298,223           36,279            59,145          -                   41,982          -                    933,088            
2190 Service direction, student support services 1,580,757         963,799           38,146            5,216            -                   1,447,954      -                    4,035,872         
2210 Improvement of instruction services 484,597            247,820           657,562          5,667            -                   76,733          -                    1,472,379         
2230 Assessment and testing 81,190              55,068             837                -                   -                   1,764            -                    138,859            
2240 Instructional staff development 543,309            304,956           163,393          28,026          -                   12,121          -                    1,051,805         
2410 Office of the principal services 37,730              20,514             -                     -                   -                   315               -                    58,559              
2490 Other support services - school administration -                        -                      102,801          2,561            -                   -                    -                    105,362            
2529 Other fiscal services -                        -                      -                     -                   -                   179,755        -                    179,755            
2620 Plan, research and development 605,838            332,703           857,763          42,079          -                   28,730          -                    1,867,113         
2660 Technology services -                        -                      3,609              14,084          -                   -                    -                    17,693              

Total Support Services Expenditures 8,097,746         4,671,764        3,033,525       251,455        -                   1,909,453      -                    17,963,943        

3300 Community services 401,230            235,932           1,245,220       67,580          -                   59,819          -                    2,009,781         
3390 Other community services 55,714              39,721             5,531              1,546            -                   6,812            -                    109,324            

Total Enterprise and Community Services 456,944            275,653           1,250,751       69,126          -                   66,631          -                    2,119,105         

5200 Transfers of funds -                        -                      -                     -                   -                   -                    611,693        611,693            
5300 Apportionment of funds -                        -                      -                     -                   -                   -                    3,883,450      3,883,450         

Total Other Uses Expenditures -                        -                      -                     -                   -                   -                    4,495,143      4,495,143         

Total 200 Special Revenue Funds 28,679,125$      17,625,979$    11,136,784$   841,921$      -$             2,605,517$    4,495,143$    65,384,469$      

Other Uses Expenditures

Instruction Expenditures

Support Services Expenditures

Enterprise and Community Services 

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
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Fund: 400 Capital Projects Funds

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 

4150
Building acquisition, construction and improvement 

-$                    -$                    25,275$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
25,275               

Total Facilities and Construction Expenditures -                      -                      25,275            -                      -                      -                      -                      25,275               

Total 400 Capital Projects Funds -$                    -$                    25,275$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    25,275$             

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Expenditures

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 
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Fund: 500 Enterprise Funds

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 

2520 Fiscal services 347,177$          232,675$          7,445$               2,327$               -$                       7,182$               -$                       596,806$          
2640 Staff services 207,588             101,658             7,674                 33,116               -                         10,347               -                         360,383             
2660 Technology services 1,854,573         1,024,835         775,960             3,491,110         21,936               35,997               226,544             7,430,955         

Total Support Services Expenditures 2,409,338         1,359,168         791,079             3,526,553         21,936               53,526               226,544             8,388,144         

Total 500 Enterprise Funds 2,409,338$       1,359,168$      791,079$         3,526,553$      21,936$            53,526$             226,544$         8,388,144$      

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

ENTERPRISE FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 

Support Services Expenditures
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Fund: 700 Agency Funds

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 

1131 High school programs -$                      -$                      577,217$          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      577,217$          
1220 Restrictive programs for students with disabilities -                        -                        2,554,969         -                        -                        -                        -                        2,554,969         

1250 Less restrictive programs for students with disabilities -                        -                        7,526,368         -                        -                        -                        -                        7,526,368         
1260 Treatment and habilitation -                        -                        2,029,906         -                        -                        -                        -                        2,029,906         
1280 Alternative Education -                        -                        51,489              -                        -                        -                        -                        51,489              

Total Instruction Expenditures -                        -                        12,739,949       -                        -                        -                        -                        12,739,949       

2110 Attendance and social work services -                        -                        38,705              -                        -                        -                        -                        38,705              
2130 Health services -                        -                        1,936,157         -                        -                        -                        -                        1,936,157         
2140 Psychological services -                        -                        1,747,914         -                        -                        -                        -                        1,747,914         
2150 Speech pathology and audiology services -                        -                        2,167,625         -                        -                        -                        -                        2,167,625         
2160 Other student treatment services -                        -                        744,915            -                        -                        -                        -                        744,915            
2190 Service direction student support services -                        -                        300                   -                        -                        -                        -                        300                   
2240 Instructional staff development -                        -                        385                   -                        -                        -                        -                        385                   
2520 Fiscal services -                        -                        133,775            -                        -                        -                        -                        133,775            
2620 Plan, research and development -                        -                        100,000            -                        -                        -                        -                        100,000            
2660 Technology Services -                        -                        1,670,394         72,537              -                        -                        -                        1,742,931         

Total Support Services Expenditures -                        -                        8,540,170         72,537              -                        -                        -                        8,612,707         

3300 Community services -                        -                        103,511            23,029              -                        12,538              -                        139,078            
Total Enterprise and Community Services -                        -                        103,511            23,029              -                        12,538              -                        139,078            

5200 Transfers of Funds -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       -                        849,424           849,424          
5300 Apportionment of funds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        16,539,206       16,539,206       

Total Other Uses Expenditures -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        17,388,630       17,388,630       

Total 700 Agency Funds -$                     -$                     21,383,630$    95,566$           -$                      12,538$            17,388,630$    38,880,364$    

Other Uses Expenditures

Enterprise and Community Services 

Instruction

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

AGENCY FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Support Services Expenditures
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Tax Year 

Current:
2019-2020 $ -                       $ 12,908,172  $ (342,481)  $ 3,750   $ (37,046)          $ (12,355,742)    $ 176,653      

Prior:
2018-2019 169,702            49            6,569   (3,216)            (104,699)         68,405        
2017-2018 58,373              -                  13            4,754   (3,211)            (27,919)           32,010        
2016-2017 32,452              -                  (9)             6,247   (3,729)            (24,527)           10,434        
2015-2016 13,201              -                  (15)           3,308   (2,005)            (11,407)           3,082          
2014-2015 5,117                -                  (15)           841      (1,007)            (2,273)             2,663          
2013-2014
 and prior 14,201              -                  (82)           1,077   (790)               (4,774)             9,632          

Total Prior 293,046            -                  (59)           22,796 (13,958)          (175,599)         126,226      

Total Taxes $ 293,046            $ 12,908,172  $ (342,540) $ 26,546 $ (51,004)        $ (12,531,341)    $ 302,879    

Reconciliation to tax revenue on basic financial statements:
Collections $ 12,531,341     
June 30, 2019 accrual (68,476)          
June 30, 2020 accrual 76,997           
Tax offsets and other 18,420           

Property tax revenue $ 12,558,282   

Reconciliation to tax revenue on Statement of Activities:
Property tax revenue $ 12,558,282     
June 30, 2019 accrual (224,570)        
June 30, 2020 accrual 225,882         

Property tax revenue $ 12,559,594   

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

Interest Adjustments Collections
Uncollected

June 30, 2020July 1, 2019 Assessor Allowed

Hillsboro, Oregon 

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Uncollected Discounts
Levy as

Extended by
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School District Business Managers and Auditors:

This page is a required part of your annual audited financial statements. Please make sure it is included.

Parts A is needed for computing Oregon’s full allocation for ESEA, Title I & other Federal Funds for Education.

A. Energy Bill for Heating - All Funds: Objects 325, 326 & 327

Please enter your expenditures for electricity Function 2540 $                                    112,892 

& heating fuel for these Functions & Objects. Function 2550 $                                              -   

B. Replacement of Equipment – General Fund:

Include all General Fund expenditures in object 542, except for the following exclusions: $                                              -   

Exclude these functions: Exclude these functions:

1113, 1122 & 1132          Co - curricular Activities 4150                   Construction 

1140                                   Pre - Kindergarten 2550                    Pupil Transportation 

1300                                   Continuing Education  3100                    Food Services 

1400                                    Summer School 3300                    Community Services 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Northwest Regional Education Service District
Hillsboro, Oregon

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF OREGON
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This section provides further details as a context for a better understanding of the financial statements.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 88
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how financial 
performance has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 96

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District's most 
significant local revenue sources, state school fund and property taxes.

Debt Capacity 100

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
District's current levels of outstanding debt and the ability to issue additional debt in the 
future.

Demographic and Economic Information 101

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the District's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 103

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the District's financial report relates to the services the District 
provides and the activities it performs.

STATISTICAL SECTION OVERVIEW
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Governmental Activities 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 49,010$           6,409,526$      4,941,095$      6,559,333$      7,705,775$      

Property taxes and other receivables 17,513,375      8,164,456        8,552,546        10,520,541      9,335,979        

Net Pension asset -                       -                       -                       -                       11,181,741      

Bond issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization 108,547           100,198           91,848             -                       -                       

Land 467,500           467,500           467,500           467,500           467,500           

Capital assets, net of depreciation 10,128,870      10,891,241      10,539,626      10,257,300      10,142,605      

Total Assets 28,267,302      26,032,921      24,592,615      27,804,674      38,833,600      

Deferred outflows of resources

   Pension Related Deferred Outflows (PERS) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (PHIS) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (RHIA) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   Deferred amount on refunding -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

        Total Deferred Outflows of Resources -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Liabilities

Book overdraft 4,166,513        -                       -                       -                       -                       

Accounts payable 906,678           856,311           951,865           1,307,066        873,486           

Accrued payroll, taxes, and employee withholdings 2,048,278        2,195,511        2,441,696        3,861,988        4,113,111        

Accrued interest payable 16,240             15,465             14,543             13,576             12,579             

Accrued compensated absences payable 24,804             45,755             61,221             54,648             58,071             

Unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Proportionate share of PERS net pension liability -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net other post employment pension obligation 1,439,002        1,894,880        2,079,440        2,268,654        2,203,927        

Long-term debt:

Due within one year 339,955           354,955           369,955           389,955           409,955           

Due in more than one year 5,804,458        5,449,503        5,079,548        4,689,591        4,279,634        

Total Liabilities 14,745,928      10,812,380      10,998,268      12,585,478      11,950,763      

Deferred inflows of resources

   Pension Related Deferred Inflows (PERS) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (PHIS) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (RHIA) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

        Total Deferred Inflows of Resources -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net Position

Net invested in capital assets 4,451,957        3,658,403        3,478,183        5,645,252        5,920,516        

Restricted for special revenues 5,505,681        4,701,105        4,551,205        3,536,356        5,621,114        

Restricted for capital projects 594,043           353,538           353,538           403,540           453,540           

Restricted for PERS RHIA OPEB asset -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Unrestricted 2,959,693        4,888,028        5,211,421        5,639,265        (2,016,069)       
Total Net Position Governmental Activities 13,511,374$    13,601,074$    13,594,347$    15,224,413$    9,979,101$      

Business Activities

Assets 686,458           1,741,063        1,937,482        1,545,953        3,216,003        

Liabilities 49,589             122,596           123,084           5,219               7,012               

Deferred outflows of resources -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Deferred inflows of resources -                       -                       -                       -                       1,196,247        
Total Net Position Business Activities - Unrestricted 636,869$         1,618,467$      1,814,398$      1,540,734$      2,012,744$      

Total Net Position 14,148,243$    15,219,541$    15,408,745$    16,765,147$    11,991,845$    

Source: Statement of Net Position Northwest Regional ESD

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Governmental Activities 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9,085,411$      7,281,334$      4,967,300$      3,110,193$      392,374$         

Property taxes and other receivables 9,219,449        9,483,748        10,285,447      8,019,179        10,848,910      

Net Pension asset -                       -                       106,738           291,967           538,147           

Bond issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization -                       -                       -                       -                       

Land 467,500           467,500           467,500           467,500           467,500           

Capital assets, net of depreciation 9,873,914        10,435,453      10,162,038      10,486,400      9,763,432        

Total Assets 28,646,274      27,668,035      25,989,023      22,375,239      22,010,363      

Deferred outflows of resources

   Pension Related Deferred Outflows (PERS) -                       30,901,082      18,582,022      22,799,711      21,603,884      

   OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (PHIS) -                       -                       107,603           107,536           105,075           

   OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (RHIA) -                       -                       128,008           138,883           25,346             

   Deferred amount on refunding -                       -                       107,429           93,456             81,539             

        Total Deferred Outflows of Resources -                       30,901,082      18,925,062      23,139,586      21,815,844      

Liabilities

Book overdraft -                       -                       -                       -                       

Accounts payable 381,697           574,349           400,133           1,378,797        839,799           

Accrued payroll, taxes, and employee withholdings 3,740,354        3,422,579        3,343,811        3,288,813        3,451,143        

Accrued interest payable 11,520             8,996               7,758               6,476               5,157               

Accrued compensated absences payable 58,661             52,100             64,055             67,707             104,356           

Unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       4,402               

Proportionate share of PERS net pension liability 26,945,280      57,440,382      45,791,786      51,641,978      58,422,295      

Net other post employment pension obligation 2,152,485        2,116,210        1,382,361        1,445,032        1,221,132        

Long-term debt:

Due within one year 424,955           585,466           607,665           635,037           657,584           

Due in more than one year 3,854,679        3,802,536        3,194,871        2,559,834        1,902,250        

Total Liabilities 37,569,631      68,002,618      54,792,440      61,023,674      66,608,118      

Deferred inflows of resources

   Pension Related Deferred Inflows (PERS) 5,919,193        5,273,627        6,917,518        7,339,562        4,744,940        

   OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (PHIS) -                       -                       57,525             71,210             337,238           

   OPEB Related Deferred Outflows (RHIA) -                       -                       49,435             81,325             114,531           

        Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,919,193        5,273,627        7,024,478        7,492,097        5,196,709        

Net Position

Net invested in capital assets 6,061,780        6,514,951        6,827,002        7,852,485        7,752,637        

Restricted for special revenues 8,186,894        7,781,177        6,637,453        2,186,131        2,036,936        

Restricted for capital projects 481,880           49,886             72,888             122,888           147,613           

Restricted for PERS RHIA OPEB asset -                       -                       -                       291,967           538,147           

Unrestricted (24,071,335)     (29,053,142)     (30,440,176)     (33,454,417)     (38,453,953)     
Total Net Position Governmental Activities (9,340,781)$     (14,707,128)$   (16,902,833)$   (23,000,946)$   (27,978,620)$   

Business Activities

Assets 1,406,956        2,178,428        3,207,304        3,069,416        1,604,614        

Liabilities 1,942,123        4,328,992        3,397,208        3,441,834        4,558,265        

Deferred outflows of resources 404,035           2,024,227        1,189,104        1,182,853        1,640,321        

Deferred inflows of resources 426,635           361,052           474,736           465,575           344,781           
Total Net Position Business Activities - Unrestricted (557,767)$        (487,389)$        524,464$         344,860$         (1,658,111)$     

Total Net Position (9,898,548)$     (15,194,517)$   (16,378,369)$   (22,656,086)$   (29,636,731)$   

`

Source: Statement of Net Position Northwest Regional ESD

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

Fiscal Years

Hillsboro, Oregon 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - Continued
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
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Governmental Activities 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Expenses

Instruction 28,949,821$  27,491,892$  29,674,307$  29,810,073$  21,269,568$    

Support services 52,558,999    49,524,176    50,240,777    52,680,242    51,670,311      

Community services 162,756         107,809         142,218         101,164         172,702           

Interest on long-term debt 310,985         298,380         285,312         267,982         267,988           

Total Expenses 81,982,561    77,422,257    80,342,614    82,859,461    73,380,569      

Program Revenues

Charges for services

Instruction 11,012,856    11,731,104    23,910,226    23,769,023    18,160,074      

Support services 12,559,628    12,527,982    4,926,203      6,339,345      7,411,572        

Community services -                    7,912             -                    -                    -                      

Operating grants and contributions

Instruction 18,171,370    18,067,586    16,654,537    16,998,045    23,365,229      

Support services 3,320,152      1,511,737      493,273         458,064         555,226           

Community services 131,964         97,318           134,440         92,010           103,585           

Total Program Revenues 45,195,970    43,943,639    46,118,679    47,656,487    49,595,686      

Net (Expenses) (36,786,591)   (33,478,618)   (34,223,935)   (35,202,974)   (23,784,883)     

General Revenues

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 8,907,445      9,069,061      9,255,442      9,700,133      9,964,922        
Federal aid not restricted to specific purposes 5,270,814      773,838         -                    -                    -                      

Timber revenue 242,199         213,126         277,120         318,010         333,621           

State school fund for general support 22,975,559    23,446,401    24,493,696    26,789,365    28,519,652      

Interest and investment earnings 47,375           65,892           99,102           117,380         121,909           

Total General Revenues 37,443,392    33,568,318    34,125,360    36,924,888    38,940,104      
Change in Net Position Governmental Activities 656,801$       89,700$         (98,575)$        1,721,914$    15,155,221$    

Business Activities

Expenses - Support Services 1,492,539      1,446,580      1,975,473      2,362,466      4,830,962        

Revenues - Charges for Services 1,988,903      2,428,178      2,320,934      2,088,802      6,746,682        

Change in Net Position Business Activities 496,364$       981,598$       345,461$       (273,664)$      1,915,720$      

Total Change in Net Position 1,153,165$    1,071,298$    246,886$       1,448,250$    17,070,941$    

Source: Statement of Activities Northwest Regional ESD

Fiscal Years

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
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Governmental Activities 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Expenses

Instruction 44,825,008$    37,274,240$   37,864,732$    41,873,604$    45,333,537$    

Support services 64,729,187      64,551,436     65,108,713      71,375,987      72,659,636      

Community services 701,111           1,939,873       1,568,636        2,518,433        2,204,578        

Interest on long-term debt 248,914           216,756          84,440             182,877           156,940           

Total Expenses 110,504,220    103,982,305   104,626,521    115,950,901    120,354,691    

Program Revenues

Charges for services

Instruction 17,660,248      18,114,578     19,567,245      21,872,171      23,590,071      

Support services 7,913,009        8,843,769       5,330,516        8,954,399        5,692,603        

Community services -                      -                      -                      -                      

Operating grants and contributions

Instruction 23,543,815      28,481,665     29,640,082      31,136,217      34,935,491      

Support services 650,855           667,635          929,866           1,146,575        1,369,469        

Community services 102,694           100,946          82,977             107,648           106,818           

Total Program Revenues 49,870,621      56,208,593     55,550,686      63,217,010      65,694,452      

Net (Expenses) (60,633,599)     (47,773,712)    (49,075,835)     (52,733,891)     (54,660,239)     

General Revenues

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 10,615,752      11,021,073     11,507,748      11,944,629      12,559,594      
Federal aid not restricted to specific purposes -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Timber revenue 550,070           534,034          593,795           546,449           444,751           

State school fund for general support 29,983,504      30,571,838     33,448,065      33,505,792      36,252,194      

Interest and investment earnings 164,391           280,420          412,219           638,908           426,026           

Total General Revenues 41,313,717      42,407,365     45,961,827      46,635,778      49,682,565      
Change in Net Position Governmental Activities (19,319,882)$   (5,366,347)$    (3,114,008)$     (6,098,113)$     (4,977,674)$     

Business Activities

Expenses - Support Services 7,729,595        6,926,950       6,360,392        7,369,087        8,779,181        

Revenues - Charges for Services 5,159,084        6,997,328       7,372,245        7,189,483        6,776,210        

Change in Net Position Business Activities (2,570,511)$     70,378$          1,011,853$      (179,604)$        (2,002,971)$     

Total Change in Net Position (21,890,393)$   (5,295,969)$    (2,102,155)$     (6,277,717)$     (6,980,645)$     

Source: Statement of Activities Northwest Regional ESD

* The transits and transfer has been distributed to Instruction and Suppport Services functions.

Fiscal Years

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - Continued
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 
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2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Fund Balances

Unassigned

General fund 4,594,880$    4,399,064$    4,776,055$    7,479,489$    5,565,060$    

All Other Governmental 

Funds, reported in

Restricted: 

Special Revenue Fund 

Grants, contracts and projects 4,911,636      4,701,103      4,551,205      3,536,356      5,621,114      

Capital Projects 594,043         353,540         353,540         403,540         453,540         

Total Fund Balances 10,100,559$  9,453,707$    9,680,800$    11,419,385$  11,639,714$  

Note: GASB 54 was implemented in fiscal year 2011. 

Source: Northwest Regional ESD financial records

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Hillsboro, Oregon 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Years 
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2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Fund Balances

Unassigned

General fund 5,053,069$    4,438,900$    4,509,775$    3,928,173$    4,535,509$    

All Other Governmental 

Funds, reported in

Restricted: 

Special Revenue Fund 

Grants, contracts and projects 8,186,894      7,781,177      6,637,453      2,186,131      2,036,936      

Capital Projects 481,880         49,886           72,888           122,888         147,613         

Total Fund Balances 13,721,843$  12,269,963$  11,220,116$  6,237,192$    6,720,058$    

Note: GASB 54 was implemented in fiscal year 2011. 

Source: Northwest Regional ESD financial records

Hillsboro, Oregon 
NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - Continued
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years
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2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Revenues

Property  Taxes 8,907,445$     9,069,061$     9,255,442$     9,622,759$     10,046,129$   

Charges for services 23,669,053     24,321,663     23,438,312     25,085,295     25,648,076     

Earnings from investments 47,375            65,893            99,102            117,380          121,909          

Intermediate sources 10,400            -                     3,527              -                     -                     

State sources 42,105,965     38,162,361     40,180,919     43,803,242     46,314,693     

Federal Sources 7,879,739       5,892,980       7,266,737       5,875,325       6,486,190       

Total Revenues 82,619,977     77,511,958     80,244,039     84,504,001     88,616,997     

Expenditures

Current Operating

Instruction 28,891,206     27,384,691     29,171,657     29,728,085     30,745,136     

Support services 44,656,080     41,967,090     44,492,759     48,288,362     40,596,729     

Community services 16,606            20,981            24,208            100,714          206,394          

Building acquisition and improvement 317,757          35,937            -                     -                     -                     

Apportionment of funds 6,985,273       6,755,192       5,583,945       3,792,330       16,149,834     

Capital outlay 3,286,618       1,336,539       89,537            198,910          39,635            

Debt Service

Principal  345,000          360,000          375,000          390,000          410,000          

Interest 310,985          298,380          284,390          267,015          248,940          

Bond issuance costs -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Expenditures 84,809,525     78,158,810     80,021,496     82,765,416     88,396,668     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over (under) expenditures (2,189,548)      (646,852)         222,543          1,738,585       220,329          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Bond proceeds -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Sale of capital assets -                     -                     4,550              -                     -                     

Operating transfers in 3,307,992       3,302,926       2,928,605       2,926,480       1,312,906       

Operating transfers out (3,307,992)      (3,302,926)      (2,928,605)      (2,926,480)      (1,312,906)      

Total other financing sources (uses) -                     -                     4,550              -                     -                     

Net change in fund balances (2,189,548)$    (646,852)$       227,093$        1,738,585$     220,329$        

Debt Services as a percentage of

  noncapital expenditures 0.80% 0.86% 0.82% 0.80% 0.75%

Source: Northwest Regional ESD financial records

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Years
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2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Revenues

Property  Taxes 10,570,229$    10,983,848$   11,717,252$   12,008,746$   12,558,282$   

Charges for services 25,836,847      27,654,138     26,306,778     32,705,823     30,632,817     

Earnings from investments 164,391           280,420          412,219          638,908          426,026          

Intermediate sources 2,007               2,139              1,230              1,644              5,160              

State sources 48,584,287      53,140,508     56,260,659     57,349,833     64,381,349     

Federal Sources 5,981,054        6,517,680       7,023,879       7,211,951       7,372,071       

Total Revenues 91,138,815      98,578,733     101,722,017   109,916,905   115,375,705   

Expenditures

Current Operating

Instruction 30,623,200      33,963,440     36,096,559     40,705,662     40,806,278     

Support services 40,057,200      57,407,399     61,570,834     64,384,199     67,277,352     

Community services 426,006           1,909,285       1,543,686       2,498,772       2,119,105       

Building acquisition and improvement 31,660             29,166            98,472            -                     25,275            

Apportionment of funds 16,956,384      5,478,583       2,327,765       6,437,536       3,883,450       

Capital outlay 302,308           1,102,028       355,975          95,809            -                     

Debt Service

Principal  430,000           583,863          606,647          628,846          656,218          

Interest 229,928           206,049          171,926          149,005          125,161          

Bond issuance costs -                       29,800            -                     -                     -                     

Total Expenditures 89,056,686      100,709,613   102,771,864   114,899,829   114,892,839   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over (under) expenditures 2,082,129        (2,130,880)      (1,049,847)      (4,982,924)      482,866          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Bond proceeds -                       679,000          -                     -                     -                     

Sale of capital assets -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

Operating transfers in 2,060,203        1,904,951       2,825,245       3,175,393       2,553,539       

Operating transfers out (2,060,203)       (1,904,951)      (2,825,245)      (3,175,393)      (2,553,539)      

Total other financing sources (uses) -                       679,000          -                     -                     -                     

Net change in fund balances 2,082,129$      (1,451,880)$    (1,049,847)$    (4,982,924)$    482,866$        

Debt Services as a percentage of

  noncapital expenditures 0.74% 0.79% 0.76% 0.68% 0.68%

Source: Northwest Regional ESD financial records

Hillsboro, Oregon 
NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - Continued

Fiscal Years

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
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 Fiscal Year Ending

June 30  Real Property 

 Manufactured 

Property 

 Personal 

Property  Public Utility 

67,661,757,850$  109,438,090$  1,850,627,462$  1,532,481,306$ 
64,695,011,778    102,282,740    1,876,179,972    1,588,335,300   
63,178,528,116    94,750,200      1,939,047,005    1,642,412,501   
71,092,444,170    93,100,240      2,065,489,040    1,698,870,768   
80,630,168,714    102,415,020    2,225,713,012    1,800,309,807   
86,522,025,559    124,145,430    2,392,098,055    1,909,199,612   
95,849,466,057    156,151,230    2,588,566,681    1,877,245,692   

107,074,452,648  173,142,260    2,975,486,177    2,013,572,822   
111,717,553,111  230,103,810    2,716,554,462    1,836,621,552   
115,226,945,931  262,433,250    2,883,649,045    1,853,150,322   

Note:

Represents Washington County only of the District's assessed value.

Source:  Washington County Department of Assessment and Taxation 

                Summary of Assessment & Tax Roll

               - Real Market Value, M5 Value, and Assessed Value

               - Taxes Imposed by District and Category (Education)

               - Detail of taxing District Levies

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

ASSESSED VALUES OF TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN DISTRICT BOUNDARIES

2020

2013

Market Value 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2019

2011

2014
2015

2017
2018

2016

Hillsboro, Oregon 

2012
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 Total Market 

Value 

 Total Taxable 

Assessed Value 

Total 

Direct 

Tax Rate

Amount tax rate 

will raise

Less: 

Reduction 

and 

Adjustments

Total Taxes 

Imposed

 (Net Levy)

71,154,304,708$  46,272,438,206$  0.154 7,086,259$        (61,980)$       7,024,279$      
68,261,809,790    47,693,751,723    0.154 7,302,850          (78,062)         7,224,788        
66,854,737,822    48,797,570,492    0.154 7,471,119          (104,010)       7,367,845        
74,949,904,218    50,608,860,179    0.154 7,739,549          (93,692)         7,645,857        
84,758,606,553    53,515,861,950    0.154 8,086,123          (71,467)         8,014,656        
90,947,468,656    56,910,892,240    0.154 8,607,421          (77,640)         8,529,781        

100,471,429,660  58,797,355,521    0.154 8,958,239          (69,921)         8,888,318        
112,236,653,907  62,340,647,387    0.154 9,378,807          (67,949)         9,310,858        
116,500,832,935  64,974,312,732    0.154 9,753,896          (64,625)         9,689,271        
120,226,178,548  68,032,356,127    0.154 10,187,652        (61,051)         10,126,601      

Note:

Represents Washington County only of the District's assessed value.

Source:  Washington County Department of Assessment and Taxation 

                Summary of Assessment & Tax Roll

               - Real Market Value, M5 Value, and Assessed Value

               - Taxes Imposed by District and Category (Education)

               - Detail of taxing District Levies

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

Assessed Value (not including exempt property)

ASSESSED VALUES OF TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN DISTRICT BOUNDARIES - Continued

Hillsboro, Oregon 

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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 Amount 
Percentage 

of Levy Amount
Percentage 

of Levy

2011 9,096,487$    8,570,098$    94.21 291,114$     8,861,212$    97.41

2012         9,347,245         8,857,914 94.76          203,823         9,061,737 96.95

2013         9,505,052         9,021,906 94.92          218,578         9,240,484 97.22

2014         9,824,737         9,288,574 94.54          270,715         9,559,289 97.30

2015       10,193,523         9,712,654 95.28          248,159         9,960,813 97.72

2016       10,615,752       10,277,626 96.81          201,385       10,479,011 98.71

2017       11,021,073       10,797,436 97.97          179,761       10,977,197 99.60

2018       11,858,440       11,309,827 95.37          169,552       11,479,379 96.80

2019       12,354,441       11,824,190 95.71          387,786       12,211,976 98.85

2020       12,908,172       12,355,742 95.72          175,599       12,531,341 97.08

Source: Washington, Tillamook, Clackamas and Columbia County Departments of Assessment and Taxation and

Northwest Regional ESD financial records 

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
June 30

Net Taxes 
Levied for the 

Fiscal Year 

Collections in 
Subsequent 

Years

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the Fiscal 
Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
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Taxpayer
 Taxable Assessed 

Value Rank 

 Percentage 
of Total 
Taxable 

Assessed 
Value 

 Taxable Assessed 
Value  Rank 

 Percentage 
of Total 
Taxable 

Assessed 
Value 

Ten Largest Taxpayers

Intel Corporation  $      1,970,829,308 1 2.90%  $      1,086,959,550 1 2.35%

Nike, Inc          1,011,210,140 2 1.49% 431,605,315            3 0.93%

Portland General Electric             616,308,814 3 0.91% 390,952,730            4 0.84%

Pacific Realty Associates             405,106,164 4 0.60%             301,956,704 5 0.65%

Northwest Natural Gas Co 368,707,300            5 0.54% 282,171,220            6 0.61%

Genentech Inc             274,026,540 6 0.40%             231,546,750 7 0.50%

Comcast Corporation             254,049,000 7 0.37% 213,072,700            8 0.46%

Verizon Communications             241,357,000 8 0.35% 0.00%

NIKE IHM             216,673,430 9 0.32%

LAM Research Corporation             190,462,687 10 0.28%

Frontier Communications             371,640,200 2 0.80%

Maxim Integrated Products 137,021,824            9 0.30%

Tektronix, Inc 128,237,247            10 0.28%

Subtotal of Ten Largest Taxpayers 5,548,730,383         8.16% 3,575,164,240         7.72%

All Other Taxpayers 62,483,625,744       91.83% 42,697,273,966       92.28%

Total All Taxpayers 68,032,356,127$     99.99% 46,272,438,206$    100.00%

Note:  Represents Washington County only.  Multnomah and Yamhill County portions of the District comprise less
          then .02% of the District's assessed value.

Source: Washington County Department of Assessment and Taxation.

* Formerly Verizon Northwest - purchase approved by FCC on May 2010 

2020

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Hillsboro, Oregon 

2011
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Long Term 
Obligations

Unamortized 
Bond Discount

 Total Taxable 
Assessed Value 

Percentage of 
Actual 

Assessment 
Value

Percentage 
of Personal 

Income 

6,405,000$   260,588$              46,272,438,206$      0.014% 0.03%

6,045,000     240,542                47,693,751,723        0.013% 0.02%
5,670,000     220,497                48,797,570,492        0.012% 0.02%
5,280,000     200,452                50,608,860,179        0.010% 0.02%
4,870,000     180,411                53,515,861,950        0.009% 0.02%
4,440,000     160,366                56,910,892,240        0.008% 0.01%
4,535,137     147,135                58,797,355,521        0.008% 0.01%
3,928,490     125,954                62,340,647,387        0.006% 0.01%
3,299,644     104,773                64,974,312,732        0.005% N/A*
2,643,426     83,592                  68,032,356,127        0.004% N/A*

Source: ESD's Financial Records

* Data unavailabe for time period specified

2012

 

2017

2011

2013

2016

2020

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

DEBT CAPACITY

Last Ten Fiscal Years

 Fiscal Year Ending
June 30 

2019
2018

2015
2014
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Year Population (1) Personal Income

Per Capita 
Personal 

Income (2)
Unemployment 

Rate

2011 539,469            23,076,865,413$      42,777$             8.9%
2012 547,543            24,308,719,028        44,396               8.7%
2013 554,996            24,839,955,972        44,757               7.9%
2014 562,998            23,206,777,560        41,220               6.9%
2015 574,326            29,812,688,334        51,909               5.7%
2016 582,779            31,588,370,137        54,203               5.0%
2017 588,957            33,765,493,767        57,331               3.7%
2018 597,695            36,442,061,845        60,971               3.8%
2019 601,592            N/A* N/A* 3.5%
2020 N/A N/A* N/A* 11.6%

Notes:
1.  United States Census Bureau for Washington County in its entirety.
2.  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis

Source: Oregon Employment Department/Labor Market Information/qualityinfo.org

* Data unavailabe for time period specified

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Calendar Years

Hillsboro, Oregon 
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Employer Employees Rank

Percentage of 
Total 

Employment Employees Rank

Percentage of 
Total 

Employment

Ten Largest Employers

Intel Corp 20,600      1 1.61% 15,228          1 1.44%

Providence Health System 18,885      2 1.48% 13,831          2 1.30%

Oregon Health & Science University 17,556      3 1.37% 13,283          3 1.25%

Nike Inc. 12,000      5 0.94% 6,000            8 0.57%

Legacy Health System 11,404      6 0.89% 8,250            6 0.78%

Kaiser Foundation Health Plan 11,243      4 0.88% 9,204            5 0.87%

Fred Meyer Stores 9,777        8 0.76% 9,630            4 0.91%

City of Portland 7,376        7 0.58% 5,000            10 0.47%

Portland Public Schools 6,500        9 0.51% 5,101            9 0.48%

Beaverton School District 5,458        10 0.43%

Multnomah County 6,310            7 0.60%

Subtotal of Ten Largest Employers 120,799 9.44% 91,837 8.66%

All Other Employers 1,158,559 90.56% 968,079 91.34%

Total Portland MSA Employment 1,279,358 100.00% 1,059,916 100.00%

Source: Portland Business Journal of Lists and Oregon Employmnet Department Qualityinfo.org

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS FOR THE PORTLAND METRO AREA
2019 and Nine Years Prior

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2010
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Fiscal Year 
Ending
June 30 Licensed Classified Administration Total 

2011 201 262 42 505
2012 196 265 40 501
2013 201 258 44 503
2014 190 273 45 508
2015 202 255 44 501
2016 249 258 50 557
2017 247 241 50 538
2018 214 291 49 554
2019 231 322 55 608
2020 280 259 63 602

Source: Northwest Regional ESD payroll records.  

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 

 
LICENSED, CLASSIFIED AND ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Hillsboro, Oregon 
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Fiscal Year Special Other 
Ending Students Instructional Technology Support
June 30 Services Services Services Services Total 

2011 15,323,082$     160,960$         1,364,513$       298,930$          17,147,485$     

2012 15,934,956       61,097             1,403,118         247,847            17,647,018       

2013 16,411,652       3,925               1,218,037         351,803            17,985,417       

2014 16,361,387       17,074             1,115,276         302,552            17,796,289       

2015 15,311,250       815,899           1,056,450         228,350            17,411,949       

2016 15,962,169       1,020,053        1,750,788         460,259            19,193,269       

2017 15,870,878       1,960,014        2,202,770         283,648            20,317,310       

2018 16,538,700       2,957,917        2,207,083         347,802            22,051,502       

2019 18,780,387       2,793,215        2,337,300         512,059            24,422,961       

2020 20,133,183       2,653,826        2,475,576         547,145            25,809,730       

Source: Northwest Regional ESD Annual Reports

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
Hillsboro, Oregon 

SCHOOL DISTRICTS PARTICIPATION IN PROGRAMS AND SERVICES
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Pass
Pass Federal Through

CFDA Entity Period
Program Title Organization Number Number Covered

GRANT AWARDS:
U.S. Department of Education

Title IC School Programs:
Title IC - Migrant Education - State Grant Program ODE 84.011 52523 03/15/2019-09/30/2019 $ 131,097         $ -                      
Title IC - Migrant Education - State Grant Program ODE 84.011 49215 07/01/2018-09/30/2019 164,804         -                      
Title IC - Migrant Education - State Grant Program ODE 84.011 53725 07/01/2019-09/30/2019 277,208         -                      
Title IC - Migrant Education - State Grant Program ODE 84.011 53740 07/01/2019-09/30/2020 11,330           -                      
Title IC - Migrant Education - State Grant Program ODE 84.011 54450 10/07/2019-11/30/2019 6,422             -                      
Title IC - Migrant Education - State Grant Program ODE 84.011 57318 03/14/2020-09/30/2020 58,640           

     Total, Title IC - Migrant Education, CFDA 84.011 649,501         -                      

Special Education Cluster:
Special Education Grants to States ODE 84.027 54719 07/01/2019-09/30/2020 269                -                      
Special Education Grants to States ODE 84.027 54746 07/01/2019-06/30/2021 98,212           -                      
Special Education Grants to States ODE 84.027 11117 07/01/2019-06/30/2021 1,992,050      -                      
Special Education Grants to States ODE 84.027 12301 07/01/2019-06/30/2021 55,900           -                      
Special Education Grants to States ODE 84.027 11048 07/01/2019-06/30/2021 2,440,522      -                      
     Total of Special Education Grants to States, CFDA 84.027 4,586,953      -                      

Special Education Preschool Grants ODE 84.173 54140 07/01/2019-06/30/2020 15,000           -                      
Special Education Preschool Grants ODE 84.173 11117 07/01/2019-06/30/2021 384,490         
Special Education Preschool Grants ODE 84.173 -                      
     Total of Special Education Grants to States, CFDA 84.173 399,490         -                      

        Total, Special Education Cluster 4,986,443      -                      

Title I - Programs for Neglected and Delinquent Children ODE 84.013 12301 07/01/2019-06/30/2021 112,600         -                      
     Total, Title I - Programs for Neglected and Delinquent Children, CFDA 84.013 112,600         -                      

Special Education Grants for Infants and Families ODE 84.181 11117 07/01/2019-06/30/2021 1,040,659      -                      
Special Education Grants for Infants and Families ODE 84.181 54982 07/01/2019-06/30/2020 1,200             -                      

     Total of Special Education Grants to States, CFDA 84.181 1,041,859      -                      

Title III - English Language Acquisition ODE 84.365 53445 07/01/2019-09/30/2020 32,995           -                      
     Total of Title III - English Language Acquisition, CFDA 84.365 32,995           -                      

Education Stabilization Fund ODE 84.425 58432 03/13/2020-09/30/2022 22,890           -                      

Every Student Succeeds Act/Preschool Development Grants ODE 93.434 55029 10/01/2019-01/31/2020 13,000           

Title IV-B2 - Promoting Safe and Stable Families ODE 93.556 52604 07/01/2019-06/30/2021 16,575           -                      

Child Care and Development Block Grant ODE 93.575 52415 03/01/2019-09/30/2020 288,384         
Child Care and Development Block Grant ODE 93.575 54249 10/01/2019-06/30/2021 14,560           

Total, Child Care and Development Block Grant CFDA 93.575 302,944         -                      

ODE 93.596 53711 07/01/2019-09/30/2019 44,856           -                      

          Total, U.S. Department of Education 7,223,663      -                      

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Child Nutrition Cluster:

School Breakfast Program ODE 10.553 N/A 07/01/2019-06/30/2020 7,490             -                      
School Breakfast Program CARES ODE 10.553 N/A 07/01/2019-06/30/2020 473                -                      

7,963             -                      

National School Lunch Program Commodities ODE 10.555 N/A 07/01/2019-06/30/2020 13,287           -                      
National School Lunch Program ODE 10.555 N/A 07/01/2019-06/30/2020 19,248           -                      
National School Lunch Program CARES ODE 10.555 N/A 07/01/2019-06/30/2020 1,093             -                      
     Total of CNP National School Lunch Program, CFDA 10.555 33,628           -                      

        Total, Child Nutrition Cluster 41,591           -                      

          Total, U.S. Department of Agriculture 41,591           -                    

U.S. Department of the Interior

Youth Engagement, Education and Employment Program USFW 15.676 H126A170054 09/01/2019-08/31/2020 106,817         -                      
106,817         -                    

          Total, U.S. Department of the Interior 106,817         -                      

TOTAL, Federal Financial Assistance $ 7,372,071      $ -                      

NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
HILLSBORO, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Passed
Through Through to

Expenditures Sub-Recipients

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and 
Development Fund
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To the Board of Directors 

PAULY, ROGERS, AND Co., P.C. 

12700 SW 72nd Ave. Tigard, OR 97223 

(503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX

www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

Northwest Regional Education Service District 

Washington County, Oregon 

October 8, 2020 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the remaining fund information of North West Regional Education Service District (the District) 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 8, 2020. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements, we considered the internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the basic financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of the basic 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this repo1t is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Kl- K 2,, ,ev..s
RO R. ROGERS, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
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To the Board of Directors 

PAULY, ROGERS, AND Co., P.C. 

12700 SW 72nd Ave. Tigard, OR 97223 

{503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX 

www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

Northwest Regional Education Service District 

Washington County, Oregon 

October 8, 2020 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited No1thwest Regional Education Service District's (the District) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of the major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable 
to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the major federal programs based on our audit of 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Pait 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the District, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2020. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each 
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
sign(ficant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this repo1t is not suitable for any other purpose. 

�/ 7? ?2,-¾6 
ROYR. ROGERS, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
PORTLAND, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

SECTION I- SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Type of auditors' repo1t issued 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered 
to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Any GAGAS audit findings disclosed that are required to be rep01ted in 
accordance with section 515( d)(2) of the Uniform Guidance? 

FEDERAL A WARDS 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered 
to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditors' repo1t issued on compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be rep01ted in accordance 

Unmodified 

Dyes 

Dyes 

Dyes 

Dyes 

Dyes 

Dyes 

Unmodified 

[gJ 110 

[gJ none rep01ted 

[gJ no 

[gJ no 

[gJ no 

[gJ none repo1ted 

with section 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance? D yes [gJ no 

IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR PROGRAMS 

CFDA NUMBER NAME OF FEDERAL PROGRAM CLUSTER 

84.027, 84.173 IDEA 
84.181 Special Education Grants for Infants and Families 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? [gJ yes □ 110 
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NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
PORTLAND, OREGON 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

NONE 

SECTION III- FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

NONE 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL EXPENDITURES 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity under programs of the 
federal government. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the audit requirements of Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the 
operations, it is not intended to and does not present the net position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the 
District. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures repo1ted on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are 
not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the schedule represent adjustments or 
credits made in the normal course of business to amounts rep01ted as expenditures in prior years. The District has not 
elected to use the ten percent de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under Uniform Guidance, due to the fact that 
they already have a negotiated indirect cost rate with Oregon Department of Education, and thus is not allowed to use 
the de minimus rate. 
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COMPLIANCE SECTION



PAULY, ROGERS AND Co., P.C. 

12700 SW 72nd Ave.♦ Tigard, OR 97223 
(503) 620-2632 + (503) 684-7523 FAX
www. pa u lyrogersandcocpas. com

October 8, 2020 

Independent Auditors' Report Required by Oregon State Regulations 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Northwest Regional Education Service District 
(the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 8, 2020. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specified in Oregon 
Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum

1 
Standards for Audits of Oregon 

Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of the basic financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. 

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and 
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following: 

• Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295)
• Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.
• Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).
• Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
• Programs funded from outside sources.
• Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
• Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B; 279C).
• State school fund factors and calculation.

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the District was 
not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, 
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-
10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.
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OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the internal controls over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
internal controls over financial reporting. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and 
the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these parties. 

�l ?727e.i,r_s 
ROY R. ROGERS, CPA 

PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
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February 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors  

FR: Tami Montague, CFO 

RE: Monthly Financial Update 

EXPLANATION: Monthly Financial Summary report for period ending January 31, 2021.  

PRESENTER(S): Tami Montague 

SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS: Attached to this cover sheet: 

Summary Financial Statements – January 31, 2021 

RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to accept the monthly financial report as presented. 



2/9/2021 Prepared by Fiscal Services

NW Regional ESD 
Monthly Financial Report

Board of Directors' Expense Report

Registration
Expenses: Meeting/Conf Airfare Mileage Hotel Meals Legal/Audit Dues/Fees Other Total

July-20 ($ -  )
August-20 $60.00) $3,520.00) $6,112.00) $9,692.00)
September-20 $6,076.00) $1,500.00) $238.91) $7,814.91)
October-20 $9,504.17) $24,375.00) $33,879.17)
November-20 $5,460.50) $60.00) $45.95) $5,566.45)
December-20 $960.00) $159.28) $1,119.28)
January-21 $26,714.00) $7,367.50) $935.70) $35,017.20)
February-21 $0.00)
March-21 $0.00)
April-21 $0.00)
May-21 $0.00)
June-21 $0.00)

Total Expenses $60.00) $0.00) $0.00) $0.00) $0.00) $47,754.67) $37,782.50) $7,491.84) $93,089.01)

Detailed Expense Report

January 2020
Vendor Date PO # Amount Type* Description of Product / Service

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSN 1/15/2021 210801 ($ 4,667.50)  PO OSBA Annual Dues 2020-21
OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSN 1/15/2021 210801 ( 475.00)      PO Board Development at 2020-21 Board Work Session
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSN 1/15/2021 210803 ( 2,700.00)    PO NSBA Annual Dues 2021
BANK OF AMERICA 1/12/2021 210851 ( 60.00)         PO tgoldner-AWESOME GAPPS INC-Awesome Table Computer
MILLER NASH WIENER HAGER & CARLSON LLP 1/21/2021 210213 ( 6,352.00)    PO 2020-21 Miller Nash Invoicing
MILLER NASH WIENER HAGER & CARLSON LLP 1/21/2021 210213 ( 2,362.00)    PO 2020-21 Miller Nash Invoicing
BANK OF AMERICA 1/28/2021 210903 ( 179.90)      PO l.slyh-Amazon-Board Recognition Month Mugs
BANK OF AMERICA 1/28/2021 210903 ( 12.50)         PO l.slyh-CANVA -Board Thank You Card Printing
BANK OF AMERICA 1/28/2021 210903 ( 99.90)         PO l.slyh-Amazon-Board Recognition Month Virtual Meet
BANK OF AMERICA 1/28/2021 210904 ( 99.90)         PO l.slyh-Amazon-Board Recognition Month Camera Cover
BANK OF AMERICA 1/28/2021 210904 ( 8.50)           PO l.slyh-Amazon-Batteries for Board Member meeting d
PAULY, ROGERS & CO. PC 1/29/2021 210883 ( 18,000.00) PO June 30, 2020 Audit - AUDIT COMPLETED

($ 35,017.20)



Prior YTD FY Actual YTD FY FYTD Current Budget 

Prior YTD Current YTD Add: Projections Annual Forecast Annual Budget
Variance 

Fav / (Unfav)
Beginning Fund Balance 3,928,173$  4,535,509$  -$  4,535,509$  4,940,842$  (405,333)$  

REVENUES
Local Sources 13,681,224 13,985,032 2,363,093 16,348,126 16,069,400 278,726 

Intermediate Sources - - - - - - 
State Sources 24,042,745 25,195,764 12,931,685 38,127,449 38,006,000 121,449 

Federal Sources - - - - - - 
Other Sources 318,777 265,000 - 265,000 397,000 (132,000) 

TOTAL REVENUE 38,042,746$  39,445,796$  15,294,778$  54,740,574$  54,472,400$  268,174$  

EXPENDITURES
Instruction -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

Support Services 4,847,751 4,068,242 4,048,172 8,116,414 8,345,952 229,539 
Enterprise and Community Services - - - - - - 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction - - - - - - 
Other Uses 42,040,320 46,254,093 746,095 47,000,189 47,192,290 192,101 

Contingencies - - - - 1,375,000 1,375,000 
Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance - - - - 2,500,000 2,500,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 46,888,071$  50,322,335$  4,794,267$  55,116,603$  59,413,242$  4,296,640$  

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (8,845,325)$  (10,876,539)$  10,500,511$  (376,028)$  (4,940,842)$  
Projected Year End Fund Balance 4,159,481$  7.60% of Revenues

Prior YTD Current YTD Add: Projections Annual Forecast Annual Budget
 

Fav / (Unfav)
Beginning Fund Balance 5,212,438$  3,474,316$  -$  3,474,316$  1,948,968$  1,525,348$  

REVENUES
Local Sources 18,969,594 20,969,719 17,175,635 38,145,353 38,108,524 36,829 

Intermediate Sources - - - - - - 
State Sources 13,306,294 13,622,683 21,242,680 34,865,363 35,337,627 (472,264) 

Federal Sources 3,671,107 3,785,487 4,971,104 8,756,591 9,045,657 (289,066) 
Other Sources 3,311,268 6,833,387 70,752 6,904,139 7,004,056 (99,917) 

TOTAL REVENUE 39,258,263$  45,211,276$  43,460,170$  88,671,446$  89,495,864$  (824,418)$  

EXPENDITURES
Instruction 21,140,034$  20,172,416$  23,809,795$  45,747,845$  47,991,914$  2,244,069$  

Support Services 14,908,612 15,226,023 17,117,484 33,241,413 33,296,863 55,450 
Enterprise and Community Services 946,872 634,754 764,347 1,444,495 1,714,493 269,998 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 9,000 - 10,631 38,691 200,000 161,309 
Other Uses 3,588,277 3,930,328 3,797,959 7,829,964 8,227,063 397,099 

Contingencies - - - - - - 
Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance - - - - - - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 40,592,795$  39,963,521$  45,500,216$  88,302,408$  91,430,332$  3,127,925$  

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (1,334,532)$  5,247,755$  (2,040,046)$  369,038$  (1,934,468)$  
Projected Year End Fund Balance 3,843,354$  4.33% of Revenues

FY 2020-2021 NWRESD FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the Period Ending January 31, 2021



2/9/2021 Prepared by Fiscal Services

NW Regional ESD 
Monthly Financial Report

For Period Ending January 31, 2020

Superintendent's Expense Report
Registration Mileage

Expenses: Meeting/Conf Airfare & Parking Hotel Dues/Fees Meals Other Total
July-20 0.00
August-20 1,949.96 1,949.96
September-20 3,049.30 3,049.30
October-20 878.18 4,680.00 5,558.18
November-20 313.39 313.39
December-20 1,660.00 1,261.80 2,921.80
January-21 762.59 762.59
February-21 0.00
March-21 0.00
April-21 0.00
May-21 0.00
June-21 0.00

Total Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,538.18 0.00 12,017.04 14,555.22

Detailed Expense Report

January 2021
Vendor Date PO # Amount Type* Description of Product / Service

BANK OF AMERICA 1/12/2021 210823 ( 30.59)              PO l.slyh-Amazon-
Mic Headset for 
Virtual Meeting

PINMART, INC 1/29/2021 210430 ( 732.00)           PO Ordering pins 
for staff 
celebrating a 
work anniver

($ 762.59)         

December 2020
Vendor Date PO # Amount Type* Description of Product / Service

BUDGET INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 12/1/2020 ( 2,520.00)         JE ISF FEES - 

($ 2,921.80)       



February 16, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors  

FR:  Lauren Slyh O'Driscoll, Board Secretary

 RE: OAESD Officer Council – Elections 2021-22

EXPLANATION: The Officer Council consists of the officers of Oregon Association of 
Education Service Districts. 

You will have the opportunity to cast your vote for:
Chair-Elect: Linda Brown, Board Member, Clackamas ESD, nominated by the CESD Board;

or a write-in candidate.

PRESENTER(S): Dan Goldman 

SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS: Attached to this cover sheet: 

OAESD Election Information One Pager

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Motion to vote to elect the Chair-Elect

I move we vote to elect _______________ as OAESD Officer Council 

Chair as presented/amended.



OAESD Officer Council – Elections 2021-22 

General Description:  The Officer Council consists of the officers of OAESD. These are the Chair, 
Chair-Elect, and Past Chair of the OAESD Board and President, President-Elect, and Past 
President of the OAESD Superintendents' Council.  The term of office for the officers shall be 
one year in each role. The Chair-Elect and President-Elect succeed the Chair and President, 
respectively.  Past practice has been for each ESD Board to have the opportunity to nominate a 
candidate for the position of Chair-Elect and for each member ESD superintendent to have the 
opportunity to nominate a candidate for President-Elect.  

The nomination and election timeline for 2021 will be as follows:  

January – Local Boards may nominate eligible members of their own or other ESD boards for 
Chair-Elect.  Superintendents may nominate themselves or other ESD superintendents for 
President-Elect.  Nominations will be turned in to the OAESD Executive Director no later than 
January 29. 

Chair-Elect: Linda Brown, Board Member, Clackamas ESD, has been nominated by the CESD 
Board and has agreed to serve.   

Local Boards will cast their votes for Chair-Elect between February 5 and March 12.  

President-Elect:  Tonja Everest, Superintendent, LBL ESD has been nominated and has agreed to 
serve.   

Superintendents will cast their votes for President-Elect between February 5 and March 12.  

The results of the election will be announced on March 15 which will allow the newly elected 
Officers to participate in the Officer Council meeting being held on March 18.   



END PACKET 
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	Policy October 2020 - First Read.pdf
	GBL D1.pdf
	1. The individual employee. An employee or designee may arrange with the human resource office to inspect the contents of his/her their personnel file on any day the human resource office is open for business;
	2. Others designated in writing by the employee in writing may arrange to inspect the contents of the employee’s personnel file in the same manner described above;
	3. The comptroller or auditor, when such inspection is pertinent to carrying out their respective duties, or as otherwise specifically authorized by the Board. Information so obtained will be kept confidential. No files will be removed from their cent...
	4. A Board member, when specifically authorized by the Board. Information will be kept confidential. No files will be removed from their central location for personal inspection;
	5. The superintendent or designee and members of the central administrative staff;
	6. The NWRESD administrators and supervisors who currently or prospectively supervise the employee;
	7. The employees of the human resource office; and
	8. The attorneys for the NWRESD or the NWRESD’s designated representatives on matters of NWRESD business.;
	9. Records created pursuant to ORS 339.388(8)(c) are confidential and are not public records as defined in ORS 192.311. The ESD may use the record as a basis for providing the information required to be disclosed about an employee under ORS 339.378(1);
	10. Upon request from a law enforcement agency, the Oregon Department of Human Services, the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission, or the Oregon Department of Education, in conducting an investigation related to suspected abuse or suspected sexu...

	GBLA D1.pdf
	1. The disclosure of information regarding the former employee’s job performance is upon request of the prospective employer or the former employee. This disclosure is presumed to be in good faith. Presumption of good faith is rebutted by showing the ...
	a. Knowingly false;
	b. Deliberately misleading;
	c. Rendered with malicious purpose; or
	d. Violated civil rights of the employee protected under Oregon Revised Statue (ORS) 659 or 659A.

	2. The disclosure is of the disciplinary records a of an NWRESD employee who has been convicted of a crime listed in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 342.143. These records are generally not exempt from disclosure under ORS 192.501 or ORS 192.502 Prior to...
	3. The disclosure is the result of a request from a law enforcement agency, the Oregon Department of Human Services, or the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission regarding the records of investigations of suspected child abuse by an NWRESD employ...
	4. Not later than 20 days after receiving a request under ORS 339.374(1)(b), an education provider that, the ESD, if it  has or has had an employment relationship with the applicant shall disclose the information requested and any disciplinary records...

	GBN_JBA G1.pdf
	1. A demand or request for sexual favors in exchange for benefits;
	2. Unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature that is physical, verbal, or nonverbal and that:
	a. Interferes with a student’s educational activity or program;
	b. Interferes with a school or ESD staff member’s ability to perform their job; or
	c. Creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile environment.

	3. Assault when sexual contact occurs without the student’s, staff member’s or third party’s consent because the student, staff member of third party is under the influence of drugs or alcohol, is unconscious or is pressured through physical force, co...
	1. Student is protected and to promote a nonhostile learning environment;
	2. Staff member is protected and to promote a nonhostile work environment; or
	3. Third party who is subjected to the behavior is protected and to promote a nonhostile environment.
	1. [Interviews with those involved;
	2. Interviews with witnesses;
	3. Review of video surveillance;
	4. Review of written communications, including electronic communications;
	5. Review of any physical evidence; and
	6. Use of third-party investigator.]
	1. [Discipline of staff and students engaging in sexual harassment;
	2. Removal of third parties engaged in sexual harassment;
	3. Additional supervision in activities;
	4. Additional controls for ESD electronic systems;
	5. Trainings and education for staff and students; and
	6. Increased notifications regarding ESD procedures and resources.]
	1. [Removing that third party’s ability to contract or volunteer with the ESD, or be present on ESD property;
	2. If the third party works for an entity that contracts with the ESD, communicating with the third party’s employer;
	3. If the third party is a student of another district, ESD or school, communicate information related to the incident to the other district, ESD or school;
	4. Limiting attendance at ESD events; and
	5. Providing for additional supervision, including law enforcement if necessary, at ESD events.]
	1. Educational assignments or educational environment of a student or other person initiating the complaint, reporting the behavior, or participating in the investigation; or
	2. Any terms or conditions of employment or of work or educational environment of a school or ESD staff member or other person initiating the complaint, reporting the behavior, or participating in the investigation.
	1. Each reporting person;
	2. If appropriate, any impacted person who is not a reporting person;
	3. Each reported person; and
	4. Where applicable, a parent or legal guardian of a reporting person, impacted person, or reported person.
	1. Name and contact information for all person designated by the ESD to receive complaints;
	2. The rights of the person that the notification is going to;
	3. Information about the internal complaint processes available through the school or ESD that the [student, student’s parents, staff member, person or person’s parent] [person]  who filed the complaint may pursue, including the person designated for ...
	4. Notice that civil and criminal remedies that are not provided by the school or ESD may be available to the person through the legal system and that those remedies may be subject to statutes of limitation;
	5. Information about services available to the student or staff member through the school or ESD, including any counseling services, nursing services or peer advising;
	6. Information about the privacy rights of the person and legally recognized exceptions to those rights for internal complaint processes and services available through the school or ESD;
	7. Information about, and contact information for, services and resources that are available to the person, including but not limited to:
	a. For the reporting person, state and community-based resources for persons who have experienced sexual harassment; or
	b. For the reported persons, information about and contact information for state and community-based mental health services;

	8. Notice that students who report about possible prohibited conduct and students who participate in an investigation under this policy may not be disciplined for violations of the ESD’s drug and alcohol policies that occurred in connection with the r...
	9. Prohibition of retaliation.
	1. Be written in plain language that is easy to understand;
	2. Use print that is of a color, size and font that allows the notification to be easily read; and
	3. Be made available to students, students’ parents, staff members and member of the public at each office, at the ESD office and on the website of the school or ESD.
	1. An employee of the ESD conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the ESD on an individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;
	2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the ESD’s education program or activityP9F P;
	3. “Sexual assault”: an offense classified as a forcible or nonforcible sex offense under the uniform crime reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigation;
	4. “Dating violence”: violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim and where the existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on a consideration of the length...
	5. “Domestic Violence”: felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabita...
	6. “Stalking”: engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person fear for the person’s own safety or the safety of others, or suffer substantial emotional distress.
	1. The name or title, office address, electronic mail address, and telephone number of the Title IX Coordinator(s);
	2. That the ESD does not discriminate on the basis of sex in the education program or activity that it operates, as required by Title IX. This includes admissions and employment; and
	3. The grievance procedure and process, how to file a formal complaint of sex discrimination or sexual harassment, and how the ESD will respond.

	JBA_GBN G1.pdf
	1. A demand or request for sexual favors in exchange for benefits;
	2. Unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature that is physical, verbal, or nonverbal and that:
	a. Interferes with a student’s educational activity or program;
	b. Interferes with a school or ESD staff member’s ability to perform their job; or
	c. Creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile environment.

	3. Assault when sexual contact occurs without the student’s, staff member’s or third party’s consent because the student, staff member of third party is under the influence of drugs or alcohol, is unconscious or is pressured through physical force, co...
	1. Student is protected and to promote a nonhostile learning environment;
	2. Staff member is protected and to promote a nonhostile work environment; or
	3. Third party who is subjected to the behavior is protected and to promote a nonhostile environment.
	1. [Interviews with those involved;
	2. Interviews with witnesses;
	3. Review of video surveillance;
	4. Review of written communications, including electronic communications;
	5. Review of any physical evidence; and
	6. Use of third-party investigator.]
	7. [Discipline of staff and students engaging in sexual harassment;
	8. Removal of third parties engaged in sexual harassment;
	9. Additional supervision in activities;
	10. Additional controls for ESD electronic systems;
	11. Trainings and education for staff and students; and
	12. Increased notifications regarding ESD procedures and resources.]
	1. [Removing that third party’s ability to contract or volunteer with the ESD, or be present on ESD property;
	2. If the third party works for an entity that contracts with the ESD, communicating with the third party’s employer;
	3. If the third party is a student of another district, ESD or school, communicate information related to the incident to the other district, ESD or school;
	4. Limiting attendance at ESD events; and
	5. Providing for additional supervision, including law enforcement if necessary, at ESD events.]
	1. Educational assignments or educational environment of a student or other person initiating the complaint, reporting the behavior, or participating in the investigation; or
	2. Any terms or conditions of employment or of work or educational environment of a school or ESD staff member or other person initiating the complaint, reporting the behavior, or participating in the investigation.
	1. Each reporting person;
	2. If appropriate, any impacted person who is not a reporting person;
	3. Each reported person; and
	4. Where applicable, a parent or legal guardian of a reporting person, impacted person, or reported person.
	1. Name and contact information for all person designated by the ESD to receive complaints;
	2. The rights of the person that the notification is going to;
	3. Information about the internal complaint processes available through the school or ESD that the [student, student’s parents, staff member, person or person’s parent] [person] who filed the complaint may pursue, including the person designated for t...
	4. Notice that civil and criminal remedies that are not provided by the school or ESD may be available to the person through the legal system and that those remedies may be subject to statutes of limitation;
	5. Information about services available to the student or staff member through the school or ESD, including any counseling services, nursing services or peer advising;
	6. Information about the privacy rights of the person and legally recognized exceptions to those rights for internal complaint processes and services available through the school or ESD;
	7. Information about, and contact information for, services and resources that are available to the person, including but not limited to:
	a. For the reporting person, state and community-based resources for persons who have experienced sexual harassment; or
	b. For the reported persons, information about and contact information for state and community-based mental health services;

	8. Notice that students who report about possible prohibited conduct and students who participate in an investigation under this policy may not be disciplined for violations of the ESD’s drug and alcohol policies that occurred in connection with the r...
	9. Prohibition of retaliation.
	1. Be written in plain language that is easy to understand;
	2. Use print that is of a color, size and font that allows the notification to be easily read; and
	3. Be made available to students, students’ parents, staff members and member of the public at each office, at the ESD office and on the website of the school or ESD.
	1. An employee of the ESD conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the ESD on an individual’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;
	2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the ESD’s education program or activityP9F P;
	3. “Sexual assault”: an offense classified as a forcible or nonforcible sex offense under the uniform crime reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigation;
	4. “Dating violence”: violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim and where the existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on a consideration of the length...
	5. “Domestic Violence”: felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabita...
	6. “Stalking”: engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person fear for the person’s own safety or the safety of others, or suffer substantial emotional distress.
	1. The name or title, office address, electronic mail address, and telephone number of the Title IX Coordinator(s);
	2. That the ESD does not discriminate on the basis of sex in the education program or activity that it operates, as required by Title IX. This includes admissions and employment; and
	3. The grievance procedure and process, how to file a formal complaint of sex discrimination or sexual harassment, and how the ESD will respond.

	JHCC D1.pdf
	1. The NWRESD determines that the student presents no unreasonable risk of infection to the other students and bears no unreasonable risk of opportunistic infections; or
	1. The student is ordered to be returned to the classroom by a court or other authority of competent jurisdiction.
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